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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated
Note $000 3000 $000 $000
Income and expenses of shareholder of AMP Life
Limited, policyholders, and non-controlling interests
Continuing Operations:
Life insurance premium and related revenue 17(a) 215,659 220,309 215,659 220,309
Fee revenue 5(a) 170,662 161,092 3,716 2,470
Other revenue 5(b) 6,245 3,882 - -
Investment gains 5(c) 64,398 298,066 59,450 289,838
Life insurance claims and related expenses 17(b)  (216,341) (208,451) (216,341) (208,451)
Operating expenses 6(a) (225,027) (221,723) (63,635) (72,398)
Finance costs B(b) (283) (119) (294) (109)
Change in policyholder liabilities
- Life insurance contracts 17(e) (11,628)  (103,865) (11,528) (103,865)
- Investment contracts 18(g) (17,080) (13,934) (17,080) (13,934)
Profit (loss) for the year before income tax (13,295) 135,257 (30,053) 113,860
Income tax credit (expense) 7(a) 53,142 (50,552) 58,195  (45,507)
Profit from continuing operations after tax 39,847 84,705 28,142 68,353
Discontinued Operations:
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations after tax 8(a) - (13,644) - -
Profit for the year 39,847 71,061 28,142 68,353
Profit for the year is attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 8(a) - (7,557) - -
Shareholder of AMP Life Limited 39,847 78,618 28,142 68,353
Profit for the year 39,847 71,061 28,142 68,353
Note:

Income and expenses include amounts attributable to the shareholder's interests and policyholders' interests in the life statutory fund.
Amounts included in respect of the life statutory fund has a substantial impact on most of the income statement lines, especially
investment gains and losses and tax. In general, policyholders' interests in the transactions for the period are attributed to them in the

lines Change in policyholder liabilities.

The restatement to comparative information is required due to changes in accounting standard NZ 1AS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised
2011) which became effective in the current period. Refer to Note 2(a) for further information.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated
$000 $000 $000 $000

Profit for the year 39,847 71,061 28,142 68,353
Other comprehensive income - items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Recognised in retained earnings
Defined benefit plans
- actuarial gains and (losses) 23(b) 5,979 692 - -
- income tax (expense) credit (1,674) (193) - -

4,305 499 - -
Recognised in reserves
- share-based payments 944 549 - -

944 549 - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 45,096 72,109 28,142 68,353
Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:
Non-controlling interests - (7,557) - -
Shareholder of AMP Life Limited 45,096 79,666 28,142 68,353
Total comprehensive income for the year 45,096 72,109 28,142 68,353

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012
Restated Restated
Note $000 3000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 22(b) 109,074 181,435 137,713 17,900 35,340
Receivables 9 207,592 105,651 82,301 171,407 59,791
Current tax assets 23,481 23,927 13,585 12,400 18,147
Other assets 11 1,740 2,210 14,772 - -
Investment in financial assets 10 2,624,154 2571,223 2,464,517 2,978,046 2,814,357
Plant and equipment 12 13,655 11,489 11,365 - -
Intangibles 13 20,778 19,916 19,048 - -
Deferred tax assets 7(c) 35,914 19,775 14,328 23,760 -
Total assets of shareholder of AMP Life Limited,
policyholders and non-controlling interests 3,036,388 2935626 2,757,629 3,203,513 2,927,635
Liabilities
Payables 14 84,066 62,719 60,360 340,647 129,325
Provisions 15 38,973 40,992 31,320 - -
Borrowings - - 3,534 - -
Derivative financial liabilities 20 120,077 4,265 13,628 109,152 1,073
Deferred tax liabilities 7(d) 164,486 228,356 215,176 164,486 228,356
Life insurance contract liabilities 17(e) 1,936,508 1,917,075 1818412 1,936,508 1,917,075
Investment contract liabilities 18(g)(ii) 114,059 110,631 113,324 114,059 110,631
Defined benefit plan liabilities 23(e) 3,691 11,497 13,893 - -
Total liabilities of shareholder of AMP Life Limited,
policyholders and non-controlling interests 2,461,860 2,375535 2,269,647 2,664,852 2 386,460
Net assets of shareholder of AMP Life Limited and
non-controlling interests 574,528 560,091 487,982 538,661 541,175
Equity
Reserves 2,540 1,596 1,047 - -
Retained earnings 571,988 558,492 479,375 538,661 541,175
Total equity attributable to shareholder of AMP Life
Limited 574,528 560,088 480,422 538,661 541,175
Non-controlling interests - 3 7,560 - -
Total equity of shareholder of AMP Life Limited and
non-controlling interests 574,528 560,091 487,982 538,661 541,175

For and on behalf of the Board who authorised these financial statements for issue on 2 May 2014:

Director Director

Note:

The restatement of comparative information is required due to changes in accounting standard NZ IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised
2011) which became effective in the current period. Refer to Note 2(a) for further information.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2013

Consolidated

Equity attributable to shareholder of AMP Life Limited

Share-
based Total Non-
Retained payments shareholder controlling
earnings reserve equity interest Total equity
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
31 December 2013
Balance at the beginning of the year 558,492 1,596 560,088 3 560,091
Profit for the year 39,847 - 39,847 - 39,847
Other comprehensive income 4,305 944 5,249 - 5,249
Total comprehensive income 44,152 944 45,096 - 45,096
Transfer of profit to AMP Life Limited
Shareholder Fund (30,656) - {30,656) - (30,656)
Minority interest on sales (3) (3)
Balance at the end of the year 571,988 2,540 574,528 - 574,528
31 December 2012
Balance at the beginning of the year 476,959 1,047 478,006 7,560 485,566
Impact of change in accounting policy 2(a) 2,416 - 2,416 - 2,416
Balance at the beginning of the year
restated 479,375 1,047 480,422 7,560 487,982
Profit for the year 79,251 - 79,251 (7,557) 71,694
Impact of change in accounting policy 2(a) (633) - (633) - (633)
Profit for the year restated 78,618 - 78,618 (7,557) 71,061
Other comprehensive income (755) 549 (206) - (206)
Impact of change in accounting policy 2(a) 1,254 - 1,254 - 1,254
Other comprehensive income restated 499 549 1,048 - 1,048
Total comprehensive income 79,117 549 79,666 (7,557) 72,109
Balance at the end of the year 558,492 1,696 560,088 3 560,091
Parent
Total
Retained Other shareholder
Earnings reserves equity
31 December 2013
Balance at the beginning of the year 541,175 - 541,175
Profit for the year 28,142 - 28,142
Total comprehensive income 28,142 - 28,142
Transfer of profit to parent branch (30,656) (30,656)
Balance at the end of the year 538,661 - 538,661
31 December 2012
Balance at the beginning of the year 472,822 - 472,822
Profit for the year 68,353 - 68,353
Total comprehensive income 68,353 - 68,353
Balance at the end of the year 541,175 - 541,175

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2013

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note $000 3000 $000 3000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations 297,512 351,493 213,968 215,638
Interest received 113,086 101,613 51,712 47,208
Dividends and distributions received 64 1,249 35 1,052
Cash payments in the course of operations (435,003) (425,306) (298,616) (286,799)
Finance costs (283) (119) (294) (109)
Income tax refunded / (paid) (26,421) (53,605) (23,688) (46,030)
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities 22(a) {51,045) (24,675) (56,883) (69,040)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sale of / (payments to acquire)'":
- investments in financial assets measured at fair value 13,611 78,647 63,230 77,677
- investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost (353) 1,128 (5) 364
Proceeds from disposal of controlled entity - 4,000 - -
Purchase of plant and equipment (5,262) (7,718) -
Purchase of intangibles (5,530) (7,660) - -
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities 2,466 68,397 63,225 78,041
Cash flows from financing activities
Transfer of funds to parent branch (23,782) (23,782)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities (23,782) - (23,782) -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (72,361) 43,722 (17,440) 9,001
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 181,435 137,713 35,340 26,339
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22(b) 109,074 181,435 17,900 35,340

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

™) The amounts shown represent the net cash flows for the financial year.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Reporting entity

In September 2013 the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (‘RBNZ") granted AMP Life Limited (‘AMP Life") a full
licence to carry on insurance business under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010* ("IPSA”). AMP
Life is incorporated in New South Wales, and registered under Australia's Life Insurance Act 1995 ("Life Act").
AMP Life carries on its life insurance business in New Zealand through a Branch establishment and is deemed to
be an "issuer" as defined under the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993. AMP Life is not a self-contained
legal entity in New Zealand except to the extent that New Zealand incorporated subsidiaries carry out its business.
A summarised group structure is as follows:

AMP Limited**

A
AMP Group Holdings Limited

\ 4
AMP Holdings Limited

A 4

AMP Financial Services Holdings
Limited

h 4
AMP Life Limited

A A
No. 1 Statutory Fund Shareholder Fund
AMP Life Limited (New Zealand AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) No. 1 Statutory Fund Branch) Shareholder Fund
AMP Life Limited (New Zealand AMP Life Limited (New Zealand
Branch) No. 1 Statutory Fund Branch) Shareholder Fund
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

* As part of the grant of that licence, AMP Life was granted certain exemptions from IPSA by virtue of its status as
an Australian regulated entity. This status requires AMP Life to ensure that it meets all standards and regulations
applicable in Australia and enforced by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority.

**AMP Limited is the ultimate holding company of the AMP Group and is dual listed on the Australian and New
Zealand stock exchanges.

The life insurance operations of the AMP Life New Zealand branch (hereafter referred to as the ‘Branch’ or
‘Parent’) are conducted within a separate statutory fund as required by the Life Act, and are reported in aggregate
in the Income statement, Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of financial position, Statement of
changes in equity and the Statement of cash flows. Further information on the Statutory Fund and Shareholders’
Fund is provided in Note 18.

For the purpose of these financial statements the Parent comprises AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) No. 1
Statutory Fund (the “Statutory Fund”) and AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) Shareholder Fund
(“Shareholder Fund”). The consolidated figures comprise the Parent and the subsidiaries of each of the Statutory
Fund and the Shareholder Fund. These financial statements have been prepared as if this were a group formed
and registered in New Zealand. In line with this approach the AMP Life interest in the Branch and its consolidated
entities has been disclosed as equity in these financial statements. The financial statements are prepared in this
way to comply with Sections 8 and 9 of the New Zealand Financial Reporting Act 1993.

EY



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Reporting entity (continued)

AMP Life is the registered issuer of life insurance policies in New Zealand. The liability under New Zealand
policies is limited to the AMP Life Limited No.1 Statutory Fund which forms part of AMP Life. As the assets
included and policies issued in the Branch are a component of the AMP Life Limited No. 1 Statutory Fund, New
Zealand life insurance policyholders should refer to the financial statements of AMP Life Limited No. 1 Statutory
Fund to gain an understanding of the financial affairs of the AMP Life Limited No. 1 Statutory Fund.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to the current year and comparative period, unless otherwise stated.
Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with current period disclosures.
The financial statements include separate financial statements for the Branch (‘Parent’), and for the consolidated
entity, which consists of the parent and all entities controlled by the parent during the year and at balance sheet
date (‘Consolidated’).

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were authorised by the Directors of AMP Life on
2 May 2014. They have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and the requirements of the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial Reporting
Act 1993.

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($'000), unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are also prepared in a manner consistent with the financial reporting requirements of:
* The Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“Insurance Act”)
e  The Australian Life Insurance Act 1995 (“Life Act”), and
»  Prudential Standards issued by Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) (“Prudential
Standards”)

The Branch is predominantly a life insurance and wealth management business. Where permitted under
accounting standards, the assets and liabilities associated with life insurance and investment contracts are
generally measured on a fair value basis and other assets and liabilities are generally measured on a historical
cost basis.

Assets and liabilities have been presented on the face of the Statement of financial position in decreasing order of
liquidity and do not distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assets of the Branch
are investment assets held to back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities. Although the amount
of those assets which may be realised and those liabilities which may be settled within twelve months of the
reporting date are not always known, estimates of amounts expected to be recovered or settled (a) no more than
12 months after the reporting date, and (b) more than 12 months after the reporting date, have been provided in
footnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes in accounting policies

Since 1 January 2013, the Branch has adopted all New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards and Interpretations which have become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, including:

e NZIAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. The changes introduced by the revised
NZ IAS 1 relate to presentation only, and have resulted in items in the Statement of comprehensive
income being segregated between those that may eventually be realised in the Income statement in
future periods and those that will not.

*» NZIFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, NZ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities. These standards have changed the criteria for determining which entities
are to be accounted for using the equity method in preparing consolidated financial statements and the
required disclosures in relation to consolidated entities, joint arrangements, joint operations, associates
and structured entities.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

» NZIFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. This standard has centralised the definition and guidance for
measuring fair values where required to be applied by various other accounting standards and removes
some minor inconsistencies that previously existed between the guidance for determining fair value in
these standards. The new standard requires quantitative and qualitative disclosures of all fair value
measurements.

o NZIFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures. This standard has amended disclosures to require
information on the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated
with the group’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities.

o NZIAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation. These amendments have clarified the meaning of
‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set off and the application of offsetting criteria to settlement
systems which apply to gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.

o NZIAS 19 Employee Benefits (revised 2011). This standard removed the options for accounting for
defined benefit liabilities, and requires that the liabilities arising from such plans are recognised in full with
actuarial gains and losses being recognised in other comprehensive income. It also revised the method
of calculating the return on plan assets.

With the exception of NZ IAS 19 which required the restatement of prior year comparatives, these Standards and
Interpretations have not had any material effect on the financial position or performance of the Branch.

Nature and impact of adoption of NZ IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised 2011)

The Branch applied NZ IAS 19 retrospectively in the current period in accordance with the transitional provisions
as set out in the revised standard. The opening Statement of financial position of the earliest comparative period
presented (1 January 2012) and the 2012 comparative figures have been restated.

This standard revises the method of accounting for defined benefit plans. One of the key changes under the
standard is that the discount rate applied to the defined benefit liability is gross of tax while previously a net of tax
discount rate was used.

Impact of changes on profit or loss (decrease in profit):

2012

$'000

Operating expenses 879

Profit for the year before income tax (879)

Income tax expense 246

Profit from continuing operations after tax (633)

Other comprehensive income

Defined benefit plans — actuarial gains (net of tax) 1,254

Total comprehensive income for the year 621
Impact on equity (increase in equity)

31 December 1 January

2012 2012

$000 $'000

Deferred tax asset (1,181) (939)

Total assets (1,181) (939)

Defined benefit plan liabilities 4,218 3,355

Total liabilities 4,218 3,355

Net impact on equity 3,037 2,416

EY



AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Issued standards that are not yet effective

A number of new accounting standards have been issued but are not yet effective. The Branch has elected not to
early adopt any new standards and amendments in these financial statements. These new standards and
amendments when applied to future periods are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or
performance of the Branch other than as set out below:

* NZIFRS 9 Financial instruments: This standard makes significant changes to the way financial assets
are classified for the purpose of determining their measurement basis and also to the amounts relating to
fair value changes which are to be taken directly to equity. This standard is mandatory for adoption by the
Branch in the year ending 31 December 2017, however early application is permitted in certain
circumstances. The financial impact to the Branch of adopting NZ IFRS 9 has not yet been quantified.

e NZIFRS 4 insurance contracts: Appendix C of NZ IFRS 4 was amended in order for Appendix C to be
consistent with the changed legislative and regulatory environment in New Zealand. This standard is
mandatory for adoption by the Branch in the year ending 31 December 2014 The financial impact to the
Branch of adopting the changes to NZ IFRS 4 has not yet been quantified.

(b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (‘NZ
IFRS’). The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’).

(¢) Principles of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate the financial information of controlled entities. Control arises from
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with an entity where the Branch has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The majority of the Branch’s investments are held through
controlling interests in unit trusts and companies.

The financial information for controlled entities is prepared for the same reporting period as the parent entity, using
consistent accounting policies. Where dissimilar accounting policies may exist, adjustments are made to bring
these into line.

The Branch conducts its life insurance business (see note 2(d) below) through the Statutory Fund. Income,
expenses, assets and liabilities attributable to policyholder activities within the Statutory Fund are consolidated into
the Branch financial statements, along with those attributable to the Shareholder Fund.

Consolidation principles require the total amounts of each underlying asset, liability, income and expense of the
controlled entities to be recognised in the consolidated financial statements. When a controlled unit trust is
consolidated, the share of the unitholder’s liability attributable to the Branch is eliminated but amounts due to
external unitholders remain as liabilities in the consolidated Statement of financial position. The share of the net
assets of controlled entities attributable to non-controlling interests is disclosed as a separate line item in the
Statement of financial position. In the Income statement and Statement of comprehensive income, the profit or
loss of the Branch is allocated between profit or loss attnbutable to non-controlling interests and profit or loss
attributable to the Shareholder of AMP Life.

Controlled entities that are acquired are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Information
from the financial statements of controlled entities is included from the date the parent entity obtains control until
such time as control ceases. Where the Branch ceases to control an entity, the consolidated financial statements
include the results for the part of the reporting period during which the parent entity had control.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Accounting for wealth management and life insurance business

The accounting treatment of certain transactions in these financial statements varies depending on the nature of
the contract underlying the transactions. The two major contract classifications relevant to the wealth
management and insurance business of AMP Life are investment contracts and life insurance contracts.

For the purpose of these financial statements holders of investment contracts or life insurance contracts are
collectively and individually referred to as policyholders.

Life insurance contracts

AMP Life issues contracts that transfer significant insurance risk from the policyholder, covering death, disability or
longevity of the insured. In addition, there are some policies that are similar to investment contracts, but the timing
of the vesting of the profit attributable to the policyholder is at the discretion of AMP Life. These policies are
referred to as discrefionary participating contracts.

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as life insurance contracts.

Investment contracts

Part of the business of the Branch relates to wealth-management products such as savings, investment linked and
retirement income policies. The nature of this business is that AMP Life receives deposits from policyholders and
those funds are invested on behalf of the policyholders. The resulting liability to policyholders is linked to the
performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities.

Under accounting standards such contracts are defined as life investment contracts and described as investment
contracts throughout these financial statements.

Assets measurement basis

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value as described in note 2(r) and life insurance contract
liabilities are measured as described in Note 2(q). Assets backing such liabilities are measured at fair value, to the
extent permitted under accounting standards. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value are recognised in the Income statement, to the extent permitted under accounting standards. The
accounting policies for individual asset classes, and any restrictions on application of fair value, are described later
in Note 2.

All assets that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are included within the life statutory
fund and, as such, are separately identifiable.

To ensure consistency across the Branch and, except where specifically stated otherwise, all financial assets and
all non-financial assets, including those not backing investment or insurance contract liabilities, are also
recognised at fair value through profit or loss to the extent permitted under accounting standards. Similarly,
adjustments to the value of such assets are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when the
corresponding accounting standards allow such treatment. The accounting policy for the parent entity's
investments in controlled entities is set out in Note 2(g).

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is available on demand and deposits that are held at call
with financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value, being the principal amount. For
the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash also includes other highly liquid investments not subject to
significant risk of change in value, with short periods to maturity, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in the Statement of financial position.

i) Receivables

Receivables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Reinsurance and other recoveries are discounted to present value. Receivables
that do not back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised
when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Given the short-
term nature of most receivables, the recoverable amount approximates fair value

10
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9) Investments in financial assets

Investments in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in financial assets designated on initial recognition as financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value determined as the purchase cost of the asset, exclusive of any
transaction costs. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in profit or loss. Any realised and unrealised gains
or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value are recognised in the Income statement in the period
in which they arise.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value of investments measured at fair value through profit or loss is

determined as follows:

. The fair value of equity securities in an active market and listed managed investment schemes reflects the
quoted bid price at the reporting date. In the case of equity securities and listed managed investment
schemes where there is no active market, a fair value is established by using valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, references to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

. The fair value of listed debt securities reflects the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securities that
are not frequently traded are valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of
unlisted debt securities is estimated using interest rate yields obtainable on comparable listed investments.
The fair value of loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable amount using prevailing
interest rates.

. The fair value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined on the basis of
published redemption prices of those managed investment schemes at the reporting date.
. The fair value of derivative financial assets is determined in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(0).

Investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost

Investments in financial assets measured at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. These assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Investments in controlled entities

Investments by the Shareholder Fund in controlled entities (excluding managed investment schemes) are
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Investments in controlled entities by the Statutory
Fund that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as financial assets and are
valued in the same manner as equity securities described in this note.

(h) Associates

Associated entities are defined as those entities over which the Branch has significant influence but there is no
capacity to control. Investments in associates held to back life insurance or life investment contracts are exempt
from the requirement to apply equity accounting and have been designated on initial recognition as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. These are valued in the same manner as financial assets
described in Note 2(g).

(i) Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. It is subsequently measured at cost
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The written down amount

approximates fair value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Office fittings, furniture and equipment 3 - 13 years
Computer and communication equipment 2 -4 years
Derecognition

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the Income statement.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Intangible assets

Capitalised costs

Capitalised costs which primarily reflect software and software development costs, are capitalised only when the
Branch can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Otherwise, all costs are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Capitalised costs are amortised over the useful life of the asset,
being a period not exceeding 5 years, commencing at the time the asset is first put into use or held ready for use
(whichever is the earlier). Capitalised costs are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment in value.

(k) Impairment of assets

Assets measured at fair value, where changes in value are reflected in the Income statement, are not subject to
impairment testing. As a result, all financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are not subject to
impairment testing. Other assets such as plant and equipment and intangible assets including goodwill are subject
to impairment testing.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amortisation but are tested at least
annually for impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Impairment is recognised in the Income statement, measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment of goodwill, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates.

) Taxes

Income tax expense
Income tax expense/credit is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period, based on the income tax
rate and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to:
» temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their Statement of financial
position carrying amounts,
e unused tax losses and
e the impact of changes in the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax
rates or in the manner in which these balances are expected to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense / credit are also made for any differences between the amounts paid or
expected to be paid in relation to prior periods and the amounts provided for these periods at the start of the
current period.

Any tax impact on income and expense items that are recognised directly in equity is also recognised directly in
equity.

Income tax for investment contracts and life insurance contracts business
The income tax expense/credit recognised in the Income statement arising in the Branch reflects tax imposed on
the sharehoider as well as policyholders.

Investment contract liabilities and life insurance contract liabilities are established gross of the policyholders' share
of any current tax payable and deferred tax balances of the Branch.

The policy liabilities (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities, including any
asset or liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and solvency

reserves are determined at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act. Risk business policy liabilities for
Life Act purposes is calculated on a before tax basis.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

) Taxes (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates which are expected to
apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date.

In New Zealand, the tax regime recognises a deduction for acquisition expenses as they are incurred rather than
over the life of the policy. This results in a difference in the tax and accounting recognition and creates a deferred
tax liability.

The relevant tax rate is applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to
measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these
temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax, including amounts in respect of investment contracts and life insurance contracts, is not discounted to present
value.

Goods and services tax

All income, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relate to products and
services that are input taxed for GST purposes or where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the Inland
Revenue Department. In such circumstances, the GST paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
assets or as part of the particular expense.

Receivables and payables are recorded with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable
from or payable to the Inland Revenue Department is included as either receivable or payable in the Statement of
financial position.

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis reflecting any GST paid or collected. The GST component of cash flows
arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue
Department are classified as Operating cash flows.

(m) Payables

Payables that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial liabilities and are
measured at fair value. Other payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Given
the short-term nature of most payables, the nominal amount approximates fair value.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

. the Branch has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,

. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and

. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Branch expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Income statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. For provisions other than employee entitlements, the discount rate
used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in the Income
statement.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{n) Provisions (continued)

Employee entitlements

Liabilities arising in respect of salaries and wages, annual leave and any other employee entitlements expected to
be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts. All other employee
entitlements are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. In determining the present value of future cash outflows,
discount rates used are based on the interest rates attaching to government securities that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability.

(o) Derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities

The Branch is exposed to changes in interest and foreign exchange rates. To mitigate the risks arising from these
exposures, the Branch uses derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps,
forward rate agreements, futures, options and foreign currency contracts. Derivative financial instruments are also
used to gain exposure to various markets for asset and liability management purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value exclusive of any transaction costs on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

All derivatives are recognised as assets when their fair value is positive, and as liabilities when their fair value is
negative.

Derivatives held in the Branch are not designated as hedging instruments. As such, changes in the fair value of
derivative financial instruments are recognised in the Income statement in the period in which they arise.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price for financial assets is the current bid price;
the quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current offer price.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, option-pricing
models, discounted cash-flow methods and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

(p) Recognition and de-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets are recognised at the date the Branch becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire, or are transferred. A transfer occurs when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are passed to an unrelated third party. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Life insurance contract liabilities

The financial reporting methodology used to determine the fair value of life insurance contract liabilities is referred
to as Margin on Services (MoS).

Under MoS the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin) is recognised over the life of
the contract in a manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (the service). The planned
release of this margin is included in the movement in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Income
statement.

Life insurance contract liabilities are usually determined using a projection method, whereby estimates of policy
cash flows (premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected using
best-estimate assumptions about the future. The liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected
cash flows. When the benefits under a life insurance contract are linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate
applied is based on the expected future earnings rate of those assets. Where the benefits are not linked to the
performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free discount rate is based on the
zero coupon government bond rate and a liquidity margin which depends on the nature, structure and terms of the
contract liabilities.

An accumulation method may be used if it produces results that are not materially different from those produced
by a projection method. A modified accumulation method is used for some discretionary participating business,
where the life insurance liability is the accumulation of amounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in
the policy, plus investment earnings and vested benefits, adjusted to allow for the fact that crediting rates are
determined by reference to investment income over a period of greater than one year. The accumulation method
may be adjusted to the extent that acquisition expenses are to be recovered from future margins between fees
and expenses.

Allocation of operating profit and unvested policyholder benefits

The operating profit arising from discretionary participating contracts is allocated between shareholders and
participating policyholders by applying the Mo$S principles in accordance with the Life Insurance Act 1995 (the
‘Life’ Act).

Once profit is allocated to participating policyholders it can only be distributed to these policyholders. Any
distribution of this profit to the shareholder is only allowed with specific approval of the regulators.

Profit allocated to participating policyholders is recognised in the Income statement as an increase in policy
liabilities. Both the element of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders (i.e. unvested),
and that which has been allocated to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested), are included
within life insurance contract liabilities.

Bonus distributions to participating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested to
vested and, as such do not alter the amount of profit attributable to the shareholder.

The principles of allocation of the profit arising from discretionary participating business are as follows:

(i) Investment income (net of tax and investment expenses) on retained earnings in respect of discretionary
participating business is allocated between policyholders and the shareholder in proportion to the balances
of policyholders' and the shareholder's retained earnings. This proportion is 80 per cent policyholders and
20 per cent shareholder.

(i) Other MoS profits arising from discretionary participating business are allocated 80 per cent to
policyholders and 20 per cent to the shareholder, except for the profit arising from corporate
superannuation business, which is apportioned such that the shareholder is allocated 15 per cent of the
profit allocated to policyholders.

iii) All profits arising from non-participating business, including net investment returns on shareholder capital
and retained earnings in the statutory fund (excluding retained earnings dealt with in (i) above) are
allocated to the shareholder.

Allocation of expenses within the life statutory fund

All operating expenses relating to the life insurance contract and investment contract activities are apportioned
between acquisition, maintenance, and investment management expenses. Expenses which are directly
attributable to an individual life insurance contract or investment contract are allocated directly to a particular
expense category, class of business and product line as appropriate.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Life insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Allocation of expenses within the life statutory fund (continued)

Where expenses are not directly attributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detailed expense
analysis, with due regard for the objective in incurring that expense and the outcome achieved. The apportionment
basis has been made in accordance with Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) Life Insurance
Prudential Standards and on an equitable basis to the different classes of business in accordance with the Life
Act.

The costs apportioned to life insurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.
Investment management expenses of the life statutory fund are classified as operating expenses (see note 2(x)).
) Investment contract liabilities

An investment contract consists of a financial instrument and an investment management services element, both
of which are measured at fair value. With the exception of fixed retirement-income policies, the resulting liability to
policyholders is closely linked to the performance and value of the assets (after tax) that back those liabilities. The
fair value of such liabilities is therefore the same as the fair value of those assets (after tax charged to the
policyholders) except where accounting standards prevent those assets from being measured at fair value.

For fixed retirement-income policies, the financial instrument element of the liability is the fair value of the fixed
retirement-income payments, being their net present value using a fair value discount rate. The fair value of the
associated management services element is the net present value, using a fair value discount rate, of all expenses
associated with the provision of services and any profit margins thereon.

(s) Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency
Both the functional and presentation currency of the Branch is New Zealand dollars ($).

Transactions and balances

Income and expense items denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are translated at the spot
exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date with exchange gains and losses recognised in
the Income statement.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

(t) Insurance premium and related revenue

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract premiums are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Premium amounts
earned by bearing insurance risks are recognised as revenue. Other premium amounts received, which are in the
nature of deposits, are recognised as an increase in life insurance contract liabilities.

Premiums with no due date or fixed amount are recognised on a cash-received basis. Premiums with a regular
due date are recognised on an accruals basis. Unpaid premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or
where secured by the surrender value of the life insurance contract and are reported as outstanding premiums and
classified as receivables in the Statement of financial position.

Investment contracts

There is no premium revenue in respect of investment contracts. Amounts received from policyholders in respect
of investment contracts comprise:

(i) origination fees and ongoing investment management fees. See note 2(u).

(i) amounts credited directly to investment contract liabilities. See note 2(r).
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Fee and other revenue

Fees are charged to customers in connection with investment contracts and other financial services contracts.
Revenue is recognised as services are provided. In some cases services are provided at the inception of the
contract while other services are performed over the life of the contract.

Investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and an investment-management services element. The
payment by the policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of
the contract. In many cases, that origination fee is based on amounts paid to financial planners for providing initial
advice. The financial instrument is classified as an investment contract and is measured at fair value. See note
2(r).

The revenue that can be attributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amounts paid to
financial advisers is also recognised as an expense at that time. See note 2(x).

Fees for on-going investment management services and other services provided are charged on a regular basis,
usually daily, and are recognised as the service is provided.

Fees charged for performing a significant act in relation to funds managed by the Branch are recognised as
revenue when that act has been completed.

(v) Investment gains or losses

Dividend and interest income are recognised in the income statement on an accruais basis when the Branch
obtains control of the right to receive the revenue.

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses include realised gains and losses being the change in value between
the previously reported value and the amount received on de-recognition of the asset or liability and unrealised
gains and losses being changes in the fair value of financial assets recognised in the period.

{w) Insurance claims and related expense

Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contract claims are separated into their expense and withdrawal components. The component that
relates to the bearing of risks is treated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of
withdrawals, are recognised as a decrease in life insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder under the life insurance contract has been established
or upon notification of the insured event, depending on the type of claim,

Investment contracts
There is no claims expense in respect of investment contracts. Amounts paid to policyholders in respect of
investment contracts are withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities (see note

2(r)).
(x) Operating expenses

All operating expenses, other than those allocated to life insurance contracts (see note 2(q)), are expensed as
incurred.

The majority of investment contracts issued result in payments to external service and advice providers. Where
the amount paid equates to a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount is expensed
either at inception or over the period of the contract consistent with the basis for recognising the fee revenue on
the respective contracts (see note 2(u)).

Operating lease payment

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term or other systematic basis representative of the patterns of the benefits obtained. Operating lease
incentives are recognised as a liability when received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments
between rental expense and reduction of the liability.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

{y) Finance costs
Finance costs include:

(i) Borrowing costs:
-interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings
-amortisation of discounts or premiums related to borrowings

(i) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs

(i) Foreign exchange gains and losses and other financing related amounts.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.
(z) Superannuation funds

Certain controlled entities are participating employers in the AMP (New Zealand) Staff Superannuation Plan (the
Plan) that provides benefits for employees and their dependants on resignation, retirement, disability or death of
the employee. The Plan has both defined contribution and defined-benefit sections. The Plan is no longer open to
new members.

For the defined contribution section, the Branch pays contributions to the Plan on a mandatory basis. The Branch
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised in the
Income statement as an operating expense when they fall due.

For the defined benefit sections, the Branch recognises the net deficit or surplus position in the Statement of
financial position. The deficit or surplus is measured as the difference between the fair value of the fund's assets
and the discounted defined-benefit obligation of the fund. The defined-benefit obligation is calculated annually,
with half-yearly reviews, by independent actuaries.

After taking into account any contributions paid into the defined-benefit sections during the period, movements in
the net surplus or deficit, except actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in the Income statement. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions over the period are
recognised in full (net of tax), directly in other comprehensive income.

Contributions paid into defined benefit sections are recognised as reductions in the deficit.

Contributions are also paid to other defined contribution schemes. The employer has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid and the contributions are recognised in the Income statement
as an employment benefit expense when they fall due.

(aa) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively

with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the face of the income
statement and the assets and liabilities are presented separately on the face of the statement of financial position.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimates and assumptions is a necessary part of the financial reporting process and
these judgements, estimates and assumptions can have a significant effect on the reported amounts in the
financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are determined based on information available to management
at the time of preparing the financial statements and actual results may differ from these estimates and
assumptions. Had different estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a significant impact on
the financial statements. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each
reporting date in the light of historical experience and changes to reasonable expectations of future events.
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions include but are not limited to:

(a) Consolidation

Entities are included within the consolidated financial statements of the Branch where the Branch has control of
these entities. Control arises from exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with an entity, where
the Branch has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Judgement is applied by management in assessing whether control exists. Judgement is applied in determining
the relevant activities of each entity and determining whether AMP Life has power over these activities. This
involves assessment of the purpose and design of the entity, identification of the activities that significantly affect
that entity’s returns and how decisions are made about those activities. In assessing how decisions are made,
management considers voting and veto rights, contractual arrangements with the entity or other parties and any
rights or ability to appoint, remove or direct key management personnel or entities that have the ability to direct the
relevant activities of the entity. Consideration is also given to the practical ability of other parties to exercise their
rights.

Judgement is also applied in identifying the variable returns of each entity and assessing AMP Life's exposure to
these returns. Variable returns include distributions, exposure to gains or losses and fees that may vary with the
performance of an entity.

(b) Fair value of investments in financial assets

The Branch measures investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Where available, quoted
market prices for the same or similar instruments are used to determine fair value. Where there is no market price
available for an instrument, a valuation technique is used. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation
techniques and setting valuation assumptions. Further detail on the determination of fair value of financial
instruments is set out in note 20.

(c) Tax

The application of tax law to the specific circumstances and transactions of the Branch requires the exercise of
judgement by management. The tax treatments adopted by management in preparing the financial statements
may be impacted by changes in legislation and interpretations or be subject to challenge by tax authorities.

Judgement is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of deferred tax assets
is probable for the purpose of meeting the criteria for recognition as deferred tax assets.

(d) Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where the Branch has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation. Management apply judgement in assessing whether a particular item
satisfies the above criteria and in determining the best estimate. Note 15 sets out further information on provisions
and Note 27 provides information of contingent liabilities which management determined did not meet the criteria
for recognition as provisions.

(e) Life Insurance contract liabilities

The measurement of life insurance contract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MoS)
methodology. The determination of the liability amounts involves judgement in selecting the valuation methods and
profit carriers for each type of business and setting valuation assumptions. The determination is subjective and
relatively small changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the reported profit. The Board of AMP
Life Limited is responsible for these judgements and assumptions, after taking advice from the Appointed Actuary.
Further detail on the determination of life insurance contract liabilities is set out in Note 17.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(f) Investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value. For the majority of contracts, the fair value is determined
based on published unit prices and the fair value of backing assets, and does not generally require the exercise of
judgement. For fixed income products, fair value is determined using valuation models. Judgement is applied in
selecting the valuation model and setting the valuation assumptions. Further details on investment contract
liabilities are set out in Note 18.

(g) Defined benefit plan liabilities

A subsidiary of the Shareholder Fund operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires contributions to the
Fund to be made to a separately administered fund. The fair value of the defined benefit plan liability of the
Branch is measured using actuarial valuations.. An actuarial valuation involved making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligations is highly sensitive to changes in the assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each valuation date. The discount rate is determined by reference to the Government
bond rate.

Further detail about the defined benefit plan liabilities is set out in note 23.

(h) Intangible assets

Accounting standards require management to assess, at each reporting period, whether there are any indicators
of impairment in relation to the carrying value in intangible assets. Where an impairment indicator is identified, and
at least annually for assets with indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount of the asset must be determined

and compared to the carrying amount.

Judgement is applied by management in assessing whether there are any impairment indicators and, where
required, determining the recoverable amount. Further detail about intangible assets is set out in note 13.

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Branch is not required to present segment reporting under NZ IFRS 8 Operating Segments.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

5. REVENUE AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note $000 3000 $000 $000
(a) Fee revenue
Investment management fees 6,870 6,195 3,716 2,470
Service fees'" 163,792 154,897 . -
Total fee revenue 170,662 161,092 3,716 2,470
(b) Other revenue
Other revenue 6,245 3,882 - -
Total other revenue 6,245 3,882 - -
(c) Investment gains and (losses)
Interest ¥
- other entities 114,383 101,572 51,996 47,219
Dividends and distributions
- subsidiaries - - - 1,019
- associated entities 9,896 9,276 34 32
- related parties 13,184 17,389 - 702
- other entities ‘ 710 2,279 1 1
Net realised and unrealised gains and losses® (73,376) 167,014 8,245 240,945
Other investment income (399) 536 (826) (80)
Total investment gains and (losses) 64,398 298,066 59,450 289,838
Investments in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 1,137 6,561 290,130 196,870
Debt securities 29,620 48,163 2,042 1,628
Investments in unlisted investment schemes 244,999 145,933 88 (2,732)
Derivative financial assets (218,215) 85,590 (234,482) 91,851
Investments in financial assets at amortised cost
Debt securities 3,586 3,797 - -
Other investment gains
Bank and other 3,670 7,486 2,498 2,301
Miscellaneous income (399) 536 (826) (80)
Total investment gains and (losses) 64,398 298,066 59,450 289,838

M Fee revenues include fee income from trust and fiduciary activities that result in the holding or investing of assets on behalf of

individuals, trusts, retirement plans, and other institutions.

) Interest includes interest income from financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, designated as such upon

initial recognition.

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses include net gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities

designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
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AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

6. EXPENSES
Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated

Note $000 3000 $000 3000
(a) Operating expenses
Commission expense 66,722 64,804 18,164 22,291
investment management expenses 17,986 12,552 1,824 1,505
Fee and commission expenses 84,708 77,356 19,988 23,796
Wages and salaries 57,305 55,187 - -
Superannuation costs — defined contribution scheme 5,013 4,107 - -
Other staff costs 998 713 - -
Staff and related expenses 63,316 60,007 - -
Service fee expense - related parties 28(c)(ii) 15,346 11,548 42,497 46,386
Service fee expense recovery — related parties 28(d)(ii) (8,442) (14,368) - -
Auditor's remuneration 29 643 757 290 304
Minimum lease payments - Operating lease 3,998 4,905 - -
Depreciation and amortisation 7,764 3,823 - -
IT and communication 17,774 25,253 1 3
IT consulting 6,874 16,420 2 23
Other expenses 33,046 36,022 857 1,886
Other operating expenses 77,003 84,360 43,647 48,602
Total operating expenses 225,027 221,723 63,635 72,398
(b) Finance costs
Interest (income) expense on borrowings - 15 - 5
Other finance costs 283 104 294 104
Total finance costs 283 119 294 109
7. INCOME TAX

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated
$000 $000 $000 $000

(a) Analysis of income tax (credit) expense
Current tax expense 35,329 39,317 32,932 31,681
(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax assets {(20,918) (2,988) (23,760) -
(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax liabilities (66,707) 13,180 (66,707) 13,180
Under / (over) provided in previous years including
amounts attributable to policyholders:
- current tax (7,681) 3,668 (3,497) 646
- deferred tax 6,835 (2,625) 2,837 -
Income tax (credit) expense (53,142) 50,552 (58,195) 45,507
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7. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b) Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The following provides a reconciliation of differences between prima facie tax calculated at 28% (2012: 28%) of
the profit before income tax for the year and the actual income tax expense recognised in the Income statement
for the year. The income tax expense amount reflects the impact of both income tax attributable to the
shareholders as well as income tax attributable to policyholders.

Income tax attributable to policyholders is based on investment income allocated to policyholders less expenses
deductible against that investment income. The impact of the tax is charged against the policyholder liabilities. The
rate applicable to New Zealand life insurance business during the period was 28% (2012: 28%).

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated
$000 3000 $000 $000
Profit (loss) before income tax from continuing operations (13,295) 135,257 (30,053) 113,860
Profit (loss) before tax from discontinued operations - (13,688) - -
Total profit (loss) before income tax (13,295) 121,569 (30,053) 113,860
Policyholder tax credit (expense) recognised as part of the
change in policyholder liabilities in determining profit before
income tax 35,207  (37,495) 35,207  (37,495)
Profit before income tax excluding policyholder tax 21,912 84,074 5,154 76,365
e emm———————————————————————————— oo eee—re—e—ererrmmree)
Prima facie shareholder tax at the rate of 28% (2012: 28%) 6,135 23,541 1,443 21,382
Tax effect of the differences between recognition of
income statement items for accounting and those
deductible / assessable in calculating taxable income:
Shareholder impact of life tax treatment (16,073) (7,242) (16,073) (7,242)
Non-taxable or deductible items 172 449 - -
Investment revenue related items (9,947) (3,298) (10,501) (5,349)
Other items 39 (85) (4) (30)
Over / (under) provided in previous years after excluding
amounts attributable to policyholders 1,739 (352) 2,147 (749)
Income tax (credit) expense attributable to shareholder (17,935) 13,013 (22,988) 8,012
Income tax (credit) expense attributable to policyholders (35,207) 37,495  (35,207) 37,495
Aggregate Income Tax (credit) expense (53,142) 50,508  (58,195) 45,507
S —
Income Tax (credit) expense attributable to:
Continuing operations (53,142) 50,552  (58,195) 45,507
Discontinued operations - (44) - -
(53,142) 50,508 (58,195) 45,507
00—
(c) Analysis of deferred tax asset
Fair value adjustment on investments 23,677 - 23,677 -
Accruals and provisions 12,602 12,786 83 -
Plant and equipment and capitalised costs {2,000) 3,048 - -
Defined benefit superannuation scheme 1,033 3,219 - -
Other 602 722 - -
Total deferred tax assets 35,914 19,775 23,760 -
.. .|
(d) Analysis of deferred tax liability
Deferred acquisition cost within policy liabilities 143,931 161,439 143,931 161,439
Fair value adjustments on investments - 43,565 - 43,565
Accruals and provisions - (78) - (78)
Non-Life risk margins 2,477 - 2,477 -
Portfolio Investment Entity allocated income 18,078 23,430 18,078 23,430
Total deferred tax liabilities 164,486 228,356 164,486 228,356
S —
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7. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(e) Unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences not recognised

There are no unused tax losses or deductible temporary differences not recognised (2012: nil) in either the
Branch or the Group.

(f) Dividend withholding payment account

The Branch has elected to maintain a dividend withholding payment account.

Consolidated and

Parent
2013 2012
$000 $000
Opening balance brought forward 6,615 6,615
Closing balance 6,615 6,615
T —

(g) Imputation credit account

Under the imputation system, the Branch may allocate or impute the tax it pays on its income attributable to its
shareholder on the distributions it makes to its shareholder.

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 3000
Closing balance 287,106 228,028 234,644 239,207

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In June 2012, the Board of a controlied entity in which the Branch has an investment, disposed of its investment in
the Donaghys group of companies (which was involved in the agricultural and marine industries).

(a) Financial performance of operations disposed of:
Consolidated

2013 2012

$000 3000
Revenue - 6,700
Expenses - (7,213)
L.oss on Disposal - (13,175)
Profit (loss) for the year before income tax - (13,688)
Income tax (expense) credit - 44
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations for the year - (13,644)
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests - 7,557
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to the shareholder of AMP
Life Limited - (6,087)
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8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) The major assets and liabilities of the Donaghys group at the date of disposal were as follows:

2013 2012

$000 $000
Receivables - 12,031
Inventories and other assets - 13,231
Plant and equipment - 4,824
Intangibles - 5,207
Other assets - 113

- 35,406
Payables - (7,993)
Borrowings - (3,534)
Other liabilities - (4,342)
- (15,869)

Net assets attributable to discontinued operations - 19,537
(c) Consideration received or receivable: 2013 2012

$000 3000
Cash - 4,000
Present value of deferred sales proceeds - 2,362
Total disposal consideration - 6,362
Less net assets disposed of - 19,537
Loss on disposal before income tax - (13,175)
Income tax credit - 44
L.oss on disposal after income tax - (13,131)
(d) Net cash flows of operations disposed of: 2013 2012

$000 3000
Operating activities - 73
Financing activities - (73)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) -

9. RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Parent

2013 2012 2013 2012

$000 $000 $000 $000
Investment income receivable!" 6,267 4,999 2,428 2,142
Investment sales and margins accounts receivable!" 98,161 954 95,310 -
Life insurance contract premiums receivable 30,755 30,427 30,755 30,427
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable 5,382 6,580 5,382 6,580
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 28,936 12,668 28,936 12,668
Other receivables
- related entities 9,466 24,999 1,755 1,756
- other entities 28,625 25,024 6,841 6,218
Total receivables 207,592 105,651 171,407 59,791

For the Parent $16m (2012: nil) and for the Group $23.2m (2012: $7.4m) of total receivables is expected to be

recovered more than 12 months from reporting date.

) Receivables backing insurance and investment liabilities and carried at fair value.
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10.  INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

Consolidated Parent

2013 2012 2013 2012

$000 $000 $000 $000
Investments in financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Investments in controlled entities backing insurance
contract liabilities and investment liabilities - - 1,805,826 1,515,700
Equity securities and listed managed investment
schemes 11,469 10,484 - -
Debt securities 1,095,176 949,888 51,488 36,011
Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes 1,381,882 1,332,613 15,482 16,251
Derivative financial assets!” 81,670 224,632 32,098 173,244
Total investment in financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss 2,570,197 2,517,617 1,904,894 1,741,206
Investments in financial assets measured at
amortised cost
Investment in controlled entities by the Shareholder
Fund - - 2,000 2,005
Loans 49,932 53,606 - -
Loans to controlled entities - - 1,071,152 1,071,146
Loans to related parties 4,025 - - -
Total investments measured at amortised cost 53,957 53,606 1,073,152 1,073,151
Total investment in financial assets 2,624154 2571223 2,978,046 2,814,357

Al financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss with the exception of derivative financial
assets that are classified as trading under NZ 1AS 39.

11. OTHER ASSETS

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 3000 $000 $000
Prepayments 1,740 2,210 - -
Total other assets 1,740 2,210 - -

(i) All other assets are expected to be recovered within 12 months from the reporting date.
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12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2013 Office fittings, Computer &
furniture and communication

equipment equipment Total
Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 13,335 17,689 31,024
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (7,283) {10,086) (17,369)
Plant and equipment at written down value 6,052 7,603 13,655
Movements in plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,895 6,594 11,489
Additions 2,493 2,788 5,281
Disposals (19) - {19)
Depreciation expense for the period (1,317) (1,779) (3,096)
Balance at the end of the year 6,052 7,603 13,655
31 December 2012 Office fittings, Computer &

furniture and communication

equipment equipment Total
Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount 10,864 14,901 25,765
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (5,969) (8,307) (14,276)
Plant and equipment at written down value 4,895 6,594 11,489
Movements in plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,360 1,005 11,365
Additions 2,215 5,503 7.718
Disposals (5,356) - (5,356)
Depreciation expense for the period (1,133) (1,267) (2,400)
Reclassification between asset classes (1,191) 1,191 -
Transfer from intangible assets - 162 162
Balance at the end of the year 4,895 6,594 11,489

There was no restriction on the title of any assets as at 31 December 2013 or 2012.
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13. INTANGIBLES

31 December 2013 Capitalised Costs Total
Consolidated $000 $000
Intangibles
Gross carrying amount 49,012 49,012
Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (28,234) (28,234)
Intangibles at written down value 20,778 20,778
Movements in intangibles
Balance at the beginning of the year 19,916 19,916
Additions 168 168
Amortisation expense (4,668) (4,668)
Additions — assets under construction 5,362 5,362
Balance at the end of the year 20,778 20,778
31 December 2012 Goodwill Capitalised Costs Total
Consolidated $000 $000 $000
Intangibles
Gross carrying amount - 43,482 43,482
Less: accumulated amortisation and impairment losses - (23,566) (23,566)
Intangibles at written down value - 19,916 19,916
Movements in intangibles
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,320 17,728 19,048
Additions - 7,660 7,660
Disposals (1,320) (3,887) (5,207)
Amortisation expense - (1,423) (1,423)
Transfer to plant and equipment - (162) (162)
Balance at the end of the year - 19,916 19,916
14. PAYABLES

Consolidated Parent

2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000

Life insurance contracts in process of settlement 18,974 22,919 18,974 22,919
Other payables
- subsidiaries and related entities 38,981 8,871 312,079 93,329
- reinsurers 2,297 5,682 2,297 5,682
- other entities 23,814 25,247 7,297 7,395
Total payables 84,066 62,719 340,647 129,325

()$1.9m (2012: $0.9m) of payables are expected to be settled more than 12 months from reporting date.
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16. PROVISIONS

Consolidated Parent

2013 2012 2013 2012

$000 $000 $000 $000
(a) Provisions
Employee entitlements 11,176 12,156 - -
Loyalty bonuses 21,253 21,421 - -
Rectification 4,385 5,707 - -
Other 2,159 1,708 - -
Total provisions 38,973 40,992 - -

Consolidated Employee Loyalty

entitlements bonuses Rectification Other Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(b) Movements in provision
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,156 21,421 5,707 1,708 40,992
Additional provisions made during the year 3,756 1,494 1,064 2,370 8,684
Provision transferred from related parties - - 2,000 500 2,500
Provisions used during the year (4,736) {1,662) (632) (1,438)  (8,468)
Reversal of unused provision - - (3,754) (981) (4,735)
Balance at the end of the year 11,176 21,253 4,385 2,159 38,973
S —

Employee entitlements
Employee entitlements include provision for holiday pay and long service leave.

Loyalty Bonuses

For some financial products managed by a subsidiary of the Shareholder Fund, an amount is payable to
customers primarily depending upon the length of time those customers have remained within the product plan.
This loyalty bonus has been calculated based on best estimate assumptions about future customer behaviour.
Some bonuses are payable at set dates, however others will not be paid until the customer exits a product. As
such it is not always possible to estimate when liabilities will fall due

Rectification Provision

This provision primarily relates to the expected costs associated with fulfilling and rectifying certain service level
obligations to some Branch managed entities and entities where the Branch provides, or has provided
administration services. The liabilities are based on an average of the cost of historical unit pricing errors that have
been made. This is deemed to be management'’s best estimate and the provision is expected to crystallise over
the next year.

Other Provisions

Other provisions include restructuring and make good provisions. The restructuring provision relates to costs
incurred in the process of significantly restructuring operational areas of the business. Prior to 31 December 2013
the Branch undertook action, incurred the obligation and was committed to this expenditure. The provision is
determined based on the Branch's following policy:

+ Eight times One Week's Salary for the employee’s first year of current continuous service with the Company or
part year thereof; plus

+  Two times One Week’s Salary for each subsequent year of service or part year thereof. The amount is based
on their current salary determined at the date of termination.

The make good provision represents the future obligation for make good costs relating to two of the current

premises occupied by members of the consolidated group. The provisions are expected to be utilised by 2019 and
2021 respectively.
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15. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated Employee Loyalty
entitlements bonuses Rectification Other Total
2013 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Current 10,759 1,488 4,385 1,570 18,202
Non-Current 417 19,765 - 589 20,771
11,176 21,253 4,385 2,159 38,973
Consolidated Employee Loyalty
entitlements bonuses Rectification Other Total
2012 $000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Current 11,526 1,499 4,246 1,354 18,625
Non-Current 630 19,922 1,461 354 22,367
12,156 21,421 5,707 1,708 40,992

16. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Summary of AMP’s share-based payment plans
A subsidiary of the Shareholder Fund is one of a number of participating employers within the AMP Limited share-
based payments scheme.

The narrative below (with the exception of the first table) relates to the scheme as a whole, of which the
Company’s employees only represent a portion of participating employees.

AMP Limited (AMP) has a number of employee share-based payment plans. Share-based payments place
employees participating in those plans (participants) in the position of the shareholder, and in doing so, reward
employees for the generation of value to shareholders. Information on plans which AMP currently offers is
provided below.

The following table shows the expense recorded by the Branch for AMP share-based payment plans during the
year:

Consolidated and Parent

2013 2012

$000 $000
Plans currently offered
Performance rights 368 336
Share rights 619 295
Restricted shares 15 83
Employee share acquisition plan - matching shares 1 3
Total share-based payments expense 1,003 717

(b) Performance rights

Plan description

The CEO and his direct reports, as well as selected senior executives, are required to take their long-term
incentive (LT1) awards in the form of performance rights. This is to ensure that those executives, who are most
directly able to influence company performance, are appropriately aligned with the interests of shareholders. The
LTI awards of other participants are comprised of either a mix of performance rights and share rights, or share
rights only.

A performance right is a right to acquire one fully paid ordinary share in AMP Limited after a three-year
performance period at no cost to the participant (i.e. effectively a share option with a zero exercise price), provided
a specific performance hurdle is met. Prior to conversion into shares (vesting), performance rights holders do not
receive dividends or have other shareholder benefits (including any voting rights). From September 2011,
performance rights may be settled through a cash payment in lieu of shares, at the discretion of the board.

AMP has, from time to time historically, offered share bonus rights to employees in overseas domiciles when it is
not possible or tax-efficient to grant performance rights. The terms and conditions of the share bonus rights are

identical to the terms and conditions of the performance rights, except settlement is in cash rather than equity
instruments. These share bonus rights were last granted to employees in 2010.
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16. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Performance rights (continued)

The performance hurdle

Historically, LTl awards in the form of performance rights were subject to a single relative total shareholder return
(TSR) performance hurdle. After an extensive review of market practices, conducted in 2012, the board
determined that AMP should introduce a return on equity (RoE) performance measure, in addition to a TSR
measure.

The vesting of performance rights granted since the 2013 LTi award are now be based on two performance

hurdles as follows:

- 50 per cent of the LTI award value, granted as performance rights, will be subject to AMP's TSR performance
relative to the top industrial companies in the S&P/ASX 100 Index (TSR tranche), and

- 50 per cent of the LTI award value, granted as performance rights, will be subject to a RoE measure (RoE
tranche).

The number of performance rights that vest is determined as follows:

TSR tranche: Vesting of these performance rights is dependent on AMP's TSR performance relative to a
comparator group of Australian listed companies over a three-year performance period. TSR measures the benefit
delivered to shareholders over the given period, which includes dividend payments, capital returns and movement
in the share price. The performance hurdle was chosen because it requires participants to outperform major ASX
listed companies before the awards generate any value.

RoE tranche: Vesting of these performance rights is based on AMP's RoE performance for the year ending 31
December 2015. Prior to the 2013 grant being awarded, the board determined the threshold and maximum RoE
performance targets (expressed as percentage outcomes) to be achieved for the year ending 31 December 2015.
A RoE hurdle was chosen as it drives a strong capital discipline which is a key contributor to creating sustainable
shareholder value.

Conversion to shares

If the awards vest, they are automatically converted to shares on behalf of participants. Upon conversion,
participants become entitled to shareholder benefits, including dividends and voting rights. The board has the
discretion to satisfy vested rights by either acquiring shares on-market or through the issuance of shares. AMP's
practice has been, and intention is to continue, to source the shares to satisfy LTI awards on-market, so that the
issue of LTI's does not dilute the value of AMP Limited shares. In the case of the CEQ, the vesting of shares may
only be provided by AMP procuring the transfer of shares purchased on-market.

Treatment of performance rights on ceasing employment and change of control

Typically, unvested LTIl awards lapse at the end of the employee's notice period if the participant resigns from
AMP or their employment is terminated for misconduct or inadequate performance. In other cases, such as
retirement and redundancy, LTI awards may be retained by the participant, with vesting continuing to be subject to
the same vesting conditions as if they had remained in AMP employment. In the event that AMP is subject to a
takeover or change of control, unvested performance rights, granted prior to September 2011, typically vest.

Commencing from the performance rights granted in September 2011, the board has the discretion to determine
an alternative treatment on cessation of employment and change of control (i.e. to determine that the LTI awards
would lapse, are retained or vest when they would not have otherwise), if deemed appropriate in the light of
specific circumstances.

Plan valuation

The fair value of a TSR performance right has been calculated as at the grant date, by external consultants using
a simulation technique known as a Monte Carlo simulation. Fair value of the TSR performance rights has been
discounted for the probability of not meeting the TSR performance hurdles. The fair value of a RoE performance
right has been calculated as at the grant date, by external consultants using a ‘discounted cash flow’ methodology.
Fair value has been discounted for the present value of dividends expected to be paid during the vesting period to
which the participant is not entitled. RoE is a non-market based performance hurdie and therefore, in accordance
with NZ IFRS 2, allowance cannot be made for the impact of this hurdle in determining the award’s fair value.

In determining the share-based payments expense, the number of instruments expected to vest has been
adjusted to reflect the number of employees expected to remain with AMP until the end of the performance period.

For the purposes of the valuation it is assumed performance rights are exercised as soon they have vested.
Assumptions regarding the dividend yield and volatility have been estimated based on AMP’s actual historic
dividend yield and volatility over an appropriate period.
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16. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Performance rights (continued)
Plan valuation (continued)

The following table shows the factors which were considered in determining the independent fair value of the
performance rights granted during 2013 and the comparative period (2012):

TSR RoE
. TSR RoOE
. - Risk- performance performance
Grant Date Sha;r\eUPDnce Contriafl:tual Dl;;(:fdnd Volatility1 frfe1 Per'f&rrrg; nee Pertf‘?jrrﬂlaence rightls fair right‘sfair
rate discount discount? fu‘::? ‘;\au‘;;’
6/06/2013 $4.97 3.0 years 5.6% 23% 2.5% 60% 0% $2.00 $4.21
y
7/06/2012 $3.85 2.7 years 6.3% 26% 2.3% 67% n/a $1.28 n/a
9/09/2011 $4.15 29 years 5.9% 34% 3.7% 54% n/a $1.92 n/a
Y

' Applies to performance rights subject to a relative TSR performance hurdle only. These factors do not apply to
performance rights subject to an RoE performance hurdle.

2 In accordance with the accounting standard NZ IFRS 2, allowance cannot be made for the impact of a non-
market based performance hurdle in determining fair value.

The following table shows the movement in performance rights (and share bonus rights with performance
conditions) outstanding during the period:

. . . Exercised Granted .
GrantDate  LioelSe Exerciseprice  Balanceatl  duringthe  duringthe PSS EUERG  BATEEE L)
year year
8/09/2010 01/08/2013- Nil 93,923 . . (93.923) -
31/07/2015

9/09/2011 n/a? Nl 159,355 - - . 159,355
7/06/2012 n/a* Nl 223218 . - . 203218
6/06/2013 nla? Nil - . 168,454 - 168,454
Total 476,496 0 168454  (93,923) 551,027

]
The weighted average remaining contractual life of performance rights outstanding at the end of the period is 1.4
years.

*The performance rights granted during 2011, 2012 and 2013 have no exercise period as they are automatically
exercised upon vesting.

From the end of the financial year and up to the date of this report, no performance rights have been issued, no
performance rights have been exercised, and no performance rights have lapsed. Of the performance rights
outstanding at the end of the period, none have vested or become exercisable.

(c) Share rights

Plan description

As described above, LTI participants below the CEO and his direct reports may be awarded share rights as part of
their overall LTI award.

A share right is a right to acquire one fully paid ordinary share in AMP Limited after a specified service period at no
cost to the participant, provided a specific service condition is met. The service period is typically three years, but
may vary where the share rights are awarded to retain an employee for a critical period. Prior to conversion into
shares (vesting), share rights holders do not receive dividends or have other shareholder benefits (including any
voting rights).

As this program is designed as a means of recognising and retaining employees, no performance hurdies apply,
other than continued service for the duration of the three-year period.

AMP has, from time to time historically, offered share bonus rights without performance conditions to employees in
overseas domiciles when it is not possible or tax-efficient to grant share rights or restricted shares. The terms and

conditions of the share bonus rights are identical to the terms and conditions of the share rights, except settlement
is in cash rather than equity instruments. These share bonus rights were last granted to employees in 2010.
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16. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
(c) Share rights (continued)

Conversion to shares

If the awards vest, they are automatically converted to shares on behalf of participants. Upon conversion,
participants become entitled to shareholder benefits, including dividends and voting rights. The board has the
discretion to satisfy vested rights by either acquiring shares on-market or through the issuance of shares. AMP's
practice has been, and intention is to continue, to source the shares to satisfy LTl awards on-market, so that the
issue of LTIs does not dilute the value of AMP Limited shares.

Treatment of share rights on ceasing employment and change of control

Typically, unvested share rights lapse if the participant resigns from AMP or is terminated for misconduct or
inadequate performance. In other cases, such as retirement and redundancy, the participant typically retains their
share rights at the board’s discretion. In the event that AMP is subject to a takeover change of control, treatment of
unvested share rights is subject to the board's discretion.

Plan valuation

The fair value of share rights has been calculated as at the grant date, by external consultants using a ‘discounted
cash flow’ methodology. Fair value has been discounted for the present value of dividends expected to be paid
during the vesting period to which the participant is not entitled.

In determining the share-based payments expense, the number of instruments expected to vest has been
adjusted to reflect the number of employees expected to remain with AMP until the end of the performance period.

For the purposes of the valuation it is assumed share rights are exercised as soon they have vested. Assumptions
regarding the dividend yield have been estimated based on AMP’s actual historic dividend yield over an
appropriate period.

STl deferral plan

The nominated executives and selected other senior leaders who have the ability to impact AMP’s financial
soundness, participate in the AMP STl deferral plan. The plan requires that 40 per cent of a participant's STI
award be delivered in rights to AMP shares (share rights). The share rights convert to AMP Limited shares (i.e.
vest) after a two-year deferral period. Vesting is subject to on-going employment, compliance with AMP policies
and the board’s discretion.

STI match plan

For each given year, high potential employees at a senior leader level are eligible for nomination to participate in
the STI match plan, which provides an award of share rights to the value of 50 per cent of the individual's STI. The
STl match award is provided in addition to the STI cash opportunity. Employees at this level are not eligible to
participate in AMP's long-term incentive plan. As the STI match is based on the STl plan, the number of share
rights awarded to the participant depends on the individual’'s contribution to company performance during the
financial year.

STl match share rights convert to AMP Limited shares (i.e. vest) after a two-year deferral period. Vesting is subject
to on-going employment, compliance with AMP policies and the board's discretion.

The following table shows the factors which were considered in determining the independent fair value of the
share rights granted during 2013 and the comparative period (2012):

Grant Date i'&ge Price Contractual Life Dividend Yield Dividend discount Ze:)irDvalue

6/06/2013 $4.97 3.0 years 5.6% 15% $4.21

30/04/2013 $5.40 1.8 years 5.6% 10% $4.87

7/06/2012 $3.85 2.7 years 6.3% 17% $3.19

27/04/2012 $4.25 1.8 years 6.3% 11% $3.78
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16. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
(c) Share rights (continued)

The following table shows the movement in share rights (and share bonus rights without performance conditions)
outstanding during the period.

Exercise Exercised Granted

08/09/2010 01/08/2013- Nil 10219 (10,219) - ;
31/07/2015
09/09/2011 n/a* Nil 53,307 - - - 53,307
27/04/2012 n/a’ Nil 79,239 - - - 79,239
27/04/2012 n/a* Nil 33,246 - . - 33,246
07/06/2012 n/a* Nil 69,087 - - - 69,087
30/04/2013 n/a* Nil - - 90,608 (2,325) 88,283
06/06/2013 n/a* Nil - - 62,149 - 62,149
Total 245,098 (10,219) 152,757 (2,325) 385,311

e ererere———————————————————————————————————————————_a—————__a822t A5ttt Attt AP P———— PP e e e ettt}
' The weighted average remaining contractual life of share rights (and share bonus rights without performance
conditions) outstanding at the end of the period is 0.9 years.
*The share rights granted during 2011, 2012 and 2013 have no exercise period as they are automatically
exercised upon vesting.

From the end of the financial year and up to the date of this report, no share rights have been issued, no share
rights have been exercised, and no share rights have lapsed. Of the share rights outstanding at the end of the
period, none have vested or become exercisable.

(d) Restricted shares

Plan description

From time to time, AMP awards restricted shares to retain critical employees. Additionally, prior to 2011, Australian
LTI participants were eligible to take some of their award in restricted shares (rather than share rights). In
overseas domiciles, including New Zealand, when it is not possible or tax-efficient to grant share rights or
restricted shares, AMP has from time to time historically offered share bonus rights without performance
conditions. The terms and conditions of the share bonus rights are identical to the terms and conditions of the
restricted shares, except settlement is in cash rather than equity instruments. These share bonus rights were last
granted to employees in 2010.

A ‘restricted share’ is an ordinary AMP share that has a holding lock in place until the specified vesting period
ends. The vesting period is typically three years, but may vary where the restricted shares are awarded to retain
an employee for a critical period. During this time, the holder is eligible for dividends, but is unable to sell, transfer
or hedge their award.

As this program is designed as a means of recognising and retaining employees, no performance hurdles apply,
other than continued service for the duration of the three-year holding lock. If the individual resigns from AMP (or
employment is terminated for misconduct or inadequate performance) during the holding period, the shares are
forfeited.

In cases such as retirement and redundancy, the individual retains their restricted shares; however the holding
lock remains in place until the end of the three-year vesting period. Restricted shares are bought on market and
granted at no cost to employees.

Plan valuation

The fair value of restricted shares has been determined as the market price of AMP ordinary shares on the grant
date. As employees holding restricted shares are entitled to dividend payments, no adjustment has been made to
the fair value in respect of future dividend payments. In determining the share-based payments expense for the
period, the number of instruments expected to vest has been adjusted to reflect the number of employees
expected to remain with AMP until the end of the vesting period.
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16. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
(d) Restricted shares (continued)

The following table shows the number of restricted shares that were granted during 2013 and the comparative
period (2012), and the fair value per instrument of restricted shares as at the grant date.

Grant Date Number granted Weighted average fair value
AUD

2013 0 na’

2012 0 n/a’

' No restricted shares were granted to New Zealand employees during 2012 and 2013.

(e) Employee Share Acquisition Plan

Plan description

From time to time, AMP has provided employees and executives with the opportunity to become shareholders in
AMP through the employee share acquisition plan (ESAP), typically by way of salary sacrificing their fixed
remuneration or short-term incentive to acquire shares. Depending on the terms of the particular award,
participants may be entitled to receive matching shares for shares acquired under the ESAP (e.g. the most recent
awards provided one free share for every 10 shares acquired via salary sacrifice). Additionally, AMP can provide
employees with free shares under the ESAP. Where the awards are acquired at no cost to the participant, service-
based conditions must be met for the participant to receive their full entittement. There are no performance hurdles
applying to the plan as it is primarily designed to encourage employee share ownership.

The plan was suspended mid-way through 2009 in Australia due to the changes to the taxation treatment of
employee share plan awards. Consequently, no shares have been acquired by Australian employees under the
ESAP plan since mid-2009. The plan continues to operate in New Zealand.

If applicable, matching shares are bought on market through an independent third party.

Participants who cease to be employed within the AMP group within the three-year holding period may lose their
entitlement to some or all of their matching shares or free shares, depending on the reason for leaving the
company. To receive the maximum entitlement, participants must be employed by AMP for the whole three-year
period.

Plan valuation

All awards made during 2013, and the comparative year (2012), were offers to salary sacrifice to acquire shares,
with matching shares awarded on a one-for-ten basis after a three-year vesting period. Each matching share has
been valued by external consultants as the face value of an AMP ordinary share at the date the salary sacrifice
shares were acquired, less the present value of the expected dividends (to which the participant is not entitled until
the end of the vesting period). The number of matching shares expected to be granted is estimated based on the
average number of shares held in the ESAP by each employee at the beginning of each year. in determining the
share-based payments expense for the period, the number of matching shares expected to be granted has been
adjusted to reflect the number of employees expected to remain with AMP until the end of the three-year vesting
period.

The following table shows the number of matching shares expected to be granted based on the shares purchased
by employees under the ESAP during the current period and the comparative period, and the fair value.

Estimated number Weighted average fair value
Grant Date of matching AUD
shares to be
granted
2013 - various 421 $4.14
2012 - various 535 $3.51
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Consolidated and Parent

2013 2012

$000 $000
(a) Analysis of life insurance contract premium and related revenue
Total life insurance contract premiums received and receivable 216,879 219,697
Less: component recognised as change in life insurance contract liabilities (13,044) (14,359)
Life insurance contract premium revenue ‘" 203,835 205,338
Reinsurance recoveries 11,824 14,971
Total life insurance contract premium and related revenue 215,659 220,309
(b) Analysis of life insurance contract claims and related expenses
Total life insurance contract claims paid and payable 223,584 218,279
Less: component recognised as a change in life insurance contract liabilities (21,406) (24,222)
Life insurance contract claims expense 202,178 194,057
Outwards reinsurance expense 14,163 14,394
Total life insurance contract claims and related expenses 216,341 208,451
(c) Analysis of life insurance operating expenses
Life insurance contract acquisition expenses
- Commission 4,021 8,109
- Other expenses 17,659 18,288
Life insurance contract maintenance expenses
- Commission 13,987 13,976
- Other expenses 25,121 29,667
Investment management expenses 6,565 4,930
(d) Life insurance contract liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities determined using projection method
Best estimate liability
- Value of future life insurance contract benefits 1,964,472 2,282,273
- Value of future expenses 395,709 444322
- Value of future premiums (1,941,433) (2,188,743)
Value of future profits
- Life insurance contract holder bonuses 476,387 394,678
- shareholders’ profit margins 384,837 380,610
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using projection
method 1,279,972 1,313,140
Life insurance contract liabilities determined using accumulation
method
Best estimate liability
- Value of future life insurance contract benefits 117,840 122,186
Total life insurance contract liabilities determined using accumulation
method 117,840 122,186
Value of declared bonus 20,110 16,818
Unvested policyholder benefits liabilities'” 489,650 452,263
Total life insurance contract liabilities before reinsurance 1,907,572 1,904,407
Add: Reinsurers share of life insurance contract liabilities 28,936 12,668
Total life insurance contract liabilities per the Statement of financial
position 1,936,508 1,917,075

) Life insurance contract i i i i i i i i i
premium revenue consists entirely of direct insurance premiums, there is no inward reinsurance
component.

) For participating business in the Branch, part of the assets in excess of the life insurance contract and other liabilities
calculated under MoS are attributed to policyholders. Under the Life Act, this is referred to as policyholder retained profits. For
the purpose of reporting under accounting standards, this amount is referred to as unvested policyholder benefits liabilities and is
included within life insurance contract liabilities even though it is yet to be vested as specific policyholder entitiements.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated and Parent

2013 2012
$000 3000
(e) Reconciliation of changes in life insurance contract liabilities
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 1,917,075 1,818,412
Change in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the Income
statement 11,528 103,865
Changes in reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 16,267 4,661
Premiums recognised as an increase in life insurance contract 17(a)
liabilities 13,044 14,359
Claims recognised as a decrease in life insurance contract liabilities 17(a) {(21,406) (24,222)
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the end of the year 1,936,508 1,917,075
S —

(f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities, and hence the net profit from life insurance contracts, are calculated by applying
the principles of Margin on Services (MoS). Refer to note 2(q) for a description of MoS and the methods for
calculating life insurance contract liabilities.

The methods and profit carriers used to calculate life insurance contract liabilities for particular policy types are as
follows:

Profit carriers (for business valued

Business Type Method using projection method)
Conventional Projection Bonuses

Investment account Modified accumulation N/A

Retail Risk (lump sum) Projection Expected premiums
Retail Risk (income protection) Projection Expected premiums
Group Risk (lump sum) Accumulation N/A

Group Risk (income benefits) Accumulation N/A

Life annuities Projection Annuity payments

Key assumptions used in the calculation of life insurance contract liabilities are as follows:
(i) Risk free discount rates
Except where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, a risk-free discount rate

based on current observable, objective rates that relate to the nature, structure and term of the future obligations is
used. The rates are determined as shown in the following table‘":

31 December 31 December
Business Type Basis 2013 2012
Retail risk (other than income Zero coupon government bond yield
benefit open claims) curve 3.2% - 5.4% 25%-4.1%
Group risk and Retail risk (income  zero coupon government bond yield
benefit open claims) curve (including liquidity premium) 3.5%-5.7% 2.8% - 4.4%
Zero coupon government bond yield
Life annuities (non-CP1) curve (including liquidity premium) 3.6%-5.7% 2.9% - 4.5%
Government indexed bond yield curve
Life annuities (CPI) (including liquidity premium) 2.2%-3.8% 1.0% - 2.0%

" The discount rates vary by duration in the range shown above.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
(continued)

(ii) Participating business discount rates

Where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets held, as is the case for participating
business, a discount rate based on the expected market return on backing assets is used. The assumed earning
rates for backing assets for participating business are largely driven by long-term (eg 10 year) government bond
yields. The 10 year government bond yields used at the relevant valuation dates are as shown below.

Assumed earning rates for each asset sector are determined by adding to the bond yield various risk premiums
which reflect the relative differences in expected future earning rates for different asset sectors. For products
backed by mixed portfolio assets, the assumption varies with the proportion of each asset sector backing the
product. The risk premiums applicable at the valuation date are shown in the table below:

10 Year
Government International Fixed
Bonds Local equities equities Property interest Cash
31 December 2013 4.8% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.6% (0.5%)
31 December 2012 3.6% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5%)

The risk premium for local equities includes allowance for imputation credits. The risk premium for fixed interest
reflects credit ratings of the portfolio held.

The averages of the asset mixes assumed for the purpose of setting future investment assumptions for
participating business at the valuation date are as shown in the table below. These asset mixes are not
necessarily the same as the actual asset mix at the valuation date as they reflect long term assumptions.

Equities Property Fixed interest Cash
31 December 2013 40% 17% 37% 6%
31 December 2012 40% 17% 37% 6%

The asset mix in the table above includes both conventional and investment account business. Where an
assumption used is net of tax, then tax on investment income is allowed for at rates appropriate to the class of
business and asset sector, including any allowance for imputation credits on equity income. For this purpose, the
total return for each asset sector is split between income and capital gains. The actual split has varied at each
valuation date as the total return has varied.

(i) Future participating benefits

For participating business, the total value of future bonuses (and the associated shareholders’ profit margin)
included in life insurance contract liabilities is the amount supported by the value of the supporting assets, after
allowing for the assumed future experience. The pattern of bonuses and shareholders profit margin assumed to
emerge in each future year depends on the assumed relationship between reversionary bonuses (or interest
credits) and terminal bonuses. This relationship is set to reflect the philosophy underlying actual bonus
declarations.

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the investment returns of the particular fund and
other factors in the emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include:

» allowance for an appropriate degree of benefit smoothing,

e reasonable expectations of policyholders,

e equity between generations of policyholders applied across different classes and types of business, and

e on going capital adequacy.

Given the many factors involved, the range of bonus structures and rates for participating business is extremely
diverse.

Typical supportable bonus rates on major product lines are as follows (31 December 2012 in parentheses):

Reversionary Bonus

Bonus on sum insured 0.9%-1.3% (0.4%-0.7%)
Bonus on existing bonuses 0.9%-1.3% (0.4%-0.7%)
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17.  LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
(continued)

(iii) Future participating benefits (continued)

Terminal Bonus
The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, product lines and class of business.

Crediting Rates (investment account) 3.9%-5.2% (2.9%-3.1%)
(iv) Future maintenance and investment expenses

Unit maintenance costs are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the reporting date (including GST,
as appropriate and excluding one-off expenses). For future years, these are increased for inflation as described in
(v) below. These expenses include fees charged to the life statutory fund by the service company. Unit costs vary
by product line and class of business based on an apportionment which is supported by expense analyses.

Future investment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by the asset managers.
(v) Inflation and indexation

Benefits and premiums under many regular premium policies are automatically indexed by the published
consumer price index (CPIl). Assumed future take-up of these indexation options is based on AMP Life's own
experience with the annual future CPI rates derived from the difference between long-term government bonds and
indexed government bonds.

The assumptions for expense inflation have regard to these rates, recent expense performance, AMP Life's
current plans and the terms of the relevant service company agreement, as appropriate.

The assumed annual inflation and indexation rates at 31 December 2013 are 2.5% for CPl and 3.0% for expenses
(31 December 2012: 2.5% for CPI and 3.0% for expenses).

(vi) Bases of taxation

The bases of taxation (including deductibility of expenses) are assumed to continue in accordance with legislation
current at the valuation date.

(vil) Voluntary discontinuance

Assumptions for the incidence of withdrawals, paid ups and premium dormancy are primarily based on
investigations of AMP Life's own historical experience. These rates are based upon the assessed global rate for
each of the individual products (or product groups) and then, where appropriate, further adjusted for duration
premium structure, smoker status, age attained or short-term market and business effects. Given the variety of
influences affecting discontinuance for different product groups the range of voluntary discontinuance rates across
AMP Life is extremely diverse.

The assumptions for future rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life insurance contracts are shown in
the table below.

Business Type 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Conventional 11%-19% 1.3%-25%

Retail risk (lump sum) 12.0%-13.0% 105%-12.0%

Retail risk (income benefit) 7.0% - 12.0% 7.0% - 12.0%
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17.  LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
(continued)

(viii) Surrender values

The surrender bases assumed for calculating surrender values are those current at the reporting date. There have
been no changes to the bases during the year (or the prior year) that would materially affect the valuation results.

(ix) Mortality and morbidity

Standard mortality tables, based on national or industry wide data, are used. These are then adjusted by factors
that take account of AMP Life’s own experiences.

Rates of mortality assumed at 31 December 2013 are unchanged from those assumed at 31 December 2012.

Typical mortality assumptions in aggregate, are as follows:

Conventional 73% (M/F) 1A95 — 97"
Term 63% (M/F) 1A95 — 97 @
Annuities 95% IMLO0* / 80% IFLOO*

) Base IA 95-97 table modified for future mortality improvements

@ Base |A 95-97 death without riders table modified based on our aggregated experience but with overall
product specific adjustment factors

@ Annuities table modified for future mortality improvements

For Income Protection business the assumptions used are the IAD89-93 standard table modified for AMP

Australia and New Zealand combined experience with overall product specific adjustment factors. The adjustment

factors include age, gender, occupation, waiting period, duration on claim, benefit band and benefit period.

Typical morbidity assumptions in aggregate are as follows:

Incidence rates - % of IAD89-93 Termination rates(ultimate) - % of IAD89-93
Income protection 45%-67% 57%-67%

For TPD and trauma business no changes have been made to the assumptions used at 31 December 2012
The actuarial tables used were as follows:

IA95-97 A mortality table developed by the Actuaries Institute of Australia based
on Australian insured lives experience from 1995 to 1997.
The table has been modified to allow for future mortality improvement.

IMLOO* / IFLOO* IMLOO and IFLOO are mortality tables developed by the Actuaries Institute
and the Faculty of Actuaries based on United Kingdom annuitant lives
experience from 1999 to 2002. The tables refer to male and female lives
respectively and incorporate factors that allow for mortality improvements
since the date of the investigation. IMLOO * and IFLOO* are these
published tables amended for some specific AMP experience.

IAD89-93 A disability table developed by the Actuaries Institute of Australia based
on Australian disability income experience from 1989 - 1993. The table
has been extensively modified based on our aggregate experience.
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17.  LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(f) Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities

(continued)

(x) Impact of changes in assumptions

Under MoS, for life insurance contracts valuations using the projection method, changes in assumptions are
recognised by adjusting the value of future profit margins in life insurance contract liabilities. Future profit margins

are released over future periods.

Changes in actuarial assumptions do not include market related changes in discount rates such as changes in
benchmark market yields caused by changes in investment markets and economic conditions. These are
reflected in both life insurance contract liabilities and asset values at the reporting date.

The impact on future profit margins of changes in actuarial assumptions from 31 December 2012 to 31 December
2013 in respect of life insurance contracts (excluding new business contracts which are measured using

assumptions at reporting date) is as shown in the table below:

Change in future profit Change in life insurance Change in shareholder
Assumption change margins ($000) contract liabilities ($000) profit and equity ($000)
Non-market related changes to
discount rates 1,545 (141) 141
Mortality and morbidity (9,067) - -
Discontinuance rates (4,850) - -
Maintenance expenses 2,745 8 (8)
Other assumptions ‘" 30,286 -

" Other assumption changes include the impact of product and premium rate changes.

In most cases, the overall amount of life insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are not affected
by changes in assumptions. However, where in the case of a particular related product group, the changes in
assumptions at the end of a period eliminate any future profit margins for the related product group, and results in
negative future profit margins, this negative balance is recognised as a loss in the current period. If the changes in
assumptions in a period are favourable for a product group currently in loss recognition, then the previously

recognised losses are reversed in the period.

{g) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis - life insurance contracts

For life insurance contracts which are accounted for under MoS, amounts of liabilities, income or expense
recognised in the period are unlikely to be sensitive to changes in variables even if those changes may have an

impact on future profit margins.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis - life insurance contracts (continued)

This table shows information about the sensitivity of life insurance contract liabilities, current year shareholder
profit after income tax, and equity, to a number of possible changes in assumptions relating to insurance risk:

Change in life insurance Change in shareholder profit
contract liabilities after income tax and equity
Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Variable {$000) {$000) {$000) ($000)
10 % increase in
Mortality mortality rates (1,518) (1,518) 1,518 1,518
50 % increase in the rate
Annuitant mortality of mortality improvement 668 668 (668) (668)
Morbidity — lump sum 20 % increase in lump
disablement sum disablement rates - - - -
Morbidity — disability 10 % increase in
income incidence rates - - - -
Morbidity — disability 10 % decrease in
income recovery rates - - -
10 % increase in
Discontinuance rates discontinuance rates - - - -
10 % increase in
Maintenance expenses maintenance expenses 70 70 (70) (70)

(h) Life insurance risk

The life insurance activities of AMP Life involve a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing,
acceptance and management of the mortality, morbidity and iongevity risks accepted from policyholders, often in
conjunction with the provision of wealth-management products.

The design of products carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promotional
materials are clear, unambiguous and do not leave AMP Life open to claims from causes that were not
anticipated. Product prices are set through a process of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life
and industry experience and specific product design features. The variability inherent in insurance risk, including
concentration risks, is managed by having a large portfolio of individual risks, underwriting and use of reinsurance.

Underwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting department, with formal underwriting limits and
appropriate training and development of underwriting staff. Individual policies carrying insurance risk are
underwritten on their merits and are generally not issued without having been examined and underwritten
individually. Individual policies that are transferred from a group scheme are generally issued without underwriting.
Group risk insurance policies meeting certain criteria are underwritten on the merits of the employee group as a
whole.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceptance limits and
appropriate training and development of staff to ensure payment of all genuine claims. Claims experience is
assessed regularly and appropriate actuarial reserves are established to reflect up-to-date experience and any
anticipated future events. This includes reserves for claims incurred but not yet reported.

AMP Life reinsures (cedes) to specialist reinsurance companies a proportion of its portfolio or certain types of
insurance risk, inciuding catastrophe. This serves primarily to:
i reduce the net liability on large individual risks
ii. obtain greater diversification of insurance risks
jii. provide protection against large losses

The specialist reinsurance companies are regulated by APRA or industry regulators in other jurisdictions and have
strong credit ratings from A- to AA+.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(h) Life insurance risk (continued)

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts
The nature of the terms of the life insurance contracts written by AMP Life such that certain external variables can
be identified on which related cash flows for claim payments depend. The table below provides an overview of the
key variables upon which the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows of the various life insurance contracts

issued by AMP Life depend.

Type of contract

Detail of contract workings

Nature of compensation for
claims

Key variables affecting
future cash flows

Non-participating life
insurance contracts with
fixed and guaranteed
terms (term life and
disability and yearly
renewable)

These policies provide
guaranteed benefits, which
are paid on death or ill-health,
that are fixed and not at the
discretion of AMP Life.
Premium rates for yearly
renewable business are not
guaranteed and may be
changed at AMP Life’s
discretion for the portfolio as
a whole.

Benefits, defined by the
insurance contract, are not
directly affected by the
performance of any
underlying assets or the
performance of any
associated investment
contracts as a whole.

Mortality, morbidity, lapses,
expenses and market earning
rates on assets backing the
liabilities.

Life annuity contracts

In exchange for an initial
single premium, these
policies provide a guaranteed
regular income for the life of
the insured.

The amount of the
guaranteed regular income is
set at inception of the policy
including any indexation.

Longevity, expenses and
market earning rates on
assets backing the liabilities.

Conventional life
insurance contracts with
discretionary participating
benefits (endowment and
whole of life)

These policies combine life
insurance and savings. The
policyholder pays a regular
premium and receives the
specified sum assured plus
any accruing bonuses on
death or maturity. The sum
insured is specified at
inception and guaranteed.
Reversionary bonuses are
added annually, which once
added (vested) are
guaranteed. A further
terminal bonus may be added
on surrender, death or
maturity.

Benefits arising from the
discretionary bonuses are
based on the performance of
a specified pool of contracts
and the assets supporting
these contracts.

Market earning rates on
assets backing the liabilities,
interest rates, lapses,
expenses, and mortality.

Investment account
contracts with
discretionary participating
features

The gross value of premiums
received is invested in the
investment account with fees
and premiums for any
associated insurance cover
being deducted from the
account balance when due.
Interest is credited regularly.

The payment of the account
balance is generally
guaranteed, although it may
be subject to certain penalties
on early surrender or limited
adjustment in adverse
markets. Operating profit
arising from these contracts
is allocated between the
policyholders and
shareholders with not less
than 80% allocated to
policyholders. Distribution of
policyholder profit is through
an interest rate mechanism.

Fees, lapses, expenses and
market earning rates on the
assets backing the liabilities,
interest rates.
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17. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(i) Liquidity risk and future net cash outflows

The table below shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities.
This includes estimated future surrenders, death/disability claims and maturity benefits, offset by expected future
premiums or contributions and reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted to the reporting date using the
assumed future investment earning rate for each product.

Up to 1 year 1to 5years Over 5 years Total

$000 $000 $000 $000
31 December 2013 8,000 17,000 620,000 645,000
31 December 2012 23,000 17,000 561,000 601,000

18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES

Consolidated and Parent

2013 2012
$000 $000
(a) Analysis of life insurance and investment contract profit
Components of profit related to life insurance and investment contract
liabilities:
- Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 46,004 42,304
- Profits (losses) arising from difference between actual and assumed
experience (32,535) (294)
- Capitalised (losses) reversals 134 (58)
Profit related to life insurance and investment contract liabilities 13,603 41,952
Attributable to:
- Life insurance contracts 12,718 41,309
- Investment contracts 885 643
Investment earnings on assets in excess of life insurance and
investment contract liabilities 14,539 26,401

(b) Restrictions on assets in statutory fund

AMP Life conducts investment linked and non-investment linked business. For investment linked business,
deposits are received from policyholders, the funds are invested on behalf of the policyholders and the resulting
liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities.

The Life Act requires the life insurance business of AMP Life to be conducted within life statutory funds.

AMP Life has three statutory funds. All of the business of the Branch is held in the No.1 statutory fund. The
business includes whole of life, endowment, investment account, retail and group risk, investment linked and
immediate annuities.

Investments held in the life statutory fund can only be used in accordance with the relevant regulatory restrictions
imposed under the Life Act and associated rules and regulations. The main restrictions are that the assets in a
statutory fund can only be used to meet the liabilities and expenses of that fund, to acquire investments to further
the business of the fund or as distributions provided solvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements
are met. See further details about solvency and capital adequacy in Note 17(d).

c) Capital guarantees

Consolidated and Parent

2013 2012
$000 3000
Life insurance contracts with a discretionary participating feature
- Amount of the liabilities that relate to guarantees 1,472,550 1,492,530
Investment linked contracts
- Amount of the liabilities subject to investment performance
guarantees 1,445 1,797
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(d) Capital requirements

The RBNZ has granted AMP Life a full licence to carry on insurance business in New Zealand under IPSA. As part
of the grant of that license, AMP Life was granted certain exemptions from IPSA by virtue of its status as an
Australian regulated entity. This status requires AMP Life to ensure that it meets all standards and regulations
applicable in Australia and enforced by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority. In Australia, AMP life is
required to hold prudential reserves, over and above its life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities,
as a buffer against adverse experience and poor investment returns. New prudential capital standards for
Australian Life and General Insurance Companies (LAGIC) were introduced effective 1 January 2013. This LAGIC
framework is intended to take account of the full range of risks to which a regulated institution is exposed and
introduces the prescribed capital amount (PCA) requirement. The PCA is the minimum level of capital that the
regulator deems must be held to meet policyholder obligations. The regulatory capital base and prescribed capital
amounts at 31 December 2013 have been calculated based on the new standards. Capital disclosures prior to 1
January 2013 were based on the capital standards in place at the time and have not been restated to reflect the
LAGIC requirements.

In addition to the regulatory capital requirements, AMP Life maintains a target surplus providing additional capital
buffer against adverse events. AMP Life uses internal capital models to determine its target surplus, with the
models reflecting the risks of the business, principally the risk of adverse asset movements relative to the liabilities
and of worse than expected claims costs.

As described previously, LAGIC prescribes a PCA requirement for registered life insurance entities. The assets
included and policies issued in the Branch financial statements represent only a segment of the AMP Life Limited
No. 1 Statutory Fund, and as such separate capital reserves are not required to be maintained specifically for the
Branch

The excess of AMP Life’s capital base over the prescribed capital amount required under LAGIC as at 31
December 2013 for the entire AMP Life Limited No 1 Statutory Fund was AUD535m.

Prior to 1 January 2013, AMP Life was required to hold prudential reserves based on the greater of the
requirements under solvency and capital adequacy standards. The purpose of the solvency requirement was to
ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the life company was able to meet all existing liabilities as they
became due. The capital adequacy requirement was a separate requirement (usually greater), taking into account
viability as a going concern. These were specified in the Life Act, the previous LPS 2.04 Solvency Standard and
LPS 3.04 Capital Adequacy Standard.

The Appointed Actuary of AMP Life has confirmed that the available assets of the AMP Life Limited No. 1
Statutory Fund have exceeded PCA at all times during 2013 and exceeded the previous capital adequacy and the
solvency reserve required at all times during 2012,

The PCA and solvency requirements shown below are stated in Australian dollars and apply to the entire AMP Life
Limited No 1 Statutory Fund.

2013

2013 Prescribed Capital Amount (PCA) AUD $m
Capital base
Net assets as per Life Insurance Act 1,817
Total regulatory adjustments to net assets 741
Common equity Tier 1 Capital 1,076
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 1 Capital -
Tier 2 Capital 170
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 Capital ‘-
Total capital base A 1,246

T———
Prescribed capital )
Asset risk charge 396
Operational risk charge 84
Combined stress scenario adjustment 23
Total Prescribed Capital Amount (PCA) B 711

———
Capital adequacy multiple A/B 175%
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Capital requirements (continued)

No 1 Statutory Fund

2012

2012 Solvency and Capital Adequacy AUD $m
Solvency requirement
Net minimum termination value (MTV) 19,715
Adjusted other liabilities 2,378
Solvency reserve B 2,518
Total solvency requirement A 24,611
Assets available for solvency
Net assets 1,824
Liability for unvested policy owner benefits 1,374
Excess of net policy liabilities (including policyholder bonuses)
over MTV 697
Total assets available for solvency c 3,895

——
Solvency reserve % (B/{A-B))*100 11.4%
Coverage of solvency reserve Cc/B 1.5

(e) Actuarial information

Mr Rocco Mangano (BA, FIA, FIAA), as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, is satisfied as to the accuracy of the
data used in the valuations in the Financial Statements and in the tables in this Note and Note 17.

The liabilities to policyholders (being the sum of the life insurance contract and investment contract liabilities,
including any asset or liability arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract)
and regulatory capital requirements have been determined at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act.
() Amounts which may be recovered or settled within 12 months after the reporting date

Based on assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns of the various product groups, it is estimated that
approximately $210m (2012: $242m) of policy liabilities may be settled within 12 months from the reporting date.
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(9) Disaggregated information
The Life Act requires the life insurance business of AMP Life to be conducted within a life statutory fund that is

separate to the AMP Life Limited Shareholder Fund. Information for all major components of the financial
statements disaggregated between the Statutory Fund and the Shareholder Fund is provided within this note.

(i) Income statement by non-investment linked and investment linked
Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
3000 $000 $000 $000 3000 $000

Income and expenses of
policyholders and the
shareholder

Life insurance premium and

related revenue - 215,659 - 215,659 - 215,659
Fee revenue 3,716 - - 3,716 - 3,716
Investment gains and (losses) 16,634 42,816 - 59,450 - 59,450
Life insurance claims and
related expenses - (216,341) - (216,341) - (216,341)
Operating expenses (1,428) (62,207) - (63,635) - (63,635)
Finance costs (5) (289) - (294) - (294)
Change in policyholder liabilities
-Life insurance contracts - (11,528) - (11,528) - (11,528)
-Investment contracts (17,080) - - (17,080) - (17,080)
Profit (loss) before income
tax 1,837 {31,890) - {30,053) - (30,053)
Income tax credit (expense) (952) 59,147 - 58,195 - 58,195
Net profit for the year 885 27,257 - 28,142 - 28,142
Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Income and expenses of
policyholders and the
shareholder
Life insurance premium and
related revenue - 220,309 - 220,309 - 220,309
Fee revenue 2,470 - - 2,470 - 2,470
Investment gains and (losses) 15,414 274,424 - 289,838 - 289,838
Life insurance claims and
related expenses - (208,451) - (208,451) - (208,451)
Operating expenses (1,273) (71,125) - (72,398) - (72,398)
Finance costs (5) (104) - (109) - (109)
Change in policyholder liabilities
-Life insurance contracts - (103,865) - (103,865) - (103,865)
-lnvestment contracts (13,934) - - (13,934) - (13,934)
Profit (loss) before income
tax 2,672 111,188 - 113,860 - 113,860
Income tax credit (expense) (2,029) (43,478) - (45,507) - (45,507)
Net profit for the year 643 67,710 - 68,353 - 68,353

T T T BB 'Ry
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(9) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i) Statement of financial position by non-investment linked and investment linked

Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
3000 $000 $000 3000 3000 $000
Assets R R i
Investments in financial assets 280,622 2,744,189 (48,765) 2,976,046 2,000 2,978,046
Other assets (58,450) 283,917 - 225,467 - 225,467
Total assets of policyholders and ’ i e
the shareholder 222172 3,028,106 (48,765) 3,201,513 2,000 - 3,203,513
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities e 1,936,508 - 1,936,508 - 1,936,508
Investment contract liabilities 114,059 - - 114,059 - 114,059
Other liabilities 58,463 604,587 (48,765) 614,285 - 614,285
Total liabilities of policyholders
and the shareholder 172,522 2,541,095 {48,765) 2,664,852 - 2,664,852
Net assets 49,650 487,011 . 536,661 2,000 538,661
Equity
Retained earnings 49,650 487,011 - 536,661 2,000 538,661
Total equity 49,650 487,011 - 536,661 2,000 538,661
Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Elimination Fund Fund Parent
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
$000 3000 $000 $000 3000 $000
Assets
Investments in financial assets 214,152 2,627,491 (29,291) 2,812,352 2,005 2,814,357
Other assets (125,049) 140,226 98,106 113,283 (5) 113,278
Total assets of policyholders and
the shareholder 89,103 2,767,717 68,815 2,925,635 2,000 2,927,635
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities - 1,917,075 - 1,917,075 - 1,917,075
Investment contract liabilities 110,631 - - 110,631 - 110,631
Other liabilities (22,170) 312,109 68,815 358,754 - 358,754
Total liabilities of policyholders
and the shareholder 88,461 2,229,184 68,815 2,386,460 - 2,386,460
Net assets 642 538,533 - 539,175 2,000 541,175
Equity
Retained earnings 642 538,533 - 539,175 2,000 541,175
Total equity 642 538,633 - 539,175 2,000 541,175
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(9) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i) Retained earnings by non-investment linked and investment linked

Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Fund Fund Parent
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
3000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Opening retained earnings 642 538,533 539,175 2,000 541,175
Profit for the year 885 27,257 28,142 - 28,142
Transfer of profit to parent branch - (30,656) (30,656) - (30,656)
Transfer (642) 642 - - -
Closing retained earnings 885 535,766 536,661 2,000 538,661
Non Total
Investment Investment Statutory Shareholder Total
Linked Linked Fund Fund Parent
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
$000 3000 3000 $000 $000
Opening retained earnings 882 469,940 470,822 2,000 472,822
Profit for the year 642 67,710 68,353 - 68,353
Transfer (882) 882 - - -
Closing retained earnings 642 538,533 539,175 2,000 541,175

Consolidated and Parent

2013 2012
$000 $000
(h) Analysis of other life insurance and investment contract
operating expenses
Other life insurance and investment contract acquisition expenses
- Commission 6 37
- Other expenses 226 122
Other life insurance and investment contract maintenance expenses
- Commission 151 169
- Other expenses 630 544
Investment management expenses 496 480
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCL.OSURES

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk management (FRM) in AMP Life is conducted as part of the AMP Limited group’s enterprise risk
management framework. The AMP Limited Audit Committee, supported by the AMP Limited Group Asset and
Liability Committee (“Group ALCQO"), is responsible for ensuring financial risks are appropriately managed.

(a) Risks and mitigation

Financial risks arising in the Branch include market risk; liquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk. These risks
are managed according to the Enterprise Risk Management Policy and individual policies for each risk category.
This financial risk management includes the use of derivative financial instruments such as cross-currency and
interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and foreign currency contracts to hedge risk
exposures arising from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Financial risk management includes decisions made about the allocation of investment assets across asset
classes and/or markets and the management of risks within these asset classes. Financial risk for investments in
the AMP Limited group is managed by reference to the probability of loss relative to expected income over a one-
year time horizon at a 90 per cent confidence level (profit at risk). In respect of investments held in the
Shareholder Fund and Statutory Fund, the loss tolerance over the discretionary investments is set at a low level
because the Branch has equity market exposure in its businesses (for example through fees on assets under
management).

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
movements in market prices. These movements include foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads,
equity prices or property prices. Market risk in AMP Life, including the Branch, arises from the management of
insurance contracts and investment of shareholder capital including investments in equities, property, interest
bearing investments and corporate debt.

{b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

The paragraphs below include sensitivity analysis tables showing how the profit after tax, and equity, would have
been impacted by changes in market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined in NZ
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. They show the direct impact on the profit after tax, and equity, of a
reasonably possible change in factors which affect the carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities
held at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity is required to show the impact of a reasonably possible change in market rate. It is not intended to
illustrate a remote, worst case, stress test scenario nor does it represent a forecast. In addition it does not include
the impact of any mitigating management actions over the period to the subsequent reporting date. The categories
of risks faced and methods used for deriving sensitivity information did not change from previous periods.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
movements in market interest rates, including changes in the absolute levels of interest rates, the shape of the
yield curve, the margin between different yield curves and the volatility of interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in various activities of the
Branch. Management of those risks is decentralised according to the activity. Details are as follows:

. Investment assets of the Statutory Fund including interest-bearing financial assets are held to back
investment contract liabilities, life insurance contract liabilities, retained profits and capital.

. The interest rate risk of the Branch which impacts shareholders arises in respect of financial assets and
liabilities held in the Shareholder Fund and in the Statutory Fund. A risk arises to the extent that there is an
economic mismatch between the timing of payments to life policyholders and the duration of the assets held
in the Statutory Fund to back the policyholder liabilities. Where a liability in respect of investment contracts is
directly linked to the value of the assets (where applicable, net of related liabilities) held to back that liability
(investment-linked business), there is no residual interest rate exposure which would impact the shareholder.

. Management of various risks associated with investments undertaken by the Statutory Fund and the
Shareholder Fund, including interest rate risk, is subject to the relevant regulatory requirements governed by
the Life Act. AMP Life is required to satisfy capital adequacy requirements, including holding statutory
reserves to cater for interest rate risk to the extent that assets are not matched against liabilities.
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

AMP Life manages interest rate and other market risks pursuant to an asset and liability management policy that
has regard to policyholder expectations, and risks to the AMP Life Board's target surplus philosophy for capital as
advised by the Appointed Actuary.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

This analysis demonstrates the impact on profit after tax and equity of a 100 basis points change in New Zealand
and international interest rates, with all other variables held constant. It is assumed that all underlying exposures
and related hedges are included in the sensitivity analysis, that the 100 basis point change occurs as at the
reporting date and that there are concurrent movements in interest rates and parallel shifts in the yield curves.
The impact on equity includes both the impact on profit after tax as well as the impact of amounts that would be
taken directly to equity in respect of the portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that qualify as cash flow
hedges for hedge accounting. A sensitivity level of 100 basis points is determined appropriate considering the
range of interest rates applicable to interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in the Branch.

2013 2012
Impact on Impact on
profit after  Impact on profit after Impact on
tax equity tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $000 $000 $000 3000
+ 100 basis points (5,312) (5,312) (22,530) (22,530)
- 100 basis points 10,931 10,931 12,729 12,729

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
movements in foreign exchange rates.

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement of currency rates against the New Zealand
dollar with all other variables held constant, on the profit after tax, and equity, due to changes in fair value of
currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date. 1t is assumed that the 10 per cent change
occurs as at the reporting date. A sensitivity level of 10% is determined considering the range of currency
exposures in the AMP group.

2013 2012
Impact on Impact on
profit after  Impact on profit after Impact on
tax equity tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $000 $000 $000 $000
10 % depreciation of NZD 2,509 2,509 1,471 1,471
10 % appreciation of NZD (2,608) (2,608) (1,463) (1,463)
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued)

(ifi) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
movements in equity prices. The Branch measures equity securities at fair value.

Equity price Sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement in New Zealand and international equities held
at the reporting date. This sensitivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity
instruments. Any potential indirect impact on fees from the Branch’s investment linked business is not included. A
sensitivity level of 10 per cent is determined considering the widely spread portfolios held by the Branch and the

range of movements in equity markets for the periods.

2013 2012
Impact on Impact on
profit after  Impacton profit after Impact on
tax equity tax equity
Increase Increase Increase increase
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $000 $000 $000 $000
10 % increase in New Zealand equities 1,499 1,499 935 935
10 % increase in international equities 2,509 2,509 1,710 1,710
10 % decrease in New Zealand equities (1,595) (1,595) (924) (924)
10 % decrease in international equities (2,608) (2,608) (1,702) (1,702)

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Branch will not be able to meet its obligations or other cash outflows as they fall

due because of an inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding when required

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Branch’s undiscounted financial liabilities at the
reporting date. The maturity profile is based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments that
are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

Maturity profile of undiscounted financial liabilities’ 0

Up to 1 year More than
2013 - Consolidated or no term 1 to 5 years 5 years Other ¥ Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Payables 80,167 1,634 313 1,952 84,066
Derivative financial liabilities 3,029 2,956 114,092 - 120,077
Investment contract liabilities™ - - - 114,059 114,059
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities 83,196 4,590 114,405 116,011 318,202
Upto 1 yearor More than
2012 - Consolidated no term 1to 5 years 5 years Other Total
3000 $000 3000 3000 3000
Payables 860,172 897 - 1,650 62,719
Derivative financial liabilities 682 1,904 1,679 - 4,265
Investment contract liabilities - - - 110,631 110,631
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities © 60,854 2,801 1,679 112,281 177,615
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity profile of undiscounted financial liabilities (continued)

Up to 1 year

More than

2013 — Parent or no term 1 to 5 years 5 years Other @ Total
$000 $000 3000 $000 $000

Payables 338,561 134 - 1,952 340,647

Derivative financial liabilities - - 109,152 - 109,152

Investment contract liabilities'” - - - 114,059 114,059

Total undiscounted financial

liabilities © 338,561 134 109,152 116,011 563,858

Up to 1 year or More than

2012 - Parent no term 1to 5 years 5 years Other Total
$000 3000 $000 3000 3000

Payables 127,677 - - 1,648 129,325

Derivative financial liabilities - - 1,073 - 1,073

Investment contract liabilities - - - 110,631 110,631

Total undiscounted financial

liabilities 127,677 - 1,073 112,279 241,029

™ The table provides maturity analysis of the Branch'’s financial liabilities and non-investment linked contracts
including term annuities.

@) Investment contract liabilities of $114.0m (2012: $110.6m) are liabilities to policyholders for investment linked
business linked to the performance and value of assets that back those liabilities. If all those policyholders claimed
their funds, there may be some delays in settling the liability as assets are liquidated, but the shareholder has no
direct exposure to any liquidity risk.

) Estimated net cash out flow profile of life insurance contract liabilities is disclosed in Note 17(i).

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk includes both settlement credit exposures and traded credit exposures. Credit default risk is the risk of
an adverse impact on results and asset values relative to expectations due to a counterparty failing to meet their
contractual commitments in full and on time (obligator's non-payment of a debt). Traded credit risk is the risk of an
adverse impact on results and asset values relative to expectations due to changes in value of a traded financial
instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrument.

The AMP Concentration Risk Policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk. The
policy has set exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating. Compliance with this policy is monitored and
exposures and breaches are reported to senior management and NZ ALCO.

Credit risk management is decentralised in business units within the AMP group. However, credit risk directly and
indirectly (i.e. in the participating business) impacting shareholder capital is measured and managed by AMP
Group Treasury on a Group basis, by aggregating risk from credit exposures taken in business units. Credit risk on
the invested fixed income portfolios in the Statutory Fund is managed by the AMP Capital Risk and Compliance
Committee (AMP Capital R&C) and reported to the fund managers, within specified credit criteria in the mandate
approved by the AMP Life Board. The shareholder portion of credit risk in the Branch is reported to NZ ALCO by
Group Treasury.

(i) Management of credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same counterparty or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other
conditions. Concentration of credit risk is managed through both aggregate credit rating limits and individual
counterparty limits, which are determined predominantly on the basis of the counterparty's credit rating.

At reporting date, there is no specific concentration of credit risk with a single counterparty arising from the use of

financial instruments, other than the normal clearing-house exposures associated with dealings through
recognised exchanges.
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(d) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Management of credit risk concentration(continued)

The counterparties to non-exchange traded contracts, at the time of entering those contracts, are limited to
companies with investment grade credit (BBB- or greater). The credit risks associated with these counterparties
are assessed under the same management policies as applied to direct investments in AMP Limited group’s
portfolio.

Compliance is monitored and exposures and breaches reported to senior management and NZ ALCO.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

The exposures on interest bearing securities and cash equivalents which impact the AMP Limited group’s capital
position are managed by AMP Group Treasury within limits set by the AMP Concentration Risk Policy. The

following table provides information regarding the credit risk exposures for items monitored by AMP Group
Treasury according to the credit rating of the counter parties.

2013 2012
Restated

$000 $000
AAA 49,534 78,853
AA 984,653 896,029
A 219,896 172,862
BBB 42,991 54,919
Below BBB 305 410
Unrated 2,648 1,861
Total financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss with credit
risk exposure managed by AMP Group Treasury” 1,300,027 1,204,934
Other assets 1,736,361 1,730,692
Total assets 3,036,388 2,935,626

e oo

" Balance mainly comprises interest bearing securities and cash equivalents

The unrated securities mainly comprise amounts due under deferred settlements of disposais of investments
in controlled entities during the year.
Balance includes all other financial and non financial assets with no credit risk exposure

(iii) Past due but not impaired financial assets
The following table provides an aging analysis of financial assets that are past due as at reporting date but not
impaired:

Past due but not impaired

Less than 31to 60 61-90 More than
2013 - Consolidated 30 days days days 91 days Total
$000 $000 3000 $000 $000
Other receivables — other entities 1,107 486 74 400 2,067
Reinsurance and other recoveries 3,610 385 - 1,387 5,382
Total ™ 4,717 871 74 1,787 7,449

Past due but not impaired

Less than 31to 60 61-90 More than

2012 - Consolidated 30 days days days 91 days Total

3000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Other receivables — other entities 484 136 105 1,656 2,381
Reinsurance and other recoveries 529 1,495 3,258 1,298 6,580
Total ¥ 1,013 1,631 3,363 2,954 8,961

e ——————————————————————————————————n]
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

(iii) Past due but not impaired financial assets (continued)

Past due but not impaired

Less than 31 to 60 6190 More than
2013 - Parent 30 days days days 91 days Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Reinsurance and other recoveries 3,610 385 - 1,387 5,382
Total ") 3,610 385 - 1,387 5,382

Past due but not impaired

Less than 31 to 60 61—-90 More than
2012 - Parent 30 days days days 91 days Total
$000 3000 $000 $000 $000
Other receivables — other entities 529 1,495 3,258 1,298 6,580
Total " 529 1,495 3,258 1,298 6,580

" For investment linked business, the liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the assets
that back those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any credit risk in those assets. Therefore,
the tables above do not show any past due financial assets that back investment linked business.

(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value in the Statement of financial position. Asset and liability
values on individual transactions are only netted if the transactions are with the same counterparty and the cash
flows will be settied on a net basis. Changes in values of derivative financial instruments are recognised in the
Income statement.

(i) Derivative transactions undertaken as part of life insurance operations

The Branch uses derivative financial instruments including financial futures, forward foreign exchange contracts,
exchange traded and other options and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movements on the
value of assets in the investment portfolios, and to effect a change in the asset mix of investment portfolios.

In respect of the risks associated with the use of derivative financial instruments, price risk is controlled by
exposure limits, which are subject to monitoring and review. Foreign exchange hedges are monitored on a regular
basis to ensure they are effective in the reduction of price risk.

(i) Risk relating to derivative financial instruments

The market risk of derivatives of the Branch is managed and controlled as an integral part of the financial risk of
the AMP group. The credit risk of derivatives is also managed in the context of the AMP group’s overall credit risk
policies.

(f) Master netting or similar arrangements

Derivative financial assets and liabilities

Certain derivative assets and liabilities are subject to legally enforceable master netting arrangements, such as an
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master netting agreement. In certain circumstances, for
example, when a credit event such as a default occurs, all outstanding transactions under an ISDA agreement are
terminated, the termination value is assessed and only a single net amount is payable in settlement of all
transactions.

An ISDA agreement does not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Statement of financial position as the Branch
does not have any currently legally enforceable right to offset recognised amounts, as the right to offset is
enforceable only on the occurrence of future events such as a default.

Consolidated:

As at 31 December 2013, if these netting arrangements were applied to the derivative portfolio, the derivative
assets of $81.6m would be reduced by $23.8m to the net amount of $57.8m and derivative liabilities of $120.0m
would be reduced by $23.8m to the net amount of $96.2m (31 December 2012: derivative assets of $224.6m
reduced by $3.1m to the net amount of $221.5m and derivative liabilities of $4.2m reduced by $3.1m to the net
amount of $1.1m).
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(f) Master netting or similar arrangements (continued)

Parent:

As at 31 December 2013, if these netting arrangements were applied to the derivative portfolio, the derivative
assets of $32.0m would be reduced by $19.0m to the net amount of $13.0m and derivative liabilities of $109.1m
would be reduced by $19.0m to the net amount of $90.1m (31 December 2012: derivative assets of $173.2m
reduced by $1.0m to the net amount of $172.1m and derivative liabilities of $1.0m reduced by $1.0m to the net
amount of $nil).

(g) Other collateral

AMP Life has collateral arrangements in place with some counterparties. Collateral generally consists of loans and
deposits and is exchanged between the counterparties to reduce the exposure from the net fair value of derivative
assets and liabilities between the counterparties.

Consolidated:

As at 31 December 2013 there was $2.7m of collateral deposits due to other financial institutions (2012: $nil) and
$98.1m of collateral loans due from other financial institutions relating to derivative assets and liabilities (2012:
$0.9m).

Parent:

As at 31 December 2013 there was $nil of collateral deposits due to other financial institutions (2012: $nil) and
$95.3m of collateral loans due from other financial institutions relating to derivative assets and liabilities (2012:
$nil)

20. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

The Branch’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value are categorised under a three level hierarchy, reflecting
the availability of observable market inputs when estimating the fair value. If different levels of inputs are used to
measure a financial instrument's fair value, the classification within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three levels are:

Level 1: Valued by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. These quoted
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arms length basis.

Level 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), including: quoted prices in active markets for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar
assets or liabilities, and other inputs that are not quoted prices but are observable for the asset or liability, for
example interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, currency rates, option volatilities,
credit risks, and default rates.

The fair value of listed debt securities that are not frequently traded are obtained using discounted cash flow
models. The fair value of unlisted debt securities is estimated using interest rate yields obtainable on comparable
listed investments.

The fair value of securities including equities, fixed interest securities, cash and properties that are held through
unlisted managed investment schemes are valued at published redemption prices of those managed investment
schemes at the reporting date.

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, option-pricing
models, discounted cash-flow methods and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

Equity investments of the parent represent investments in controlled entities and fair value is determined using the
net asset value of those investments.
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20. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Level 3: Valued in whole or in part using valuation techniques or models that are based on inputs that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor based on available
observable market data. Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available, which might
include the Branch’s own data, reflecting the Branch's own estimates about the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques are used to the extent that observable
inputs are not available, and include estimates about the timing of cash flows, discount rates, earnings multiples

and other inputs.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value by each level of the fair value

hierarchy:
Total fair
2013 - Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
$000 $000 3000 $000
Assets
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 11,469 - - 11,469
Debt securities - 1,095,176 - 1,095,176
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes - 1,377,457 4,425 1,381,882
Derivative financial assets 41,018 40,652 - 81,670
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 52,487 2,513,285 4,425 2,570,197
Liabilities
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial liabilities 2,932 117,145 - 120,077
Investment contract liabilities - 11,251 102,808 114,059
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 2,932 128,396 102,808 234,136
Total fair
2012 - Consolidated Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
$000 3000 3000 $000
Assets
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 10,484 - - 10,484
Debt securities - 949,888 - 949,888
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes - 1,329,695 2,918 1,332,613
Derivative financial assets 24,850 199,782 - 224,632
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 35,334 2,479,365 2,918 2,517,617
Liabilities
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial liabilities 533 3,732 - 4,265
Investment contract liabilities - 11,598 99,033 110,631
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 533 15,330 99,033 114,896
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20. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Total fair
2013 - Parent Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
$000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 1,805,826 - 1,805,826
Debt securities 51,488 - 51,488
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes 11,057 4,425 15,482
Derivative financial assets 32,098 - 32,098
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 1,900,469 4,425 1,904,894
Liabilities
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial liabilities 109,152 - 109,152
Investment contract liabilities 11,251 102,808 114,059
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 120,403 102,808 223,211
Total fair
2012 - Parent Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
$000 3000 3000 3000
Assets
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Equity securities and listed managed investment schemes 1,515,700 - 1,515,700
Debt securities 36,011 - 36,011
Investment in unlisted managed investment schemes 13,333 2,918 16,251
Derivative financial assets 173,244 - 173,244
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 1,738,288 2918 1,741,206
Liabilities
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial liabilities 1,073 - 1,073
Investment contract liabilities 11,598 99,033 110,631
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis 12,671 99,033 111,704
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20. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categorised
within Level 3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting date:

Total
gains and
losses on

assets and
Balance at Tgtall . N?t " liabilities
. the gains ranster Balance held at
2013 - Consolidated beginning (I(()zs)s(g)s) Purchases Sales / /(“)’(%t)) attheend  reporting
of the year I deposits withdrawal of the year date
$000 $000 3000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 2,918 {210) - - 1,717 4,425 (210)
Total financial assets
2,918 (210) - - 1,717 4,425 (210)
L ———————————— ——
Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities 99,033 13,383 2,693 {12,301) - 102,808 13,383
Total financial liabilities 99,033 13,383 2,693 (12,301) - 102,808 13,383
S —
Total gains
and losses
on assets
and
Balance at liabilities
the Balance at held at
. beginning Total gains Purchases / Sales / Net transfer the end of reporting
2012 - Consolidated of the year / (losses) deposits withdrawals in/ (out) the year date
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 3000 $000
Assets
Equity securities and listed
managed investment schemes 1,607 - - (1,607) - - -
Debt securities 5,311 - - (5,311) - - -
Investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 2,876 42 - - - 2,918 42
Total financial assets 9,794 42 - (6,918) - 2,918 42
Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities 101,026 10,549 3,045 (15,587) - 99,033 10,549
Total financial liabilities 101,026 10,549 3,045 (15,587) - 99,033 10,549
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20. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Total gains
and losses
on assets
and
Balance at _ Net liabilities
the Total gains transfer in Balance at held at
beginning I {losses) Purchases Sales / 1 {out) the end of reporting
2013 - Parent of the year e /deposits  withdrawals (4) Gl the year date
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 2,918 (210) - - 1,717 4,425 (210)
Total financial assets 2,918 (210) - - 1,717 4,425 (210)

e ——

Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities 99,033 13,383 2,693 (12,301) - 102,808 13,383
Total financial liabilities 99,033 13,383 2,693 (12,301) - 102,808 13,383
Total gains
and losses
on assets
and
Balance at liabilities
the Balance at held at
beginning of  Totalgains/  Purchases/ Sales/ Net transfer the end of reporting
2012 — Parent the year (losses) deposits withdrawals in / (out) the year date
$000 3000 3000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Investment in unlisted managed
investment schemes 2,878 42 - - - 2,918 42
Total financial assets 2,876 42 - - - 2,918 42

Liabilities
Investment contract liabilities

Total financial liabilities

e —

101,026 10,549 3,045 (15,587) - 99,033 10,549

101,026 10,549 3,045 (15,587) - 99,033 10,549

T s

™ The Branch recognises transfers as at the end of the reporting period during which the transfer has occurred.
Transfers are recognised when there are changes in the observability of the pricing of the relevant securities.
2 Gains and losses are classified in investment gains and losses or change in policyholder liabilities in the

Income Statement.

® There have been no significant transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 or vice versa.
) The Branch recognises transfers as at the end of the reporting period during which the transfer has occurred.
®) As at 31 December 2013, the full amount of Total gains / (losses) was unrealised.
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20. FAIRVALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the sensitivity of the fair value of level 3 instruments to changes in key assumptions:

2013
Effect of
reasonably
possible
alternative
assumptions
Carrying
Consolidated amount (+10%) (-10%) Valuation Key Unobservable
$000 $000 $000 Technique inputs
Assets
Equity securities and listed managed investment
schemes - - .
Debt securities - - -
Investments in unlisted managed investment Net Asset Value, Earnings
schemes 4,425 130 (130)  Multiple of Earnings  Multiple of 5
Total financial assets 4,425 130 (130)
2012
Effect of
reasonably
possible
alternative
assumptions
Carrying
Consolidated amount (+) )
$000 3000 $000
Assets
Investments in unlisted managed investment
schemes 2,918 115 (115)
Total financial assets 2,918 115 (115)
2013
Effect of
reasonably
possible
alternative
assumptions
Carrying
Parent amount (+10%) (~10%) Valuation Key Unobservable
$000 $000 $000 Technique Inputs
Assets
Investment in unlisted managed investment Net Asset Value, Earnings
schemes 4,425 130 (130) Multiple of Earnings  Multiple of 5
Total financial assets 4,425 130 (130)
2012
Effect of
reasonably
possible
alternative
assumptions
Carrying
Parent amount (+) )
$000 $000 $000
Assets
Investment in unlisted managed investment
schemes 6,874 115 (115)
Total financial assets 6,874 115 (115)
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20. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the assets increase/decrease as the inputs increase/decrease. Each individual asset and industry
profile will determine the appropriate valuation to be utilised in each specific valuation and vary from asset to
asset. Reasonably possible alternative assumptions have been calculated by changing one or more of significant
unobservable inputs for individual assets to reasonably possible alternative assumptions. On financial assets this
included adjusting the earnings multiple up or down by 0.5 times.

Financial asset valuation process

For financial assets categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the valuation processes applied in
valuing such assets is governed by the AMP Capital Asset Valuation Policy. This policy outlines the asset
valuation methodologies and processes applied to measure non-exchange traded assets which have no regular
market price, including investment property, infrastructure, private equity, alternative assets, and llliquid Debt
Securities. All significant Level 3 assets are referred to the appropriate valuation committee who meet at least
every 8 months, or more frequently if required.

The Branch recognises loans against policies with a carrying value of $49.9m (2012: $53.6m) on the amortised
cost basis. These loans attract interest at a rate of 6.0 % p.a. (2012: 6.0 % p.a.) Because the loans are 100 %
secured against policies no impairment is expected to occur and the fair value of the loans approximates the
carrying value.

21. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AMP Life and its subsidiaries hold capital to protect customers, creditors and shareholders against unexpected
losses to a level that is consistent with the AMP group’s risk appetite.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries assess the adequacy of their capital requirements against regutatory capital
requirements. AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) is a branch of AMP Life and is an operating entity within
the AMP Life group. AMP Life is an APRA regulated company.

The Branch's capital management strategy forms part of the AMP group’s broader strategic planning process.
In addition to managing the level of capital resources, the AMP group also aims to optimise the mix of capital
resources to minimise the cost of capital and maximise shareholder value.

The Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirement (MRCR) is the amount of shareholder capital required by each of

AMP’s regulated businesses to meet their capital requirements as set by the appropriate regulator. These

requirements are as follows:

s AMP Life Limited No.1 Statutory Fund — Capital adequacy requirements as specified under the Life Act and
APRA Life Insurance Prudential Standards. This applies to AMP Life as a whole, and the AMP Life Limited
No. 1 Statutory Fund.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries have at all times during the current and prior financial year complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject.

AMP Life has a Board approved minimum capital target above APRA requirements, with additional capital targets
held above this amount. The capital target above the Board minimum has been set to a less than 10% probability
of capital resources falling below the Board minimum over a 12 month period. In addition, the participating
business is managed to target a very high level of confidence that the business is self-supporting and that there
are sufficient assets to support policyholder liabilities.
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22. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated
$000 $000 $000 $000
(a) Reconciliation of the net profit after income tax
attributable to the shareholder to cash flows from
operating activities
Net profit after income tax 39,847 71,061 28,142 68,353
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and loss on
disposals 7,764 3,823 - -
Other non-cash items 944 549 - -
Net realised and unrealised gains and losses on
investment assets 73,376  (167,014) (8,245)  (240,944)
Loss on disposal of controlled entity - 13,175 - -
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment - 959 - -
Dividends and distributions reinvested (23,726) (26,968) - (60)
Defined benefit expense 1,815 (1,449) - -
Increase / (decrease) in life insurance contract liabilities 19,433 98,663 19,433 98,663
Decrease in investment contract liabilities 3,428 (2,693) 3,428 (2,693)
Decrease in income tax balances (79,563) (3,097) (81,883) (523)
(Increase) / decrease in other operating assets and
liabilities (94,363) (11,684) (17,758) 8,164
Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities (51,045) (24,675) (56,883) (69,040)
Consolidated Parent

2013 2012 2013 2012

$000 3000 $000 3000
{b) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Comprises:
Cash on hand 76,574 39,542 16,900 21,205
Cash on deposit 32,500 141,893 1,000 14,135
Balance at the end of the year 109,074 181,435 17,900 35,340

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the above. Cash and cash
equivalents earn interest at floating rates predominantly based on overnight cash rates.

23. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS

The following tables summarise the components of the net amounts recognised in the Income statement,
Statement of comprehensive income and Statement of financial position for the staff superannuation plan of a
controlled entity. As noted in note 2(z), certain controlled entities are participating employers within the AMP New
Zealand Staff Superannuation Plan and the figures below represent the Branch’s share of the total plan.

The Branch's share is determined using information on the actual liability owed to individual members of the plan.
As a result, the Branch recognises 96% of the total plan.
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23. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Change in discount rate

Due to the change in the accounting standard the discount rate used this year is a gross of tax rate while in the
prior year it was a net of tax rate. Comparative information was restated in accordance with NZ IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (refer to Note 2(a)). The current year information is
prepared under the amended accounting standard NZ IAS19 as mentioned in the Summary of Accounting
Policies.

Consolidated

2013 2012
$000 $000
(a) Defined benefit income
Current service costs (27) @7
Interest cost (262) (325)
Contributions tax (137) (150)
Total defined benefit expense (426) (502)
(b) Amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income
(SOCH)
Actuarial (gains) / losses (2,979) 1,676
Actual return on plan assets less interest income (1,359) (1,644)
Tax (1,641) (624)
Total gains recognised via the SOCI (5,979) (692)
(c) Movement in defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year 30,487 30,130
Current service cost 27 27
Interest cost 1,054 1,100
Contributions by plan participants 20 14
Actuarial gains and (losses) * (2,979) 1,576
Benefits paid (2,290) (2,338)
Taxes, premium and expenses paid (24) (22)
Balance at the end of the year 26,295 30,487
]

*Actuarial gains and losses 2013
These can be broken down further for 2013 into losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions ($0.1m) offset by
gains from changes in financial assumptions ($2.7m) and gains from liability experience ($0.3m).

(d) Movement in fair value of plan assets

Balance at beginning of the year 22,439 20,822
Interest income 792 774
Expected return on plan assets 1,359 1,644
Contributions by the employer 1,526 1,545
Contributions by plan participants 20 14
Benefit paid (2,290) (2,338)
Taxes, premium and expenses paid (24) (22)
Balance at the end of the year 23,822 22,439

(e) Defined benefit deficit

Defined benefit obligations (26,295) (30,487)
Less fair value of plan assets 23,822 22,439
Contributions tax (1,218) (3,449)
Net liability recognised in the Statement of financial position (3,691) (11,497)
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23. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated

2013 2012

$000 $000
{f) Movement in net defined benefit (deficit)
Opening liability at the beginning of the year (11,497) (13,893)
Plus total expense recognised in income (426) (502)
Plus employer contributions 2,253 2,206
Less actuarial losses recognised in other comprehensive income 5,979 692
Deficit at the end of the year (3,691) (11,497)

L eecemremea————————————————eeeeaeeeeeereeererreremeemeeemer ]

Expected contributions for the financial year ending 31 December 2014 are $1,592,000. This expectation is based
on the latest information from the external actuaries, Mercer (N.Z.) Limited in their report of 31 December 2013.

Fair Value of Plan Assets
The fair value of Plan assets includes no amounts relating to:
¢ any of the Employer's own financial instruments ("
e any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Employer

The expected return on assets assumption is determined by weighting the expected long term return for each
class by the target allocation of assets to each asset class. The returns used for each asset class are net of
investment tax and investment fees.

(g) Sensitivity analysis

The defined benefit obligation under different scenarios is as follows:

2013

$000
Base Case 26,295
Scenario A: 1% lower discount rate assumption 28,532
Scenario B: 1 year additional life expectancy 27,399
Scenario C: 1% higher pension increase rate assumption 27,841

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on net defined
benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period

(h) Principal actuarial assumptions at reporting date

The following table sets out the principal actuarial assumptions used as at the reporting date in measuring the
defined-benefit obligations of the defined-benefit fund:

2013 2012
% %
Discount rate 4.80 3.60
Inflation increase i 2.50 2.50
Future pension increases 1.90 1.90

The decrease in the liability totals $7.8m (2012 restated: $2.4m). The change in discount rate is due to the change
in the accounting standard to a gross discount rate from a net discount rate in 2012.

Pensioner mortality is based on the NZ Life table 2010-2012 rated down one year.

) More than 90% of the Plan assets are invested in AMP managed investment funds.
The asset category of the plan assets consists of investment funds in balanced funds, conservative funds and
growth funds all available in an active market.
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23. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN LIABILITY AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(i) Arrangements for employer contributions for funding defined benefit funds

At the dates of the most recent financial reports of the plan, the deficit measured as the difference between the net
market value of plan assets and the accrued benefits of the plans was $2.5m (2012: $8.0m) for the defined
benefit fund.

Funding methods and current recommendations

The defined benefit funds funding policy is intended to fully cover benefits by the time they become payable. The
main group of benefits is the pension rights of retired members and their spouses. The retirement benefits of
active members are valued on a simplified actuarial projection basis as they are not material to the valuation of the
fund.

(i) Allocation of assets

Shown in the following table are the asset allocations of the defined benefit funds.

2013 2012
The percentage invested in each asset class at the balance date:
Equity 47 % 55 %
Fixed income 25 % 26 %
Property 10 % 8%
Other 4% -
Cash 14 % 1%
24. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Details of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:
% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type 2013 2012
Allmarg Corporation Limited & New Zealand Ordinary, Preference 100.0 100.0
. o Ordinary A & B,
AMP Capital Investments No. 2 Limited New Zealand Preference 99.9 99.9
. o) Ordinary A & B,
AMP Capital Investments No. 8 Limited New Zealand Preference 99.9 99.9
AMP Capital Investments No. 14 Limited” New Zealand Ordinary A & B 99.9 99.9
Kiwi Kat Limited New Zealand Ordinary 70.0 70.0
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited™ New Zealand Ordinary 100.0 100.0
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Limited " New Zealand Ordinary 100.0 100.0
AMP Services (NZ) Limited® New Zealand Ordinary 100.0 100.0
AMP/ERGO Mortgage and Savings Limited ™ New Zealand Ordinary 100.0 100.0

(;’ Controlled entities of AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) No. 1 Statutory Fund
@ Controlled entities of AMP Life Limited (New Zealand Branch) Shareholder Fund
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25. ASSOCIATES

Investments in associates held by the Statutory Fund measured at fair value through profit or loss'"

Ownership interest Carrying amount

PRINCIPAL 2013 2012 2013 2012
NAME OF UNIT TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES ACTIVITY % % $000 $000
Consolidated
AMP Pencarrow Private Capital Joint Venture Fund Investment vehicle 34 34 2,709 2,918

Passive Equity
AMP Capital NZ Shares Index Fund Investment 35 38 102,694 92,962
AMP Capital NZ Shares Fund Equity Investment 20 23 91,796 94,069
AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund Equity Investment 38 28 145,659 152,862
Passive International

AMP Capital Global Shares Fund Equities 27 27 44,742 40,267
AMP Capital Property Portfolio Property Investment 43 39 343,039 306,835
Total investments held by the life statutory fund
in associated unit trusts and other entities 730,639 689,913

@ Investment in associated entities that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are treated as financial
assets and are measured at fair value. Refer to Note 1(h). The balance date for all associated entities is 31 March.

In the course of normal investment activities the Statutory Fund holds investments in various operating businesses. investments
in associated entities reflect investments where the Statutory Fund holds between a 20% and 50% equity interest.

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
Operating lease commitments (non-cancellable)
Due within one year 3,590 3,293 - -
Due within one year to five years 12,310 12,118 - -
Due later than five years 2,621 5,133 - -
Total operating lease commitments 18,521 20,544 - -
S —

The above leases are primarily in respect of properties from which the Branch and its controlled entities operate.
27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Branch from time to time may incur obligations arising from litigation or various types of contracts entered into
in the normal course of business including guarantees issued for performance obligations to controlled entities of
the Branch.

Where it is determined that the disclosure of information in relation to a contingent liability can be expected to
prejudice seriously the position of AMP Life (or its insurers) in a dispute, accounting standards allow the Branch
not to disclose such information and it is AMP Life’s policy that such information is not to be disclosed in this note.

At reporting date there were no material contingent liabilities where the probability of any outflow in settlement was
greater than remote.

The Branch has an investment in an associated entity for which it may have a commitment to make further capital
contributions if called. The amount that may be called at any time is $4.2m (2012: $4.2m).
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Branch transacts with other entities within the AMP Group of companies and other related parties in the
normal course of its business.

(a) Key management personnel details

The following individuals were the key management personnel of AMP Life Limited (being those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive or otherwise)) of AMP Life for the whole or part of the reporting period as
indicated:

Name Position

Catherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Craig Dunn Executive Director Resigned: 31 December 2013
Craig Meller Executive Director

Pauline Blight-Johnston Executive Director Appointed: 1 March 2014
Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director

Diana Eilert Non-Executive Director

John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Andrew Harmos Non-Executive Director Appointed: 10 August 2013
Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel

The following table provides aggregate details of the compensation of key management personnel of AMP Life
Limited (in thousands of Australian dollars).

Short term Post employment Share-based
benefits benefits payments Total
2013 5,697 112 3,815 9,624
2012 5,613 103 3,376 9,092

The fees paid to non-executive directors of AMP Life are the combined fees for AMP Life Limited and the National
Mutual Life Association of Australasia Limited.

(c) Transactions with key management personnel

During the year, key management personnel and their personally related entities have entered into transactions
with the disclosing entity or its subsidiaries. All such transactions have occurred within a normal employee,
customer or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable than those that itis reasonable to
expect AMP Life would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length with an unrelated individual. These transactions
include:

+ Purchase of insurance products available to other employees and policy owners;

e Purchase of superannuation products available to other employees and policy owners;

e Placement of funds on deposit; and

«  Acquisition and disposal of units in controlled managed investment scheme and receipts of trust distributions.

Information about such transactions does not have the potential to affect adversely decisions about the allocation
of scarce resources made by users of this Financial Report, or the discharge of accountability by the specified
executives or specified directors.

No Director or Director-related entities had loans with AMP Life in 2013 (2012: nil).

A number of Directors of the company are also Directors of public companies and/or are a Partner of a
professional service partnership which have transactions with AMP Life. The Directors do not believe that they

have the capacity to control or significantly influence the financial or operating policies of either company in their
dealings with each other. Those companies are therefore not considered to be Director-related entities.
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Transactions with key related parties
Transactions with related parties are made at arms length and on normal commercial terms. Outstanding

balances at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are unsecured, non interest bearing and settlement
occurs in cash or through inter-company accounts as necessary.

) Parent

The Parent purchases administrative services from AMP Services (NZ) Limited on a fee service basis. Services

purchased include product distribution, marketing, payroll, personnel, computing and accounting services.

The Parent receives administrative services from AMP Capital Investors Limited in Australia and investment
services from AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited (AMP Capital) on a normal commercial basis. AMP
Capital manages the investment assets of the policyholder fund and the shareholder fund. AMP Capital is also the
responsible entity of a number of the controlled entities and associated unit trusts detailed in notes 24 and 25.
Investment management services provided by AMP Capital to AMP Life are charged at normal commercial rates.

The Parent sold tax losses of $3.2 million (2012: $nil) to other companies within the Branch and $15.9 million
(2012: $nil) to other related parties in the current year. Consideration of $5.3 million was received for these losses.
Significant acquirers of these tax losses include Spicers Portfolio Management Consolidated Group: $9.2 million,
Mortgage Backed Bonds Limited: $3.3 million and NMLA Australasia Limited: $2.2 million.

In the previous financial year the parent received a dividend from AMP Capital Investments No.14 Limited.

The following table provides the amount of transactions which the Parent has entered into with related parties for

the relevant financial year:

For the year ended 31 December

As at 31 December

Service, Service,
management management Amounts  Amounts
and other fee and other fee owed by owed to
revenue from expense to related related
related parties  related parties parties parties
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP $000 $000 $000 $000
AMP Life Limited Australia Shareholder Fund 2013 - - - 6,874
2012 - - - -
AMP Services (NZ) Limited 2013 - 41,864 - 971
2012 - 46,215 - 2,194
AMP Services Limited 2013 - 584 - 560
2012 - - - -
AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited 2013 - 413 - -
2012 - 387 - -
AMP Capital Investors Limited 2013 - 1,411 - 474
2012 - 1,117 - 828
AMP / ERGO Mortgage and Savings Limited 2013 - - 1,678 -
2012 - - 1,752 -
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Holdings Limited 2013 - - 1,071,152 -
2012 - - 1,071,152 -
AMP Life (NZ) Investments Limited 2013 - - - 303,200
2012 - - - 90,747
AMP Capital Investments No.14 Limited 2013 - - - -
2012 1,019 - - -
BNP Paribas Unit Trusts (various) 2013 - - 846 -
2012 - - - -
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d) Transactions with key related parties (continued)

(i) Consolidated

The Branch provides administrative services to AMP Wealth Management New Zealand Limited, The National
Mutual Life Association of Australasia and Spicers Portfolio Management Limited. The Branch also receives

administrative services from AMP Services Limited (Australia) and investment services from AMP Capital

Investors Limited and AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited.

The following table provides the amount of transactions which the Branch has entered into with related parties for

the relevant financial year:

For the year ended 31 December

As at 31 December

Service, Service,
management management Amounts Amounts
and other fee and other fee owed by owed to
revenue from expense to related related
related parties  related parties parties parties
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP $000 $000 $000 $000
AMP Life Limited Australia Shareholder Fund 2013 - - - 6,874
2012 - - - -
AMP Services Limited (Australia) 2013 8,442 20,038 - 6,213
2012 14,368 27,230 - 5,075
AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited 2013 372 11,557 - 8,507
2012 195 7,864 - 2,830
AMP Capital Investors Limited 2013 - 6,428 - 1,438
2012 - 4,828 - 842
AMP Wealth Management New Zealand Limited 2013 16,419 - - 15,950
2012 17,668 - 292 -
AMP AAPH Limited (formerly AXA Asia Pacific
Holdings Limited) 2013 - 2,000 1,897 -
2012 - 2,000 1,951 -
The National Mutual Life Association of
Australasia Limited (NMLA) — New Zealand
Branch 2013 33,948 - 3,827 -
2012 38,343 - 20,860 -
Spicers Portfolio Management Limited 2013 6,600 - 6,656 -
2012 8,064 - 1,836 -
BNP Paribas Unit Trusts (various) 2013 12,677 - 846 -
2012 - - - -
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29. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Amounts paid to the Auditor of the Branch for:

Consolidated Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 3000 $000 3000
Audit of the financial statements 628 574 275 304
Other assurance-related services - 183 - -
Tax compliance services 15 - 15 -

The above amounts are inclusive of non-recoverable GST.

30. EVENTS OCCURING AFTER REPORTING DATE

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the
reporting date which has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Branch, the resuits

of its operations or its state of affairs, which is not already reflected in this report.
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Appointed Actuary’s Report for AMP Life Limited (“AMP Life”’) (New Zealand Branch)
To the Directors of AMP Life

This report has been prepared for AMP Life in accordance with Section 78 of the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“the Act”).

In terms of Section 77(1) of the Act, | have reviewed the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Financial Statements for AMP Life (New Zealand Branch) for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (“the Financial Statements”).

For the purposes of this report, “actuarial information” is as defined in Section 77(4) of the Act,
together with paragraph 4.1.1 of the Attachment to the “Section 59 Exemption from Compliance
with Solvency Standard” granted to AMP Life by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under the
Act.

| certify that in my opinion:

a) The value of the policy liabilities of AMP Life and the regulatory capital requirements of AMP
Life have been determined using methods and assumptions consistent with the actuarial
prudential standards issued by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (“APRA”).

b) The allocation and distribution of the profits of Statutory Fund No. 1 of AMP Life have been
made in accordance with Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 4 of the Australian Life Insurance Act
1995 (Life Act).

c) Proper records have been kept by AMP Life from which its policy liabilities and regulatory
capital requirements have been able to be properly determined.

d) The apportionment of income and outgo used in preparing the AMP Life accounts at
31 December 2013, as required under sections 78 and 79 of the Life Act, is appropriate.

e) | have obtained all of the information and explanations that | require from AMP Life.

In addition, | certify that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective:

f) The actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been appropriately
included in those statements.

g) The actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial Statements has been used
appropriately.

h) AMP Life has fully complied with the APRA regulatory capital requirements throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to the New Zealand Branch. Note that the APRA
regulatory capital requirement is the applicable standard that applies under the Section 59
exemption granted by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.

Other than my relationship as Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, | am an employee of the AMP
Group, of which AMP Life forms part, and a member of the AMP Employees’ Superannuation
Plan. | hold shares and options in AMP Limited, the ultimate holding company of AMP Life. |
am a customer of AMP Bank Limited, which is also part of the AMP Group.

This report is provided solely in my capacity as the AMP Life Limited Appointed Actuary. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone for the contents of this
report other than the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, AMP Life Limited and its directors and
shareholders.

A o gamno

Rocco Mangano FIAA
Appointed Actuary, AMP Life Limited
24 April 2014



Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholder of AMP Life Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and its subsidiaries on
pages 1 to 71, which comprise the statement of financial position of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited
and the group as at 31 December 2013, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended of the New Zealand branch of
AMP Life Limited and the group, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

This report is made solely to the company's shareholder in accordance with Section 19(3) of the Financial
Reporting Act 1993. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's shareholder those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the New Zealand branch of the
company and the company's shareholder, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand, and that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). These auditing standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected, depend on our judgement, inciuding the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we have considered the internal control relevant to the New Zealand branch of the company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the New Zealand branch of the company's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Ernst & Young has provided tax compliance services to the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and its
subsidiaries during the year. We have no other relationship with or interest in the New Zealand branch of AMP Life
Limited and the group.

Partners and employees of our firm may deal with the New Zealand branch of the company on normal terms within
the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the New Zealand branch of the company.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 1 to 71:

» comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
» comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

» give a true and fair view of the financial position of the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited and the
group as at 31 December 2013 and the financial performance and cash flows of the New Zealand branch of
AMP Life Limited for the year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

»  We have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required.

» Inour opinion proper accounting records have been kept by the New Zealand branch of AMP Life Limited as
far as appears from our examination of those records.

W4yw~(7

2 May 2014
Auckland





























































































































































































Appointed Actuary’s Report for AMP Life Limited (“AMP Life”) Statutory Fund No.1
To the Directors of AMP Life

This report has been prepared for AMP Life in accordance with Section 78 of the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“the Act”).

In terms of Section 77(1) of the Act, | have reviewed the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Directors’ Report and Financial Report for AMP Life Statutory
Fund No. 1 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (“the Financial Statements”).

For the purposes of this report, “actuarial information” is as defined in Section 77(4) of the Act,
together with paragraph 4.1.1 of the Attachment to the “Section 59 Exemption from Compliance
with Solvency Standard” granted to AMP Life by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under the
Act.

| certify that in my opinion:

a) The value of the policy liabilities of AMP Life and the regulatory capital requirements of AMP
Life have been determined using methods and assumptions consistent with the actuarial
prudential standards issued by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (“APRA”).

b) The allocation and distribution of the profits of Statutory Fund No. 1 of AMP Life have been
made in accordance with Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 4 of the Australian Life Insurance Act
1995 (Life Act).

c) Proper records have been kept by AMP Life from which its policy liabilities and regulatory
capital requirements have been able to be properly determined.

d) The apportionment of income and outgo used in preparing the AMP Life accounts at
31 December 2013, as required under sections 78 and 79 of the Life Act, is appropriate.

e) | have obtained all of the information and explanations that | require from AMP Life.

In addition, | certify that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective:

f) The actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been appropriately
included in those statements.

g) The actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial Statements has been used
appropriately.

h) AMP Life has fully complied with the APRA regulatory capital requirements throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to Statutory Fund No. 1. Note that the APRA
regulatory capital requirements are the applicable standard that applies under the
Section 59 exemption granted by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.

Other than my relationship as Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, | am an employee of the AMP
Group, of which AMP Life forms part, and a member of the AMP Employees’ Superannuation
Plan. | hold shares and options in AMP Limited, the ultimate holding company of AMP Life. |
am a customer of AMP Bank Limited, which is also part of the AMP Group.

This report is provided solely in my capacity as the AMP Life Limited Appointed Actuary. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone for the contents of this
report other than the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, AMP Life Limited and its directors and
shareholders.

O o gao

Rocco Mangano FIAA
Appointed Actuary, AMP Life Limited
24 April 2014
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AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The directors of AMP Life Limited {'AMP Life’ or the company’) present their report on the company for the financtal year ended 31
December 2013,

AMP Life Limited is a company limited by shares and s incoiporated and domiciled in Australia. AMP Financial Services Holdings
Limited is the company's parent entity and AMP Limited is the ultimate parent enlily.

The Registered Office of the company Is at 33 Alfred Street, Sydney, NSW 2000.
Directors

The directors of the company during the year and up to the date of this report are shown below. Directors were In office for this entire
period except where stated otherwise,

Catherine Brenner Chafrman, Non-Executive Director

Craig Dunn Executive Director Reslgned: 31 December 2013
Craig Meller Executive Director

Pauline Blight Johnston Executive Director Appointed: 1 March 2014
Anthony Coleman Non-Execulive Director

Diana Ellert Non-Executive Director

John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Andrew Harmos Nan-Executive Directar Appointed: 10 August 2013
Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

Principal activities

AMP Life provides a range of products and services 1o customers in Australia and New Zealand, Thess products and services are
primarily distributed through self-employed financial planners and advisers aligned with AMP. These products and services include
superannuation, investments, retirement savings, income protection and life insurance. There have been no significant changes in the
nature of these activities during the year.

Review of operations and results
The operatling result for the year ended 31 December 2013 was a profit after tax of $510m (2012: $532m).

Dividends
Details of the dividends pald and dividends recommended or declared for payment but not paid are disclosed in Note 16 of the Financial

Report.

Significant changes in the slate of affairs
There have bean no significant changes in the state of afairs during this financial year.

Events occurring after reporting date

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any maller or circumstance that has arisen since the reporling date that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the company's operations in future years, the resulis of those operations in the future-
years or the company’s stale of affairs in the future years, which is not already reflected in this report.

Likely developments
Information about likely developments in the operations of the company and the expected results of those operations in fulure years has
not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the

company.

Environmental regulation
AMP Life balleves that sound environmental management makes good business sense and creates value for our shareholder,

customers, employees and the community.

As an investor, AMP Life believes that the engagement with companies ¢n environmental issues is an effective way to influence
management practices for the benefit of customers ard the environment.

In the normal course of its business operations, AMP Life ts subject to a range of environmental regulations, of which there have been
no material breaches during the year,

Duty of the directors under the Life Insurance Act 1995

The directors have compned with their duty, as presciibed by the Life Insurance Act 1995, to take reasonable care, and use due
diligence, to see that in the invesiment, administration and management of the assels of the AMP Life statutory funds, the company
gives pricrity to the interests of the policyholders aver the interests of the shareholder,
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Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers

Under its Constitution, the company indemnifies, to the extent permitted by law, alt officers of the company, (Including the directors), for
any fiability {including the costs and expenses of defending actions for an actual or alleged liability} incurred in their capacity as an
officer of the company,

This indemnity is not extended to current or former employees of the AMP group against liabfiity incurred in their capacily as an
employaa unlass approved by the Board of AMP Limited. During or since the end of the financial year, no such indemnities have been

provided.

During the financial year, AMP Limited agreed fo insure all the officers of the company against certain liabilities as permilled by the
Corporations Act. The insurance policy prohibits disclosure of the nature of the cover, the amount of the premium, the limit of labflity
and ather terms.

AMP Group Holdings Limited ("AMPGH") has entered into a deed of indemnity and access with each director and cerlain secretaries of

the company. Each deed of indemnity and access provides that:

+ these officers will have access to the books of the company for their period of office and for seven years after they cease to hold
office (subject to cerlain conditions); and

«  AMPGH agraes to indemnify these officer, to the extent permitted by law, against any liability incurred by the officer in his or her
capacity as a director or secretary of the company and of other AMP group companies.

Auditer’s independence
The directors have obtained an independence declaration from the company's auditor, Ernst & Young, a copy of which is altached to
this report and forms part of the Directors’ Reporl for the year ended 31 December 2013,

Rounding
In accordance with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission {ASIC} Class Order 8/100, amounts in this Direclors’

Report, and the accompanying Financial Report have been rounded off to the nearest million Australian dollars, unless stated othenvise.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the diractors.

CO Ml C oo

{signature) (signature)

(r c’uldi Melle~ Cocthes n/(,:{{_ Erenne

{name) \} {name)
Director Director
Sydney, 1 April 2014 Sydney, 1 April 2014




Ernst & Young Tel: +61 39288 BO0OO
8 Exhibition Street Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia ey.com

GPO Box 67 Melbourne ViC 3001

Building a better
working world

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of
AMP Life Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of AMP Life Limited for the financial year ended
31 December 2013, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of

professional conduct,

Ernst & Young

- }mww“

~~-Tony.Johnson
Partner
1 April 2014

A fngmber firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liabitity 'mited by a scheme appraved under Professionat Standards Legistation
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Note 2013 2012
$m $m

Income and expenses of policyholders and the shareholder(!
Life insurance premum and related revenue B{a) 1,262 1,204
Fee revenue 3a} 1,017 928
Other revenue 3Mm) 3 4
hvestment gains and (losses) 3(c) 10,857 8,582
Life Insurance claims and related expenses B(b) {1,297 {1,263)
Operating expenses 4{a) {1,409) (1,353)
Finance costs 4(b} {18} (33)
Change in policyholder Eabilities
- Life insurance contracts B(e) (201) {657)
- lnvestment contracts {9,044) (6,318)
Profit for the year before income tax 1,170 1,194
hcome tax expenset® 5{a) {660} (662)
Profit for the year 510 532
Other comprehensive income - items that may be reclassified subsequently o profit or loss
Exchange ditferences on translation of foreign operations
- exchange gains 69 17
Total comprehensive income for the year 579 549

Footnote:

{1 Income and expenses includa amounts allribulable to the sharshalder's interests and palicyho Mers' interests in the life statuforyfunds. Amaunts ncludedin
respect of the life stalutory funds have a substantialimpact on most of the statement af camprehensivaincome Enes, especiallyinvestment gains andlosses
and tax. n general, poticyholers' interests in the trans actions for the period are attributed to them in tha lines Change in pelicyholder Fabilies.
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Statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013

Note 2013 2012
$m m

Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 3,060 3,702
Receivables 6 1,085 851
Current tax assels 145 84
Other assels 7 4 4
Investments in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss &(a} 76,550 68,449
investment property 9 1,479 1,420
Property, plant and equipment L 26 23
Deferred tax assets 5(c) 518 511
lntangibles # 517 517
lnvestments in controlled entities 8{b) 2,166 1,699
Tolal assets of policyholders and the shareholder 85,590 77,260
Liabilities
Payables 2 1,112 830
Current tax liability 34 136
Provisions B 1 2
Ctner financlal liabilities B(c) 949 674
Borrow ings H 558 5687
Subordinated debt B 215 -
Deferred tax liabifties 5(d) 1,559 861
Life insurance contract liabifties Bid) 17,875 - 17,944
investment contract liabilities 60,428 53,064
Total liabilities of policyholders and the shareholder 82,731 74,078
Net assets of AMP Lite Limited 2,859 3,182
Equity
Contributed equity v 911 1,091
Reserves 37 (32)
Retained earnings 1,811 2123
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 2,859 3,182

Footnote:

(T Furthar information on Equity is provided on the Statemant of changes in equityon the following page.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Foreign
currency
Contributed translation  Retalned Total
equity reserve  earnings equity
$m $m $m $m
2013
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,091 {32) 2,123 3,182
Prefit for the year 510 510
Other comprehensive income 69 - 69
Tatal comprehensive incoma - 69 510 579
Dividends paid - - {722) (722)
Return of capial {180} - (180)
Balance at the end of the year 911 37 1,91 2859
2012
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,091 (49) 2,151 3,193
Frofit for the year - - 532 532
Gther comprehensive income - 17 17
Total comprehensive income - 17 532 549
Dividends paid - - (560) (560}
Balance at the end of the year 1,091 {32) 2,123 3,182
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Note 2013 2012
$m $m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cas_‘h receipts in the course of operations 14,186 13,807
Interest and other items of a similar nature recelved 591 682
Dividends and distributions received 681 818
Cash payments in the course of operations (16,218) (14,971)
Finance costs (18) (34)
Income tax paid (132) (265)
Cash tlows (used in)/from operating activitles 23(a} (910) 37
Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sale of{payments fo acquire):
- investment property (59) 408
- investments in financial assets(! 2,407 (131}
Cash flows (used in) / from investing activities 2,348 277
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds / (payments) from borrow ings (9} -
Net movement in deposits fromcustomers - (8)
Proceeds fromissue of subordinated debt 215
Capital return (180)
Dividends paid (722) (560)
Cash flows used In flnancing activitles (696) {566}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 742 (252)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,597 4,849
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23(b) 5,339 4,597

Footnote:

() Net proceeds from the sale of/(payments to acquire} investments In financial assets comprise of purchases and safes of financial assets measured at
fair valus through profit or lass held by the statutory funds, largely reflecting policyholder investment decisions during the poriod.




AMP Life Limited Financial Report
Notes to financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2013

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AMP Life Limited ('AMP Life' or ‘the company'}, a company timited by shares, is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. This Financial
Reporl includes financial statements for AMP Life as a single entity only.

{a) Basis of preparation

This general purpose Financial Report has been prepared In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), and the Corporations Act 2001. AMP Life is a for-profit entity
for the purpeses of preparing financial statements. The Financial Reporl also complies with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were authorised for issue on 25 March 2014 in accordance with a
resalution of the directors.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Report are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current year and comparalive period, unless othenwise stated. Where necessary, comparalive Information
has been reclassified to be consistent with current period disclosure.

Consolidated information has not been prepared to'show the financlal position and operations of AMP Life and its controlled entities at,
or during the year ended 31 December 2013 in accordance with exemptions available under Australian Accounting Standards.
Consolidated information has been prepared and is avaitable for the ultimate parent, AMP Limited, and its conirolled entities.

AMP Life is a registered life insurance entity, predominantly a wealth management business conducling operations through the life
insurance company. Where permitted under Australian Accounting Standards, the assets and liabilities associated with life insurance
and Investment contracts are generally measured on a fair value basis and other assets and liabilities are generally measured on a
historical cost basis,

Assels and liabilities have been presented on the face of the Statement of financial position in decreasing order of liquidity and do not
distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assets of AMP Life are investment assets held to back
invesiment contract and life insurance coniract liabilities. Although the amount of those assets which may be realised and those
liabilities which may be settled within 12 months of the reporfing date are not always known, estimates of amounts expected to be
recovered or selited (a) no more than 12 months after the reporling date, and (b} more than 12 months after the reporting date, have
been provided in fcotnotes to the relevant notes.

Changes In accounting policy
The following Australian Accounting Standards and amendments have become mandatery for adoption from 1 January 2013, but have
not had any material effect on the financial position or performance of AMP Life:

* Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements. The changes introduced by the revised AASB 101 relate to
presentation only, and have resulled In items in the Statement of comprehensive income being segregated between those
that may eventually be realised in the Income statement in future periods and those that will not.

*  AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disciosure of Interests in Other Entities, revised AASB 128 Investients In Assoclates
and Joint Ventures and AASB 2011-7 Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and
Joinf Arrangements Standards, These standards have changed the criteria for detenmining which entities are to be accounted
for using the equity method in preparing consolidated financial statemenis and the required disclosures in relation to
consolidated entities, joint arrangements, joint operations, associates and structured entities.

*  AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. This standard has centralised the definition and guidance for measuring fair values where
required to be applied by various other accouniing standards and remaoves some minor inconsistencies that previously existed
between the guidance for determining fair value in these standards. The new standard requires quantitative and qualitative
disclosures of all fair value measurements.

+«  AASB 2012-2 Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabifities. This standard has amended the disclosuras in AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to require information on
the effect or potential effect of netling arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the group’s recegnised
financial assels and recognised financial liabilities.

+  AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Offsetting Financial Assels and Finanecial Liabiiities. These
amendments have clarified the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right to set off' and the application of AASB
132 Financial Instruments: Presentation offsetiing criteria fo settlement systems which apply te gross selttement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous.

¢ AASB 2012-5 Amendments Arising From the 2009-2011 Annual Improvements Project. These amendments have clarified the
disclosure requirements for segment assets and liabilities in interim financial statements to align reporting within interim
financial statements to the requirements of AASB 8 Operating Segments.

*  AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — fransition guidance and other amendments makes various
editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting Standards and amendments to AASB 10 and related Standards 10
revise the {ransition guidance for initial application of these Standards.

¢+ AASB 2012-9 Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the withdrawal of Australian Interpretation 1039 removes the
requirement to apply Interpretation 1039 relating to consideration of substantive enactment of major tax Bills in Australia.

+  AASB 2013-2 Amendments to AASB 1038 — Regulatory Capital. This standard amends the life insurance capital disclosure
requirements so as te align the terminology with that used in the Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority's revised capital
requirements which applied from 1 January 2013.




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Australian Accounting Standards Issued buf not yet effeclive

A number of new accounting standards and amendments have been Issued but are not yet effective. AMP Life has not elected to early
adopt any of these new standards or amendments in this Financlal Report. These new standards and amendments, when applied in
future periods, are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or performance of AMP Life, other than set out
below:

J AASB 9 Financial instruments. This standard makes significant changes to the way financial assels are classified for the purpose
of determining their measurement basis and also to the amounts relating to fair value changes which are to be taken directly to
equily. This standard also makes significant changes to hedge accounting requirements and disclosures, This standard is
mandatory for adoption by AMP Life for the year ending 31 December 2017, however early application is permilted in certain
circumstances. The financial impact to AMP Life of adopling AASB9 has not yat been quantified.

. AASB 2011-4 Amendments to Auslralian Accotnting Standards o Remove Individual Key Management Personne! Disclosure
Reguirements and additions to Gorporations Regulations 2001 Regulation 2M.3.03. The revised amendments to AASB 124
remove individual key management personnel disclosures. The revised AASB 124 is mandatory for adoption by AMP Life in the
year ending 31 December 2014, The changes to AASB 124 relate to presentation only and are not expected to have a financfal
impact on AMP Life.

(b) Accounting for wealth management and insurance business

The accounting treatment of certain fransactions in this Financial Repor varies depending on the nature of the contract underiying the
transactions. The two major contract classifications relevant to the wealth-management and insurance business of AMP Life are
investment contracts and life insurance contracts.

For the purposes of this Financlal Report, holders of Investment contracts or life insurance contracts are collectively and individuafty
referred 1o as policyholders.

investment contracts

The majority of the business of AMP Life relates to wealth-management products such as savings, invesiment-linked and retirement
income policies. The nature of this business is that AMP Life recelves deposits from poficyholders and those funds are invested on
behalf of the poticyholders. With the exception of fixed retirement income policles, the resuiting liabfiity to policyholders is linked to the
performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities. For fixed retirement income policies, the resulting liability is finked to the
fair value of the fixed retirement income payments and associated management services.

Under Australian Accounting Standards such contracts are defined as fife inveslment contracis and described as invesiment contracls
throughout this Financial Repart.

Life insurance confracts

AMP Life also Issues contracts that fransfer significant insurance risk from the paolicyholder, covering death, disability or longevity of the
Insured. In addition, there are some policies known as discretionary participating contracts, that are similar to investment caontracts, but
the timing of the vesling of the profit atiributable 1o the policyholders is at the discretion of AMP Life.

Under Australian Accounting Standards, such contracts are defined as fife Insurance coniracts.

Assels measurement basis

investment contract liabilities are measured at fair value as described in Note 1(r) and life insurance contract liabilities are measured as
dasciibed in Note 1(q). Assets backing such liabifities are measured at fair value, to the extent permitted under Australian Accounting
Standards. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income, to the extent permitted under Australian Accounting Standards, The accounting policies for individual asset
classes, and any restrictions on application of fair value, are described later in Note 1.

All assets that back investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are included within the life statutory funds and, as such, are
separately Identifiable. ‘ .

(¢} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is available on demand and deposits that are held at call with financial
institutions. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value, baing tha principal amount. For the purpose of the Statement of cash
flows, cash also includes other highly liquid investments not subject to significant risk of change In value, with short perfods to maturity,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in the Statement of financial position.

{d) Receivables

Receivables that back investiment contract and life insurance contract liabilities are designated as financial assets measuyed at fair
value through profit or loss. Reinsurance and other recoveries are discounted to present value. Receivables that do not back investment
centract and life insurance contract liabilities are measured at nominal amounts due, less any allowance for doubtful debts. An
allowance for doubtful debts is recognised when cellection of the fulf amaunt is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
Given the short-term nature of most receivables, the recoverable amount approximates fair value.
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for the year ended 31 December 2013

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

(e) Investments In financial assets

Investments In financial assets measured at fair value through profit or foss

Invesiments in financial assets designated on initial recognition as finarcial assets measured at fafr value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value determined as the purchase cost of lhe asset, exclusive of any transaclion costs. Transaction costs are
expensed as incurred In profit or loss. Any realised and unrealised gains or losses arising from subsequent measurement at fair value
are recegnised in the Statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Subsequant to initial recognition, the fair value of fnvesiments measured at fair value through profit or loss is delermined as follows:

» The fair value of equily securities in an active market and listed managed invesiment schemes reflects the quoted bid price at the
reporling date. In the case of equity securities and listed managed invesiment schemes where there is no active marke!, a fair value
is established by using valuation techniques including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, references to other instrumenis
that are subsiantialiy the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

* The fair value of listed debt securities reflects the bid price at the reporting date. Listed debt securities that are not frequently iraded
are valued by discounting estimated recoverable amounts. The fair value of unlisted debt securities is estimated using interest rate
yields obiainable on comparable listed invesiments. The fair value of loans is determined by discounting the estimated recoverable
amount using prevailing interest rates.

¢+ The fair value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined an the basis of published redemption prices of
those managed investment schemes at thé reporling date.

s There is no reduction for realisation costs in determining fair value.

* The fair value of derivative financial assets is determined in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1{0).

Investments in conlrolled entities
Invesiments by the AMP Life Shareholder fund in controlled entities (excluding managed investment schemes) are measured at cost
less any accumulated impaiment losses.

(fi Invesiments in assoclates

Associated entities are defined as those entities over which AMP Life has significant influence but there is no capacily to control.
Invastments In associates, other then those backing investment contracts and life Insurance contracts, are initially measured at cost
plus any excess of the fair value of AMP Life's share of identifiable assets and liabilities above cost at acquisition date subsequently
adjusted for AMP Life’s share of post-acquisitfon profit or loss and movements in reserves net of any impairmment. Any dividend or
distribution recsived from assoclates Is accounted for as a reduction in carrying value of the associale.

Invesiments in assoclates held to back [ife insurance or investment contract liabiiities are exempt from the requirement to apply equity
accounting and have been designated on inftial recognition as financial assels measured at fair value through profit or loss. These are
valued in the same manner as equity securities described in Note 1(g).

(9) Investment property
Invesiment property is held to eam revenue from rentals and/or for the purposes of capital appreciation. Investment property includes all
directly held freehold and leasehold properties. There are no properly interests held under operating leases accounted for as investment

property.

Investment property Is initially recognised at cost, including transaction cosls, Subsequent to Initia! recognition, investment propenrty is
measured at fair value,

Changes in value of investment property are taken direcily to the Stalement of comprehensive income and may comprise changes in
the fair valua from revaluation of invesiment property, and fair value adjustments in relation to:

+  tho slraight-lining of fixed rental income

*  tenant incentives including rent free periods, landlord and tenant owned fit out conlnbultons and

+  capitalised leasing fees.

The process adopted fo determine fair values for investment propenlies is set out in Note 9,

{h} Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is initially measured at cost, including transaclion costs. Itis subsequenily measured at cost less any subsequent
accumulated depreclation and accumulated impairment losses. The written down amount approximates fair value.

Each item of plant and equipment is depreciated on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset of 3-10 years.

Leasehold Improvements
L.easeho!d improvements are recognised as an asset only when if is probable Ihat the future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to AMP Life and the cost of the item can be reliably measured.

(i} Intangible assels

Goodwill

When the aggregate of the fafr value of the consideration-transferred in a business combination, the recognised amount of any non-
controlling interest and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree exceeds the falr value of the identifiable
assets acquired and labilities assumed, the excess Is recognised as goodwill. Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumultated impairment losses. Goodwill is not subject to amortisation.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets

Assets measured at falr value, where changas in value are reflected in the Statement of comprehensive income, are not subject to
impaimment tesling. As a result, investment properly and financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are not subject to
impairment testing. Other assets such as property, plant and eqmpmem and intangible assets including goodwill are subject to
impaiment testing.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite usefu! life, such as goodwill, are not subject to amorlisation but are tested at [east annually for
impaimenl. Other assels are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. -

Impairment is recognised in tha Statement of comprehensive income, measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amoun!. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use.

For the purposes of assessing impaimment of goodwill, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill refates.

(k) Taxes

Tax consolidation

AMP Limited and its wholy-owned Australian controlled entities which are Australian domiciled companies (including AMP Life}
comprise a {ax-consolidated group of which AMP Limited is the head entity. The implementation da!e for the tax-consolidated group was

30 June 2003,

Under tax consolidation, the head entity (AMP Limited) assumas the following balances from entities within the tax-consolidated group:

« gurrent tax balances aiising from external transactions recognised by entities In the tax-consclidated group {transactions occurring
after the implementation date only); and

+ deferred tax asseis arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits recognised by entities in the tax-consolidated group.

A tax funding agreement has been entered into by the head entity and the controlled entities in the tax-consolidated group. Entities in
the tax-consolidated group continue 1o be responsible, by the operation of the tax funding agreement, for funding tax payments required
to be made by the head entity arising from underlying transactions of the contralled entities. Controlled enlities make {receive)
contributions to (from) the head entity for the balances assumed by the head entity, as described above, The contributions are

calculaled in accordance with the tax funding agreement. The contributions are payable as set out in the agreement and reffect the
timing of AMP Limited's obligations to make payments to the relevant fax authorities.

Assets and Habilities that arise as a resull of balances transferred to/from entities within the tax-consolidated group to the head entlity are
recognised as related-parly balances recejvable and payable in the Statement of financial position of AMP Life. The recoverability of
balances arising from the tax funding arrangements Is based on the ability of the tax-consolidated group to utilise the amounis
recognised by the head entity.

Income tax expense :

Income tax expense/credit is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period based on the income tax rate for each jurisdiction

and adjusted for changes in deferred tax asse!s and liabilities attributable to:

» temporary differences belween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their Statement of financial position carrying amounts;

* unused lax fosses; and

* the impact of changes in the amounts of deferred tax assels and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates or in the manner In
which these balances are expected to be realised.

Adjustments to income tax expense/credit are alse made for any ditferences between the amounts paid or expected fo be paid in
relation fo prior periods and the amounis provided for these periods at the start of the current peried.

Any tax impact on income and expense items that are recognised directly in equity is also recegnised directly In equity.

Income tax for investment contracts and life insurance contracts business
The income 1ax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income arising in AMP Life refiects tax impoesed on the

shareholder as well as poficyholders.

Invesiment contract liabilities and life insurance contract liabililies are established in Australia net, and in New Zealand gross, of the
policyholders' share of any current tax payable and deferred tax balances of AMP Life.

Arrangements made with some superannuation funds result in AMP Life making payments fo the relsvant tax authorities in relation to
contributions tax arising in those funds. The amounts paid are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities and are not
included inincome tax expense.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates which are expected to apply when the assets
are recovered or liabilities are settled, based cn those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each Jurisdiction,

The relevant ax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred
tax asset or liability. An exception is made for cerlain temporary differences arising from the Initial recognition of an asset or a liability.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation lo these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a
business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it Is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are not recognised for temparary differences between the cairying amount and tax bases of
Invesiments in contrelled entities where the parent entity is able 1o control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it Is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred {ax, including amounts in respect of investment contracts and life insurance contracts, is not discounted 1o present value,

Goods and services fax
AMP Life operates across a number of tax jurisdiclions and offers products and services that may be subject to various forms of goods

and services tax (GST) imposed by local tax authorities.

Allincome, expenses and assets are recognised net of any GST paid, except where they relale 1o producls and services which are input
taxed for GST purposes or where the GST incurred is not recoverable from the relevant tax authorities. In such circumstances, the GST
pald Is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assets or as part of the relevant expense.

Receivables and payables are recorded with the amount of GST included,

Cash flows are reported on a gross basis reflecting any GST paid or collected. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing
or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, local tax authorities are classified as Operating cash fiows.

{} Payables
Payables that back investment coniract and life insurance contract liabilities are financial liabilities and are measured af fair value, Other
payables are measured at the nominal amount payable. Given the short-term nature of most payables, the nominal amount payable

approximates fair value,

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

¢ AMP Life has a present obligation (legal or consfructive) as a result of a past event;

+ itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation; and
* areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation,

Where AMP Life expects scme or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for exampla under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is viually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented
in the Statement of cemprehensive income net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expendilure required to setfle the present obligation
at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of
meney and the risks specific to the liahility.

{n) Borrowings and subordinated debt

All borrowings and subordinated debt are financial liabifities and are initially recognised at fair value. In the case of borrowings and
subordinated debt that are subsequently measured at amortised cost, initial fair value is calculated net of directly attributable transaction
costs. For borrowings and suberdinated debt that are subsequently measured at falr value through profit or loss, directly atiributable
transaction costs are expensed.

Borrowings and subordinated debt, are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceads {net of
transaction costs} and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income over the peried of the contract

using the effective interest rate method.

(o) Derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities

AMP Life is exposed to changes in interest and foreign exchange rates as well as movernents in the fair value of investment guaraniees
it has issued in respect of its products. To mitigale the risks arising from these exposures, AMP Life uses derivative financiaf
instruments such as cross-currency and interest-rate swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and foreign currency contracts.
Derivative financial instruments are alse used o gain exposure to varicus markels for asset and liability management purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value exclusive of any transactions costs on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. All derivatives are recognised as assets
when their fair value is positive and as liabililies when their fair value is negative.

Derivatives held in AMP Life are not designated as hedging instruments. As such, changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are recagnised in the Statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active maikets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price for financial asse!s is the current bid price; the quoted market price for financial fiabilities Is

the current offer price.

The fair value of financlal instruments not traded In an aclive market (for example over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques. Valuation technigues include net present value techniques, option pricing models, discounted cash-flow methods
and comparison to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

(p) Recognition and de-recognition of financial assets and financlal Hiabilities

Financiat assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the date AMP Life becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assels are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assels expite, or are
transferred. A transfer occurs when substantiafly all the risks and rewards of ownership of the iinancial asset are passed to an unrelated
third parly. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(q) Life insurance contract fiabilities
The financial reporling methodology used to determine the fair value of lifo insurance contract liabilities is referred to as Margin on

Services {MoS).

Under MoS, the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin}is recognised over the life of the contract in a
manner thai reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder {the service). The planned release of this margin Is included in the
movement in fife insurance contract liabilities recognised In the Statement of comprehensive income.

Life insurance conliract liabilities are usually determined using a projeciion method, whereby estimales of policy cash flows (premiums,
benefits, expenses and profit margins lo be released in future pericds) are projected using best-estimate assumptions about the future.
The liability is calculated as the net present value of these projected cash flows. When the benefits under a life insurance contract are
linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based on the expected fulure eamnings rate of those assels. Where the
benefils are not linked to the performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free discount rate is based on
the zero coupon government bond rate and a liquidity margin, which depends an the nature, struciure and terms of the contract
liabilities.

An accumulation method may be used if it produces resulis that are not materially different from those produced by a projection method.
A modified accumutation method is used for some discretionary participating business, where the life insurance liabiity is the
accumulation of amounts invested by policyholders, less fees specified in the policy, plus investiment earnings and vested benefits,
adjusted fo allow for the fact that crediting rates are determined by reference to investment income over a pericd of greater than one
year. The accumulation method may be adjusted 1o the extent that acquisition expenses are to be recovered from fulure margins
between fees and expenses.

Allocalion of operaling profit and unvested policyholder bansfits
The operating profit arising from discretionary parlicipating contracts is allocated between the shareholder and participating
policyholders by applying the MoS principles in accordance with the Life insurance Act 1995 (the ‘Life Act’).

Once profit is allocated to participating policyho!ders it can only be distributed to these policyholders, Any distribution of this profit to the
shareholder is only allowed for overseas business with specific approval of the regulators.

Profit allocated to parlicipating policyholders is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as an increase in policy llabities.
Both the element of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders (i.e. unvested) and that which has been allocated
to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested} are included within Hfe insurance contract liabilities.

Bonus distributions to participating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liabilily from unvested to vested and, as such,
do not alter the amount of profit attributable to the shareholder.

The principles of allocation of the profit arising from discretionary participating business are as follows:

{i} Investment income (net of tax and investment expenses) on retained earnings in respect of discretionary participating
business is allocated between policyholders and the shareholder In proportion to the balances of policyholders’ and the
shareho!der's retained eamings. This proportion is 80 per cent policyholders and 20 per cent shareholder.

{ii) Other Mo$ profits arising from discretionary participating business are allocated 80 per cent to policyholders and 20 per cent
to the shareholder, with the following exceptions:

+  the profit arising from New Zealand corporate superannualion business is apportioned such that the shareholder is
allocated 15 per cent of the profit altocated to policyholders,

» the profit arising in respect of Preservation Superannuation Account business is allocated 92.5 per cent to policyholders
and 7.5 per cent to the shareholder, and

*  additional tax on taxable income to the sharehalder in respect of Australian superannuatien business is allocated to the
shareholder oniy.

(i) All profits arising from non-parlicipating business, including net investment retumns on shareholder capital and retained
earnings in the statutory funds {excluding retained eamings dealt with in (i) above} are allocated to the shareholder.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Allocation of expenses within the statutory funds

All operating expenses relating to the fife insurance contract and investment conlract activitiss are apportioned between acquisition,
maintenance and investment management expenses. Expenses which ars directly aliributable te an individual life insurance contract or
invesiment contract of praduct are allocated directiy to a particular expense category, fund, class of business and product line as
appropriate.

Where expenses are not directly attributable, they are appropriately apportioned, according to detailed expense analysis, with due
regard for the objective in incurring that expense and the outcome achieved. The apportionment basis has been made in accordance
with Australian Prudential Regulation Authorily (APRA) Life Insurance Prudential Standards and on an equitable basis to the different
classes of business in accordance with the Life Act.

The costs apportioned to life insurance contracts are included in the determination of margin described above.

Invesiment management expenses of the statutory funds are classified as operating expenses. See Note 1(y).

(r) Investment contract liabilities

An investment centract consists of a financlal instrument and an invesiment management services element, both of which are measured
at fair value. With the excepiion of fixed retirement-income policies, the resulting liability to policyholders is closely linked to the
performance and value of the asseis {after tax) that back those liabilities. The fair value of such liabifities is therefore the same as the
fair value of those assets (after tax charged to the policyholders) except where accounting standards prevent those assets from being
measured at fair value,

For fixed retirement-income policies, the financiat instrument element of the liability is the fair value of the fixed retirement-income
payments, being their net present value using a fair value discount rate. The fair value of the associated management services element
Is the net present value, using a fair value discount rats, of all expenses associated with the provision of services and any profit margins
thereon.

(s) Contributed equity

Issued capital

Issued capital in respact of ordinary shares Is recognised as the fair value of consideration received by the parent entily. Incremental
costs directly alfributable to the issue of certain new shares are recognised in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(t) Foreign currency transactions

Funetional and presentation currency

The Financial Report is presented in Australian dollars (the presentation currency). ltems included in the financial statements are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity aperates (the functional currency). The functional
currency of the company Is Australian doflars.

Transactions and balances

Income and expense llems denominated in a currency other than ihe functional currency are transfated at the spet exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominaled in fareign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange rufing at
the reporfing date, with exchange gains and losses recegnised in the Statement of comprahensive income.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the falr value
was determined., ’

Translation of foreign operation

Where the functional currency of a foreign operation s not the presentation currency, the transactions and balances of that operation

are translated as follows:

+ Income and expenses are franslated at average exchange rates, unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates. In this case, income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions;

*  Assels and liabllities are translated at the closing rale at the reporting date; and

*  Allresulling exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity in the foreign currency translation reserve,

When a foreign operation is seld, the cumulative amount In the foreign currency'[ranslalion reserve relating to that operation is
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale. If a portion of the operation Is sold, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount fs recognised.

{u} Insurance premium and related revenue

Life insurance contracts

Lifs insurance contract premiums are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Premium amounts eamed by bearing
insurance risks are recognised as revenue. Other premium amounts recelved, which are in the nature of deposits, are recognised as an

increase in life insurance contract liabifities.

Premiums with no due date or fixed amount are recognised on a cash received basis. Premlums with a regular due dale are recognised
on an accruals basis. Unpaid premiums are only recognised during the days of grace or where secured by the surrender value of the life
insurance contract and are reported as outstanding premiums and classified as receivables in the Statement of financial position.
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AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment coniracts
There is no premium revenue in respect of investment coniracts. Amounts recaived from policyholders in respect of investment

contracts comprise:
« originalion feas and angoing investiment management fees, See Note 1(v).
¢ amounts cradited directly to investment coniract liabilities. See Note 1{r},

{v) Fee and other revenue
Fees are charged to customers in connection with investment coniracts and other financial services contracts. Revenue Is recognised
as services are provided. In some cases services are provided at the inception of the contract, while other services are performed over

the life of the coniract,

Investment contracts consist of a financtal Instrument and an invastment management services element. The payment by the
policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of the contract. In many cases, that
origination fee is based on amounts paid to financal planners for providing initial advice. The financial instrument is classified as an
investment contract and is measured at fair value. See Note 1(f).

The ravenue that can ba attributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any amount paid 1o financlal planners is also
recognised as an expense at that time. See Note 1{y).

Fees for ongoing investment management services and other services provided are charged on a regular basis, usually daily, and are
recognised as the service is provided,

Fees charged for performing a significant act in relation to funds managed by AMP Life are recognised as revenue when that act has
been completed.

(w) Investment gains or losses
Dividend and interest income are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis when AMP Life obtains

control of the right to receive the revenue,

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses include realised gains and losses belng the change in value between the prevfously
reported value and the amount received on derecognition of the asset or liability and unrealised gains and losses being changes in the
fair value of financial assets and investment property recognised in the period.

Rents raised are on terms in accordance with individual leases. Certain tenant allowances that are classified as lease incentives such
as rent-free periods, fit-outs and upfront payments are capllalised and amortised over the term of the lease. The aggregate cost of
incentives Is recognised as a reduction to revenue from rent over the lease {erm.

(x) Insurance claims and related expense

Life insurance confracts

Life insurance contract claims are separated into thelr expense and withdrawal components. The component that relates fo the bearing
of risks s treated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of withdrawals, are recognised as a decrease in life

Insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when a liability to a policyholder under the life insurance contract has been established or upon notification of the
insured event, depending on the type of claim.

Investment contracts
There Is no claims expense In respect of investiment contracts. Amounts paid to policyholders in respect of investment ceniracts are

withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease fn invesiment contract liabilities. Sea Nota 1{r}.

{y} Operating expenses
Al operating expenses, other than those allocaled to life insurance contracts, are expensed as incurred. See Note 1(q). -

The majorily of invesiment contracts issued result in payments to exlernal service and advice providers. Where the amount pald
equates to a fee charged to policyholders for the provision of advice, the amount is expensed either at inception or over the period of the
coniract consistent wilh the basis for recognising the fee revenue on the respeclive contracis. See Note 1(v).

Operaling lease payment

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Slalement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term or ofher systematic basis representative of the patterns of the benefits obtained. Cperating incentives are recognised as a
liability when received and subsequently reduced by aliccating lease payments between rental expense and reduction of the liability.

(2) Finance costs

Finance costs include:

(i Borrowing costs:
*  interest on bank overdrafts, borrowings and subordinated debt; and
« amorlisation of discounts or premiums related to borrowings;

(i) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjusiment to
interest costs.

Borrowing cosis are recagnised as expenses when incurred.
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AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The making of judgements, estimates and assumptions is a necessary part of the financial reporting process and these judgements,
estimates and assumptions can have a significant effect on the reported amounts in the financiat stalements. Estimates and
assumptions are determined based on information available to management at the time of preparing the Financial Report and actual
resulls may differ from these estimates and assumptions. Had different estimates and assumptions been adopted, this may have had a
significant impact on the financial statements. Significant accounting Judgements, eslimates and assumptions are re-evaluated at each
reperting period in the light of historical experience and changes o reasonable expectations of fulure events. Significant accounting
judgements, eslimates and assumplions include but are not limited to: .

{a} Falr value of investments in financial assets

AMP Life measures Investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Where available, quoted market prices for same
or similar insiruments are used to determine fair value. Where there is no market price available for an instrument, a valuation technique
Is used. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation techniques and setling valuation assumptions and inputs. Further detail
on the determination of fair value of financial instruments is set out in Note 21.

(b) Fair values of Investment properties

AMP Life measures investment properties at fair value through profit or loss. The valuation of investment properties requires judgement
lo be applied in selecting appropriate valuation techniques and selling valuation assumptlions. AMP Life engages independent
registered valuers to value each of its investment properties on a rolling annual basis. Further detail on the determination of fair values
of investment properties Is set out in Note 9.

{c) Goodwlll

Goodwill is required to be aflocated to cash generating units and tested for impairment on an annual basis. Management apply
judgement in determining cash generating units and allocating the goodwill arising from business combinations to these cash generaling
units. Impairment Is assessed annually by determining the recoverable amaunt of each cash gensrating unit that has a goodwill
balance. Management applies judgement in selecting valuation techniques and setting valuation assumptions to determine the
recoverable amount. Note 11 sets out further information on the impairment testing of goodwill.

(d) Tax

AMP Life is subject to taxes in Australia and other jurlsdictfons where it has operations. The application of tax law te the specific
circumstances and transactions of AMP Life requires the exercise of judgement by management. The tax treatments adopted by
management in preparing the financial stalemenis may be impacted by changes in legislation and interpretations or be subject to
challenge by fax authorities.

Judgement is also applied by management in determining the extent to which the recovery of canded forward lax losses is probable for
the purpose of meeling the criteria for recognition as deferred tax assets.

{e) Provisions

A provision is recognised for items where AMP Life has a present obligation arising from a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
econamic resources will be required to seltle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, The
provision is measured as the best estimate of the expenditure required fo setile the present abligation. Management apply judgement in
assessing whether a particular item safisfies the above criteria and in determining the best estimate. Note 13 sets out further information
on provisions and Note 26 provides Information of contingent liabilities that management determined did not meet the criteria for

recognition as provisions,

() Life insurance contract liabilities

The measurement of insurance centract liabilities is determined using the Margin on Services (MoS) methodology. The determination of
the liability amounts Involves judgement in selecting the valuation methods and profit carriers for each type of business and setting
valuation assumptions. The determination is subjective and relatively small changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on
the reported profit. The Board of AMP Life is responsible for these judgements and assumplions, after taking advice from the Appointed
Actuary. Further detail on the determination of life insurance contract liabilities Is set out in Nole 18,

(g) Investment contract liabiiities

Invesiment contract liabilities are measured at falr value. For the majority of contracts, the fair value is determined based on published
unit prices and the fair value of backing assets, and does not generally require he exercise of judgement. For fixed income producis,
fair value is determined using valuation medels. Judgement is applied in selecting the valuation model and sefting the valuation
assumptions, Further detail on the determination of investment contract fiabifities is sel out in Note 21,
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Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

3. REVENUE AND INVESTMENT INCOME

2013 2012
$m $m

{a) Fee revenue
hvestment conlract fees 953 858
hvestment management fees 18 24
Sarvice fees
- related entities 46 46
Total fee revenuet 1,017 928
(b} Other revenue
Other revenue a 4
Totat other revenue 3 4
{6} Investment gains and {losses)
Interest @
- related enlities 130 156
- glher entities 461 526
Dividends and distributions
- related entities 1,716 1,730
- associated enfities 127 183
- other entities 605 550
Rantal income 128 161
Net realised and unrealised gains / {losses)@ 7677 5,247
Other investiment income 13 29
Total Investment gains and (losses) 10,857 8,502

Faotnote:

(0 Totalfee revenueinciudes fee Incomefro m trust and fiduciary activities that resultintha halding orinvesting of assets enbehall of individuals, trusts,

retirement benefit plans, and other Institutions,

(2} Interest includes interest incame fram financial assets measured al fair value thieugh profit or koss, designated as such upon initial recognition.

(3) Net realised and unrealised galns and losses include net gains andlasses enfinancial essels and financial liab%ties designated at fair value through profit or

{0ss upon Initial recognilion,
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Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 Dacember 2013

4. EXPENSES

2013 2012
$m $m

{a} Operating expenses
Comrrission and advisary fee-for-service expense (376) {353}
Investment management expenses
- related entties {217 (203)
- other enlities 5) {7}
Fees and commlssion expenses®) (598) (563)
Ceeupancy and properly related expenses 3 8
Direct property expenses® (39) (52
Service fee expense
- related enlities {707) (668)
Professlonal fees , {1) {
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {7) (9
Other expenses (60) (68}
Other operating expenses (811) {790}
Total operating expanses {1,409) {1,353)
{b) Finance costs
Interest expense on borrowings
- other entities (17) (29}
Other finance costs m (4}
Total finance costs {18) {33)

Focinote:

{) Feeandcommissionerpenses inciude fea expenses lrom trust and other fiduciary activities including the holding or Investing of assets onbehalf of
individuals, trusls, retirement benefit plans, and other iastitutions.

{2) Direct propery expenses relate to investment properties which generate rentzl income,
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Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

5. INCOME TAX

2013 2012
$m $m

{a) Analysis of income tax credit {expense)
Current tax {expense) credit 4 (177)
herease (decreass) in deferred fax assets 9 (63)
{ncrease) decrease in deferred tax babilities (667) {430}
Overf{under} provided in previous years including amounts attributable o {6) 8
poficyholders
Income tax expense (660) (662}

(b} Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

The following table provides a reconcifiation of differences between prima facle tax calculated as 30 per cen! of the profit before income
tax for the year and the actual income tax expense recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year. The income tax
expense amount reflects the impact of both income tax attributable to the shareholder as well as income {ax attributable to
policyholders. In respect of income tax expense attributable to the sharehoider, the tax rate is 30 per cent in Australia and 28 per centin
New Zealand. i

Income tax atlributable to policyholders is based on investment income allocated to policyho!ders less expenses deductible against that
invesiment income. The impact of the tax is charged against policyholder liabilities, A number of different lax rate regimes apply to
policyhofders. In Australia, certain classes of policyholder life insurance insome and superannuation eamnings are taxed at 15 per cent,
and certain ¢lasses of income on some annulty business are tax-exempt. The New Zealand life insurance business is taxed at 28
percent,

2013 2012
$m sm
Profit before income tax _ ' 1,170 1,194
Pofcyholder tax expense recognised as parl of the change in
pafieyholder fabiities in determrining profit before income tax (490) (447)
Profit before Income tax excluding polievholder tax 680 747
Prima facie tax at the rate of 30% (204) (224)
Tax effect of differences between amounts of income and expenses
recognised for accounting and the amounts deductiblesfiaxables in calculating
faxable income:
Shareholder impact of par-business tax ireatment 10 1
MNon-deductible expenses 3] &)
Non-taxabls income 23 e
Tax offsets and ¢redits 4 4
Other items - {5
{Underyfover provided in previous years after excluding amounts
-altribbtable to policyholders Q) 2
Differences in overseas tax rate - 1
hcome tax expense altributable to sharehelders {170) {215)
heome tax expense attributable to palicyholders ‘ (490) {447)
Income tax expense per Statement of comprohensive
income ) (660) {662)
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5. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

2013 2012
$m $m
{c} Analysis of deferred tax assels
Expenses deductible and income recagnisable in future years 110 79
Unreafised investnent losses 50 28
Losses avatable for offset against fulure taxable income 342 387
Other 16 17
Total deferred tax assets 518 51
(d) Analysis of deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised investment gaing 1,386 861
Deferred tax on New Zealand life insurance pobey habifties 151 128
Unreafised movements on borrow ings and derivatives 35
Olner 22 37
Total deferred tax liabtlittes 1,659 861
6. RECEIVABLES
2013 2012
$m $m
Invesiment income receivable 11 135
hvestment sales and margin accounts receivable 428 298
Life insurance contract pramiums receivable 269 270
Reinsuranca and other recoverigs receivable 13 10
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabililies 96 119 -
Trade debtors i -
Other receivables
- related entities 155 7
- other enlities 12 12
Total receivables™ 1,085 851
Foatnotes:
(1) $47m {2012:$81m) of tolal receivables is expacted to be recovered more than 22 manths fram reporting date.
7. OTHER ASSETS
2013 2012
$m $m
Prepaymenis 4 4
4 4

. Total other assetst!

Faotnotes;
(1) $nil (2012:8nil) of olher assets are expected to be recovered more than © months from reporting date.
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8. INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2013 2012
sm &m

(a) Investments in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Fquily securities and lisied managed investment schemes 11,631 11,117
.Debt securities 9,200 8,300
hhvestments in unlisted managed investment schemes 55,412 47,527
Derivative financial assets 308 366
Other financial assets® 139 139
Total investments in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 76,590 68,449
(b} Investments in controiled entities
Al fair value 2,115 . 1,658
At cost 51 41
Total investments in controlled entities 2,166 1,699
{¢) Other financiat liabiliifes
Derivative financial fiabililies 354 126
Collateral deposits held® 595 548
Total other financial Habilities 949 674

Fooinote:

(0 Iheluded within debt securities are assets held ta back the Eabifity for cotlateral deposits held in respect of debt security repurchase arrangements enteredinto
bythe fife slalutory funds.

(2) Otnerfinancial assets pimarily consists af policyhalder investments In an esternal fife insurance fund.

{3) Gollatersl dapasits held represents the abligation 1o repay collateral held inrespect of debt securityrepurchase arrangements entered into by the e statulory
funds.
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9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2013 2012
$m $m

Investment propertyt"
Directly held 1,479 1,420
Total Investment properly 1,478 1,420
Mavements in investment property
Balance at tha beginning of the year 1,420 1,781
- subsequent expenditure recognised in carrying amount 13 10
Disposals - (418)
Net gains fromfair value adjustmants 46 47
Balance at the end of the year 1,479 1,420

Fooinotes:
{0 kvesimenl progertyis measured at fair value with changes in valua reco gnised thro ugh profit arfoss.

Valuation of investment property
Invesiment properly is measured at fair value at each reporting date, Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an
asse! or paid 1o transfer a labillily in an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date.

Fair values of AMP Life's properties are determined by independent registered valuers who have appropriale registered professional
quafifications and recent experience in the location and category of the properly being vatued,

The fair value appraisals are obtained on a rolfing annual basis. The valuation schedule may be altered when a properly Is efther
undergoing or being appraised for redavelopment, refurbishment or sale, or is experiencing other changes in assets or tenant profites
that may significantly impact value, or when there have been significant changes in the property market and broader economy such as
updates to comparable properly sales which may have an impact on the individual asset values. The carrying value of each invesiment
properly Is assessed at reporting date to ensure there has been no material change to the fair value since the valuation date.

The valuers apply ‘comparable sales analysis’ and the ‘capitalised income approach’ by reference to annual net market income,
comparable capitalisation rales and other property-specific adjustments as well as discounted cash fiow analysis where the expecied
net cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a markal determined risk adjusied discount rate. The fair value of investment
property does not reflect fulure capital expenditure that wilt improve or enhance the property.

Refer to note 21 Falir value Information for details regarding fair value measurement.

2013 2012
Primary assumptions used in valuing investment property
Capitalisation ratest! 5,75% - 10.00% 6.00% - 10.75%
Market deternined, risk adjusted discount rate®) 8.50% - 11,00% 8.75% - 11.50%

Footnotes:
() The fairvalue of invastment properlies wo uld fnerease/decrease if the capitalisation rate was lowerfhigher,

(2) Tha fair value of investment properiias would increase/decreasa if tha risk adjusted discount rate was lower/higher,
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10. PROFERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Plant &

Improvements Equipment Total
2013 $m $m sm
Properly, pfant and equipment
Gross carrying amount Fal 76 147
Less: accunulated depreciation and impairment losses {60) (61) (121}
Property, plant and equipment at written down value 11 15 26
Movements in property, ptant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 10 13 23
Addiions
- lhrough direct acquisitions 2 10 12
Disposals (2) 2)
Depreciation expense for the year (i) (6) {7
Balance at the end of the year 11 15 26

Leasshold Plant &

Improvements Euipment Total
2012 $m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment
Gross careying amount 69 7 140
Less: accumulated dehreciaticn and Impairment bosses {59) (58) (117
Property, ptant and equipment at written down value 10 13 23
Movements In property, plant and equipment
Balance at tha beginning of the year 9 13 22
Additions
- through direct acquisitions 5 5 10
Depreciation expense for the year {4) {5) {9)
Balance at the end of the year 10 13 23
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11. INTANGIBLES

2013 2012
$m $m
Intangibles
Gross carrying amount 517 517
Less: accumulated amortisation and / or impairment losses . -
Intangibles at written down value 517 517

Impalrment testing of goodwill

Goodwill of $517m (2012: $517m) arose from a Lite Act Part 9 transfer of life insurance business into the statutory funds of AMP Life.
The initial amount recognised represented the value of in force business, the value of future new business and the benefits of cost
synergles oblained as a result of the integration of the business inte AMP Life.

The business acquired included activilies conducted in the same business unils already operated by AMP Life. Those business units
are Australian Wealth Management (WM), Australian Wealth Protection (WP) and Australian Mature and those business units are
identified as the cash generating units for the purpose of assessing goodwill Impairment.

Under the transition rules for Australian adoption of intemational Financlal Reporting Standards, the amortised cost value of $517 million
at 1 January 2004 was deemed to be the value carried forward and tested annually for impairment. For the purposes of impairment
lesting, the amount is allocated to the cash generating units as follows:

»  Australian CWM — goadwill aliributable; $387m;

s Australian CWP - goodwill attributable: $65m; and

¢ Austrafian Mature - goodwill attibutable: $65m. .
There are no other infangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to these cash generating units.

The recoverable amount for each cash generating unit has been determined using the fair value less costs of disposal basis. For each
cash generating unit, the fair value has been determined considering a combination of the estimated embedded value plus the value of
one year's new business times a multiplter. These are generally regarded as features of a Life insurance business ihat, when taken
together, would be an estimate of fair value. Embedded value is a calculation which represents the economic value of the shareholder
capital in the business and the future profits expected to emerge from the business currently in-force expressed in today's dollars.

- The key assumptions applied in estimating the embedded value and value of one year's new business are: mortality, morbidily,
discontinuance rates, maintenance unit costs, future rates of supportable bonus for pariicipating business, franking credits, risk discount
rates, investment returns and inflation rates. Premium and claim amounts are estimated over the expected life of the in-force poficies
which varies depending on the nature of the product. Fulure maintenance and invesiment expenses are estimated based on unit costs
derivad from budgeted amounts for the foflowing year and increased In future years for expected rates of inffation. Assumptions applied
in this valuation are consistent with the best estimate assumptions used in calcufating the policy liabitities except that the value of in-
force and new business calculation includes a risk discount rate. Note 1(q) and Note 18 provide exiensive details with respect to the
assumptions, management's appreach to determining the values assigned to each key assumption and their consistency with past
experience and extemal sources of Information. Afl relevant business is projected for the embedded value and the description of the
assumptions in Note 18 applies even where that business is not valusd by projection methods for profit reporting. The value of in-force
and new business calcutation uses a risk discount rate based on the zero coupen government bond curve plus a discount margin of 4
per cent (2012: 3 per cent): Ausiralia 6.5-9.5 per cent (2012: 6.3 per cent), New Zealand 7.2-9.4 per cent (2012; 6.6 per cent).

The conclusion from the goodwill impairment testing is that there has been no impairment to the amount of the goodwill recognised and
there is no reasonably possible change in key assumptions that could cause the camying amount to exceed the recoverable amount.
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12. PAYABLES

2013 2012
$m $m
Payables
westment purchases and margin acceunts payable 26 53
Life insurance and investment contracts in process of settlement 242 206
Accrued expenses 18 2i
hlerest payable
- other enlities 1 1
Cther payables
- related entities 445 83
- other entities 380 468
Total payablest! 1,112 830
Footnote:
{1 &nil (2012: $nil} of payables are expected to be seltled more than © months from reporling dale.
13. PROVISIONS
2013 2012
$m $m
Provisions
Systems and other projact expenditures 1 ?
Total provislons™ 1 2
2013 2012
$m $m
Movements in provisions
Balance at the beginning of the year 2 i
Additional provislons made during the year 9
Unused amounts reversed during the year (1)
Provisions used during the year {1) {7)
Balance al the end of the year 1 2
Foolroles:
(% $n1{202:8n7) of provisions ase expecied to be seltkd morethan R manths fram seporting date.
14. BORROWINGS
2013 2012
§m $m
Borrowings
Deposits
- ather entities 1 121
Other borrowings
- related parties 447 446
Total borrowings( 558 567
Footnate:

{ $nd (202 3nil) of borrowings are expected to be setlled more than 12 monthis from reporting date.
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15. SUBORDINATED DEBT

2013 2012

$m sm

AMP Notes 2 (first call date 2018, maturity 2023} 215 -
Total subordinated deht® 215 -

Footnote:

(1 AMP Limited Floating Rate unsecured notes were Issued on B Decemeber 2013 and are fisted on tho ASX. AMP Limited tent the proceeds
of this transactionto AMP Life. In cedaln clrcumsiances, AMP Umited may be required to convert some orallof AMP Notes 2into AMP

ordinary shares.
{2} $215m of this balance is expected to be sottled morethan 2 months from the reporting date.

16.DIVIDENDS
2013 2012
$m $m
Dividends paid durlng the year
Unfranked dividend of $63.37 (31 Decenmber 2012: $48.97} per ordinary share (722) (560}
Total dividends paid {722) (560)

17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Holders of ordinary shares have the right lo receive dividends as declared and, in the event of the winding up of the company, to
participaie in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets fn proportion ta the number of and amounts paid up on shares held

paid ordinary shares carry the right to one vote per share, Ordinary shares have no par value.

. Fully

2013 2012
$m $m

Movements in contributed equity )
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,091 1,091
11,393,668 (31 December 2012: 11,393,668) ordinary shares fully
paid
Return of capital (180} -
Total balance of contributed equity at the end of the year o11 1,091
Footnote:

(1) As part of the subordinated debi transaction, $180m of capital w as returned to the sole shareholder.
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18. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS

2013 2012
$m $m

{a) Analysis of life insurance contract premium and related revenue
Total fife insurance conlract premums received and receivable 1,939 2141
Less: component recognised as a change in lfe insurance contract Jiabilities {717) {981}
Life insurance canltract premium revenued) 1,222 1,160
Reinsurance recoveries 40 44
Total life insurance contract premium and related revenue 1,262 1,204
(b} Analysis of life Insurance contract claims and related expenses
Total life insurance conlract claims paid and payable {2,450) (2,243)
Less; component recognised as a change in ife insurance conlract liabilities 1,203 1,027
Life insurance contract claims expense (1,247) {1,216)
Qutw ards reinsurance expense {50) (47)
Total life insurance contract claims and related expenses (1,297} (1,263)
{c) Analysis of life Insurance contract operating expenses
Life lnsurance contract acquisition expenses
- Conmission {40 (53)
- Olher expenses (88) (88)
Life insurance conlract naintenance expanses
- Comrission {1o1) 57
- Olher expenses {289) {295)
hvesiment management expenses (41) (40)

Footnote:

(1) Life insurance contract premium revenue conslsts entirely of direct insurance premiums, there Is no Inward reinsurance component,
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18. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

2013 2012
$m $m
(d) Life insurance contract liabilities
Life insurance contract liabilities determined using projection method
Best eslimate liability
- value of future lfe insurance contract benefits 11,565 12,701
- value of future expenses 2,885 3,184
- value of fulure premiums (10,842) {11,944}
Valus of future profits
- ife insurance conlract holder bonuses 2241 1,874
- shareholders’ profit margins 2,430 2,590
Total lite insurance contract Habllitles determined using the
: i 9 8,279 8,405
projection method
Life insurance contract liabllities determined using the accumulation
method
Best estimate fiability
- Value of future lfe insurance contract benefits 7.682 7,854
- Value of {ulure acquisition expenses (5} {6)
Totai life insurance contract liabllities determined using the 2677 7,848
accumulation method i
Valua of declared bonus 202 198
Unvested palicyholder benefits fabilitiest! 1,621 1,374
Total life insurance contract liabillties before reinsurance 17,779 17,825
Add: Reinsurers' share of e insurance contract liablities 96 119
Total life insurance contract llabifitfes per the Statement of
financlal position 17,875 17,944

Footnote:

{1) For participating business in the statutary funds, part of the assets in excess of the e insurance contract and other liabiltias calculated
under MoS are altributed to policyholders. Under the Life Act, this is referred to as poficyholder retained profits. For the purposa of
reporting under accounting standards, this amount is referred to as unvested policyholder benefits Fabilities and Is includad wthin e

insurance contract liabiities even though itis yet 1o be vested as specific pofcyholder enfittements.
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Hote 2013 2012
. $m $m
(e) Reconciliation of ¢changes in life insurance contract liabilities
Total ifa insurance contract Fabifties at the beginning of the year 17,944 17,345
Change in ife insurance coniract abilifies recognised in the income 201 587
statement
Premiuns recognised as an increase in ffe insurance contract fabiffes  B(a) 717 981
Claims recognised as a decrease in lfe insurance contract fabifities Bib) {1,203} {1,027}
Change In relnsurers® share of kfe insurance contract fabfiies {23} 21
Farelgn exchange adjustment 239 67
Total life insurance contract liabilities at the end of the period B(d) 17,875 17,944

() Assumptions and methodology appiled in the valuation of life insurance contract liabilities
Life insurange contract liabilities, and hence the net profit from life insurance conlracts, are calculated by applying the principles of
Margin on Services (MoS). Refer to Note 1{q) for a description of MoS and the methods for calculating life insurance contract liabilities.

The methods and profit carriers used to calculate life insurance contract liabilities for particular policy types are foltows:

Profit carriers (for business valued using

Business type Method projection method}
Conventional Projection Bonuses
nvestment account Modified accumulation  nfa
Retail risk {lurmp sum) Projection Bxpected premiums
Retait risk (Income protection - Australia) Projection Bxpected claims
Retail risk {income protection - New Zealand) Projaction Expecied premiums
Group risk (lump sum) Accumuiation a
Group risk (income benefits) Accurmulation nfa

Modifled accunmulation nfa

Parlicipating allocated annuities

Life annuities Praojection

Annulty payments

Key assumplions used in the calculalion of life insurance contract liabilities are as foflows:

(i) Risk free discount rales

Except where benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assels held, a risk-free discount rate based on current
observable, objective rates that relate to the nature, structure and term of the fulure obligations Is used. The rates are determined as

shown in the following fable.

Business type Basls®

31 December 2013
Australia

31 December 2012
New Zealand  Australla New Zealand

Retail risk (other-than income  Zero coupon government bond yield
benefit open claims) curve

2.5%-55%  3.2%-5.4% 26%-44% 25%-41%

Retail risk and group risk Zero coupon government bond yleld
{incoma benefit open claims) curve {including liquidity premium)

27%-57%  35%-57% 29%-47% 2.8%-44%

2.8%-58%  3.6%-57% 3.0%-48% 29%-4.5%

1.2%-26% 22%-3.8% 08%-18% 1.0%-20%

Lile annuities
Zero coupon governmeni bond yield
iNon-CH curve (including liquidity premium)
Conmonw ealth indexed bond yield
CH curve (including liquidity premium)
Footnotes:

{1) The discount rates vary by duration in the range shown above.
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{ih Participating business discount rates

Where henefils are contractually linked fo the performance of the assets held, as is the case for participating business, a discount rate
based on the expected market return on backing assets is used. The assumed eaming rates for backing assets for participaling
business are largely driven by long-term {g.g.10 year) government bond yields. The 10 year government bond yields used at the
relevant valuation dates are as shown below,

Assumed eaming rates for each asset sector are datermined by adding to the bond yield various risk premiums which reflect the relative
differences in expected future earning rates for different asset sectors. For products backed by mixed portfolio assets, the assumption
varies with the propartion of each asset sector backing the product. The risk premiums applicable at the valuation date are shown in the
fable below.,

10 year Risk premiums
government International

bonds Local equities equities Property Fixed interest Cash
Australia
31 December 2013 4.3% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.6% {0.5)%
31 December 2012 3.3% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% (0.5}%
New Zealand
31 December 2013 4.8% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.6% {0.5)%
31 December 2012 3.6% 4.5% 3.5% 2.5% 0.8% {0.5)%

The risk premium for local equities includes allowance for imputation credits. The risk premium for fixed interest reflects credit ratings of
the porifolio held,

The averages of the asset mixes assumed for the purpose of selling future investmeant assumptions for participating business at the
valuation date are as shown in the tahle below, These asset mixes are not necessarily the same as the aclual asset mix at the valuation
date as they reflect long term assumptions.

Fixed
Average asset mix Fquities Property Interest Cash
Australia
31 December 2013 29% 10% 40% 21%
31 December 2012 30% 1% 39% 20%
New Zealand
31 December 2013 40% 17% 37% 6%
31 December 2012 40% 17% 37% 6%

Where an assumption used is net of tax, the tax on investment income is allowed for at rates appropriale io the class of business and
asset sector, including any aflowance for imputation credits on equity income. For this purpose, the total reiurn for each asset sector is
split between income and capital gains. The actual split has varied at each valuation date as the total return has varied.

(i) Future participating benefits

For participating business, the total value of future bonuses (and the associated shareholder profit margin) included in Tife insurance
coniract liahilities is the amount supporied hy the value of the supporiing assets, after allowing for the assumed future experience. The
pattern of bonuses and shareholder profit margin assumed to emerge In each future year depends on the assumed relationship
belween reversionary bonuses {or interest credits) and terminal bonuses. This relationship is set to reffect the phitosophy underlying
actual bonus declarations.

Actual bonus declarations are determined to reflect, over time, the investment returns of the particular fund and other factors in the
emerging experience and management of the business. These factors include:

* allowance for an appropriate degree of benefit smoothing

* reasonable expectations of policyholders

* equity belween generations of policyholders applied across different classes and types of business

* ongeing capital adequacy.

Glven the many factors involved, the range of bonus structures and rates for participating business Is extremsly diverse.
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(i) - Fuiure participating benelits (continued)

Typical supporlable bonus rates on major preduct lines are as follows (31 December 2012 in parentheses).

Reversionary bonus Bonus on sum insured Bonus on existing bonuses
Australia 1.0% - 1.4% (0.4% - 0.9%} 1.4% - 2.1% (0.7% - 0.9%)
MNew Zealand 0.9% - 1.3% (0.4% - 0.7%} 0.9% - 1.3% (0.4% - 0.7%)

The terminal bonus scales are complex and vary by duration, product line, class of business and couniry.

Crediting rates (investment account)

Australia 2.4% - B.7% (2.2% - 4.6%)
New Zealand 3.9% - 5.2% (2.9% - 3.1%)

{iv) Future maintenance and Invesiment expenses

Unit maintenance costs are based on budgeted expenses in the year following the reporling date (including GST, as appropriate, and
excluding one-off expenses). For future years, these are increased for inflation as described in {v} below. These expenses include fees
charged to the life statutory funds by service companies in the AMP group. Unit costs vary by product line and class of business based

on an apportionment that Is supporled by expense analyses,

Future investment expenses are based on the fees currently charged by the asset managers.

(v) Inflation and indexation

Benefits and premiums under many regular premium policies are automatically indexed by the published consumer price index (GP1}.

Assumed fulure take-up of these indexation options is based on AMP Life’s own experience with the annual future GPI rates derived
from the difference between long-term government bonds and indexed government bonds.

The assumplions for expense inflation have regard to these rates, recent expense pertormance, AMP Life’s current plans and the terms
of the relevant service company agreement, as approptiate.

The assumed annual inflation and indexation rates at the valuation date are:

Australia New Zealand
31 December 2013 2.6% CP 3.0% Expense 2.5% CH 3.0% Expense
31 December 2012 2.7% CH 3.0% Expense 2.5% CH 3.0% Expense

{vi) Bases of taxation
The bases of taxation (including deductibility of expenses) are assumed to continue in accordance with [egislation current al the

valuation date.

(vi) Voluntary disconfinuance

Assumptions for the incldence of withdrawals, paid ups and premium dormancy are primarily based on investigations of AMP Life's own
historical experience. These rates are based upon the assessed global rate for each of the Individual products (or product groups) and
then, where appropriate, further adjusted for duration, premium structure, smoker slalus, age attained or shori-term market and
business effects. Given the variety of indluences affecting discontinvance for different product groups, the range of voluntary
discontinuance rates across AMP Life is extremely diverse.

The assumptions for fulure rates of discontinuance for the major classes of life Insurance contracts are shown in the following able.
The table inctudes the short term voluntary discontinuance assumptions for Australian risk business.

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Business type Australia New Zealand Australia New Zealand
Conventional 2.1% - 3.0% 1.1% - 1.9% 21% - 3.0% 1.3% - 2.5%
Retall risk {lump sum}* 124% - 17.7% 12.0% - 13.0% 11.9% - 14.6% 10.5% - 12.0%
Retail risk (income benefit) 9.1% - 21.5% 7.0% - 12.0% 8.0% - 20.0% 7.0% - 12.0%
Flexible Lifetime Super (FLS) risk busingss ~ 10.2% - 20.0% n/a 8.8% - 22.7% n/a

* Excludes a small mortgage insurance product for which rates are typically higher than other products

3




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

18. LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

(vifi)  Surrender values
The surrender bases assumed for calculating surrender values are those cuirent at the reporling date. There have been na changes to
the bases during the year (or the prior year) that would materially affect the valuation resuits.

{ix} Monality and morbidity
Standard morlality tabtes, based on national or industry wide data, are used. These are then adjusted by factors thal take account of
AMP Life's own experiences,

Rates of mortality assumed at 31 December 2013 are as follows:
* Conventional and New Zeatand are unchanged from those assumed at 31 December 2012 in Australia and New Zealand. The
rates are based on [A95-97 with an alfowance for fulure Conventional morality improvement.
* Annuitant moriality rales are unchanged from those assumed in December 2012
*  Auslralian Retall Risk moriality rates have changed to be based on the new Industry standard 1A04-08 Death Withcut Riders
table modified based on cur aggregated experience but with overall product specific adjustment factors.

For TPD and Trauma business the Australian Retaif Risk product assumpiions bave been changed 1o use the latest industry table 1A04-
08 modified based on our aggregated experience but with cverall product specific adjustment factars, No changes have been made to
the New Zealand assumptions.

For Income Protection business the assumptions have been updated to use the [AD89-93 standard table modified for AMP Australia
and New Zealand combined experience with overall product specific adjusiment factors. The adjustment factars include age, gender,
ocoupation, waiting period, duration on claim, benefit band and benefil period.

The assumplions are summarised in the following table:
Conventional - % ot 1A95-97

Conventlonal Male Female
Australia ) 67.5% 67.5%
New Zealand 73.0% 73.0%

Retail Lump Sum - % of table

Risk products Male Female
Australiat : 86% - 118% 86% - 118%
New Zealand® 63.0% 63.0%

(1) Base 1A04-08 Death Without Riders table modified based on our aggregated experionce but
w ith overall product speclific adjustment factors

(2) Base 1A95-97 Death Without Riders table modified based on our aggregated experience but
with overall product specific adjustment factors

Annultles® Male - % of IML0O* Female - % of IFLOD*
Australia and New Zealand 95% 80%

{3} Annuities tables moditied for future mortality improvements

Typlcal morbidity assumptions, in aggregate, are as follows:

December 2013
Termination rates
{ultimate) - % of [AD
Income protection Incidence rates - % of 1AD 89-93 89-93
Australia 24% - 138% 44% - 68%
New Zealand 45% - 67% 57% - B7%
Retail Lump Sum Male % of 1A04-08 Female % of 1A04-08
Australia TPD® 140% - 155% 177% - 196%
Australia Trauma® 105% - 110% 105% - 121%

(4) Base lA04-08 TPD & Trauma tables medified based on our aggregated experience but with overall preduct specific
adjustment factors

(5) Base IA04-08 Trauma table modified for modified based on our aggregated experience but w ith overall product
specific adjustment factors
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The actuarial tables used were as follows:

1A95-97 A morlality table developed by lhe Actuaries Institute of Australia based on Australian insured lives
experience from 1995-1997, The table has been modified to allow for future meriality improvement.

IMLOG*/IFLOO* IMLOO and IFLOO are mortatity tables developed by the Actuarfes Institute and the Faculty of
Actuaries based on United Kingdom annuitant lives experience from 1999-2002, The tables refer to
male and female fives respectively and incorporate factors that allow for montality improvements
since the date of the investigation. IMLOO* and IFLOO* are these published {ablas amended for
some specific AMP experience.

{A04-08 DTH This was published by The Actuaries Institute under the name A graduation of the 2004-2008 Lump
Sum Investigation Data. We refer o this lable as JAD4-08. The table contains separate graduations
for Smoker, Non Smokers, Males and Females and Death With and Without Riders.

1A04-08 TPD This Is the TPD graduation published in the same paper as abovs.
IAD04-08 Trauma This is the trauma graduation published in the same paper as above.
|IAD 83-83 A disability lable developed by Actuaries Institute of Australia based on the Australian disability

income experience for the period 1989-1993. This lable has been exdensively modified based on
our aggregate experience

{x) Impact of changes In assumplions
Under MoS, for life insurance contracts valuations using the projection method, changes In assumptions are recognised by adjusting the
value of future profit margins in fife insurance contract fiabilities. Future profit margins are released over future periods.

Changes in actuarial assumptions do not include market retated changes in discount rates such as changes in benchmark market yields
caused by changes in investment markets and economic conditions. These are reflacted in both life Insurance contract liabilities and
assel values at the reporting date.

The impact on future profit margins of changes In actuarial assumptions from 31 December 2012 1o 31 December 2013 in respect of life
insurance cantracls (excluding new business contracts which are measured using assumptions at reporting date) is as shown In the
table below,

Change in llife

Change in insurance Change in
future profit contract shareholders’ profit
Assumption change margins fiabilitles & equity
$m $m $m

Non-market related
changes to discount rates 2 - -
Mortality and morbidity (52) - -
Discontinuance rates {179) - -
Maintenance expenses 10 - -
Cther assumptions(1) 40 -

Footnote: ,
(1) Other assumption changes include the impact of proguct and premium rate changes.

In most cases, the averall amount of [ife insurance contract liabilities and the current period profit are not affected by changes in
assumplions. However, where in the case of a particular related product group, the changes in assumptions al the end of a pericd
eliminate any future profit margins far the related product group, and results In negative future profit margins, this negative balance is
recognised as a loss in the current peried. If the changes In assumptions in a period are favourable for a product group currently in loss
recognilion, then the previously recognised losses are reversed in the period.
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(9) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis —iife insurance contracts
For life insurance contracts that are accounted for under MoS, amounts of liabilities, income or expense recognised in the period are
unlikely to be sensitive to changes in variables even if those changes may have an impact on future profit margins.

This table shows information about the sensitivity of life insurance contracl liabilitles for AMP Life, current shareholder period profit after
income tax, and equity, to a number of possible changes In assumptions relating to insurance risk.

Change In shareholdet
Change in life insurance  profit afier income tax and

contract liabilities equity
Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
Variable Change in variable $m $m fm $m
Mortality 10% Increase in mortality rates - - - -
50% increase in the rate of
Annuitant mortality mortality improvement - - -
Morbidity - Jump sum 20% increase in lump sum
disablement disablement rates - -
Morbidity - disability income  10% increase in incidence rates 1 7 (8} (5)
Morbldity - disability income  10% decrease in recovery rates 25 18 (17) {13)
10% increase in discontinuance
Discontinuance rales rates - - - --
10% increase in maintenance
dMaintenance expenses expenses i 1 {1 (1)

{h} Life insurance risk

The life insurance activities of AMP Life group Involve a number of nen-financial risks concerned with the pricing, acceptance and
management of the mortality, morbidity and longevity risks accepted from policyholders, often in conjunction with the provision of
wealth-management preducts.

The design of products carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promaotional matedals are clear,
unambiguous and do not leave AMP Life open to claims from causes thal were not anticipated. Product prices are set through a process
of financial analysis, including review of previous AMP Life and industry experience and spacific product design features. The variability
inherent in Insurance risk, including concentration risks, is managed by having a large gecgraphically diverse portfolio of individual risks,
undenwriting and the use of reinsurance,

Underwiiting is managed through a dedicated underwriting depanment with formal undenwriting limits and appropriate training and
development of underwriting staff. Individual policies carrying insurance risk are underwritlen on their merits and are generally not
issued without having been examinad and underwritten individually. Individual policies that are transferred from a group scheme are
generally issued without underwriting. Group risk insurance policles meeting certain criterfa are undenwritten on the merits of the
employee group as a whole,

Ctaims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceptance limits and appropriate training and
development of staff to ensure payment of alf genulne claims. Claims experience is assessed regulary and appropriate actuarial
reserves are established to reflact up-to-date experience and any anlzclpaled future events. This includes reserves for claims incurred
but not yet reported.

AMP Life reinsures {cedes) to specialist reinsurance companies a proportion of its portiolio or certain types of insurance risk, including
catastrophe. This serves primarily to:

* reduce the net [iability on large individuat risks;

* obtain greater diversification of insurance risks; and

¢ provide protection agains! large losses.

The specialist reinsurance companies are regulated by APRA or industry regulators in other jurisdictions and have strong credit ratings
from A-to AA+,

Terms and conditions of life insurance contracts

The nature of the terms of the life insurance contracts written by AMP Life is such that cerlain external variables can be identified an
which related cash flows for claim payments depend, The following table provides an overview of the key variables upon which the
liming and ungertainty of fulure cash flows of the various life insurance contracts issued by AMP Life depend.
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Type of contract Detail of contract workings Malure of compensation for claims Key variables affecting
future cash flows

Non-pariicipating life Thesa polcies provide guaranteed Bene!ils, defined by the insuranca cantract,  AMortalty, morbidity,
Insurance coniracls with  benefits, w hich are paid on death or #  are not directly affected by the performance  [apses, expenses and
fixed and guarantecd nealth, that are fixed and nol at the of any underlying assels or the performance market earning rates on
terms (term life and discretion of the Life Company. Prermium of any associzted investment contracls as a  assels backing the
disability and yearly rates for yearly renew able business whole. liabifties.

rensuable) are not guaranteed and may ba

changed at the Lite Corrpany’s
digcretion for the portfofio as a whole.

Lite annuily coniracis I exchange for an inftial single premium, The amount of tha guaranieed regular incoma  Longavity, expensas and
lhese policies provide a guaranieed is set at inceptien of the policy including any  market earning rales on
regular income for the fie of the indexation. assels backing the
insured. kabilities.

Cenventional life These policies combine fife insurance  Benefits arising framthe discretionary Marke! earning rates on

insurance conlracts with  and savings. The pofcyholder pays @ bonusas are based on the performance of a  assets backing the

discrelicnary parficipaling regular prermium and receives the specified pool of contracis and the assets liabifties, interest rates,
benefits fendowment and  specified suminsured plus any accrulng supporting these coniracts. ‘lapses, expenses, and
whole of life} bonuses on death or maturity. The sum mortakly.

insured is spacified at inceptlan and
guaranteed. Reversionary bonuses are
added annually, which once added
(vesled) are guaranteed. A further
terminal bonus may be added on
surrender, death or maturity.

Invesiment account Tha gross value of premiums recefved  Payment of tha account balance is generally  Fees, lapses, expenses

contracts with is invasted in the investment account guaranteed, although it may ba subject to and market earning rates

discreticnary parficipating with fees and premiums for any certain penalties on early surrender or imited  on the assets backing the

fealures associated insurance cover being adjustmant in adverse markets. Operating liabilties, interest rates.
deducted {rom the account balance profit arising fromthese conlraets is allocated

w hen due. Interest is crediled regularly. belw een [ha policyholders and shareholders
with not less than 80% allocated to
policyholders. Distribution of pokeyhokder
profit is through an interest rate mechanism

(i) Liquidity risk and future net cash outflows

The following table shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract liabilities, This includes
estimated future surrenders, death/disability ctaims and maturity benefits, offset by expected fulure premiums or contributions and
reinsurarce recoveries. All values are discounted to the reporling date using the assumed future investment eamning rate for each
product.

Up to 1 year 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
$m $m $m $m
2013 746 1,989 6,891 9,626
2012 784 2,022 6,590 9,396
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2013 2012

&m im
{a) Analysls of |ife insurance and Investment contract profit
Compenents of profit refated to life insurance and invesimant coniract iahilties:
- Manned margins of revenues over expenses released 405 32
- Protits (losses) arising from difference betw een actual and assuned (17) g5

experignce

- Profits {losses) arising from changes in assumptions {5) {73)
Profit related to life insurance and investment coniract liabilities 383 384
Atiributable to:
- Life insurance contracts 224 262
- lnvesiment contracts 159 f22
Investment earnings on assels in excess of life insurance and

64 90

investment contract liabilities

(b) Restrictions on assets In statutory funds

AMP Life conducts investment linked and non-investment linked business. For investment linked business, deposits are received from
policyholders, the funds are invested on behalf of the poficyholders and the resulting liabifity to policyholders is linked to the
performance and value of the assets that back those liabilities,

The Life Act requires the life insurance business of AMP Life to be conducted within life statutory funds.

AMP Life has three stalutory funds as set out below;

Australia Capital guaranteed business (whole of life, endowment, investment account, retail and

group risk, and immediate annuities).
No. 1 fund

All business {whole of fife, endowment, investment account, retail and group risk,

New Zealand investment-linked and immediate annuities).
. Invesiment-linked superannuation business {retafl and group investment-linked and

No. 2 fund Australia deferred annuities).
No. 3 fund Australia Investment-finked ordinary business.

Investments held in the life statutory funds can only be used in accordance with the relevant regulatory restrictions imposed under the
Life Act and associated rules and regulations. The main restrictions are that the assets in a life statutory fund can only be used to meet
the fiabilities and expenses of that life statutory fund, to acquire investments to further the business of the life statutory fund or as
distributions provided solvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements are met. See further details about solvency and

capital adequacy in Note 19(d).
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2013 2012
$m sm
{c} Capital quarantees
life insurance contracts with a discretionary participaling fealura
- Amaunt of tha iabllities that relate to quarantees 13,216 13,630
hvestrent finked contracts
- Amount of the Fabities sublect 1o investment perfarmance guarantees 1,006 1,168
Cther Ffe insurance and investment contracts with a guaranteed termination value
- Current termination value 108 116

{d} Capital requirements

Registered life insurance entities are required to hold prudential reserves, over and above their life insurance contract and investment
contract labilities, as a buffer against adverse expetience and poor investment returns. New prudential capital standards for Australian
Life and General Insurance Companies (LAGIC) were introduced effective 1 January 2013, This LAGIC framework is intended to take
account of the full range of risks 1o which a regutated institution is exposed and introduces the prescribed capital amount (PCA)
requirement, The PCA is the minimum level of capital that the regulator deems must be held to meet policyholder obligations. The
regulatory capital base and prescribed capital amounts at 3t December 2013 have been calculated based on the new standards.
Capital disclosures prior to 1 January 2013 were based on the capital standards in place at the time and have not been restated to
reflect the LAGIGC requirements.

In addition to the requiatory capital requirements, AMP Life maintains a target surplus providing additional capital buffer against adverse
events. AMP Life uses internal capital models to determine its target surplus, with the models reflecting the tisks of the business,
principally the risk of adverse asse! movements relative to the liabilities and of worse than expected claims costs.

The excess of AMP Life's capital base over the prescribed capital amount required under LAGIC as at 31 December 2013 was $864m.

Prior to 1 January 2013, AMP Life was required to hold prudential reserves based on the greater of the requirements under solvency
and capital adequacy standards. The purpose of the solvency requirement was 10 ensure, as far as practicable, that at any time the life
company was able 1o meet all existing liabilities as they became due. The capital adequacy requirement was a separate requirement
{usually greater), laking into account also viability as an ongoling concern. These were specified in the Life Insurance Act 1995, the
previous LPS 2.04 Solvency Standard and LPS 3.04 Gapital Adequacy Standard.

The Appointed Actuary of AMF Life has confirmed that the avallable assets of each life statutory fund have exceeded PCA at all times
during 2013 and exceeded the previous capital adequacy and the solvency reserve required at afl imes during 2012.

37




AMP Life Limited Financial Report
Notes to financial statements

for the year ended 3t December 2043

19. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

No 1 No 2 No 3
Statutory Statutory Statutory Shareholders
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
2013 $m $m $m $m $m
Capital base
Net assels as per Life lnsurance Act 1,817 193 g 840 2,859
Total regulatory adjustments to net assets (741) {14} (2} (540) (1,297)
Common equity Tier 1 Capital 1,076 179 7 300 1,562
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 1 Capital - - - - -
Tier 2 Capital 170 45 - - 215
Tofal regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 Capital - - - - -
Total capltal base A 1,246 224 7 300 1,777
Prescribed capital
insurance risk charge - - - B i
Assetrisk charge 396 40 - 14 450
Assel concentration risk charge - - - - -
Operational risk charge 84 141 2 - 227
Less aggregation benefit - - - - -
Combined stress scenario adjustmant 231 - - 5 236
Total Prescribed Capital Am ount (PCA) B 711 181 2 19 913
Capital adequacy multiple A/B 175% 124% 362% 1521% 194%
No 1 No 2 No 3
Statutory Slatutory Statutory Tolal Statutory
fund fund fund Funds
2012 $m $m $m $m
Solvency requirement
MNat minimum termination value {MiV}) 19,715 48,484 607 68,806
Adjusted other liatilities 2,378 1,524 26 3,928
Solvency reserve B 2518 169 2 2,689
Total solvency requirement A 24,611 50,177 635 75,423
Assets available for solvency
Net assels 1,824 207 8 2,039
Liabifly for unvested policy ow ner benefits 1,374 - - 1,374
Excess of net policy liabilitles (including policy ow ner bonuses) 697 i1 - 708
over MTV
Total assels available for solvency C 3,805 218 8 4,121
Solvency Reserve % B/(A-B)*100 11.4% 0.3% 0.3% 3.7%
Coverage of Solvency Reserve C/B 1.5 1.3 44 1.5

(e} Actuarial information

Mr Rocco Mangano (BA, FIA, FIAA), as the Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, is salisfied as to the accuracy of the data used in the
valuations in the Financial Report and in the tables in this Note and Note 18.

The liabilities 10 policyholders (being the sum of the life insurance confract and investment contract liahilities, including any asset or
liabitity arising in respect of the management services element of an investment contract) and solvency reserves have been determined

at the reporting date in accordance with the Life Act.

{f)y Amounts which may be recovered or settled within 12 months after the reparting date
Based on assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns of the various product groups, it is estimated that approximately $11,528m (2012;
$10,918m)} of policy liabilities may be setiled within 12 months of the reporting date.

38




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

19. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated information

The Life Act requires the life insurance business of AMP Life to be conducted within statutory funds that are separate 1o the AMP Life
shareho!der's fund. The financial statemenls of AMP Life (which are lodged with the relevant Australian regulators) disclose all major
components of the financial statements disaggregated between the various life Insurance statutory funds and the shareholder's fund, as
well as by invesiment-linked and non-investment-linked business.

(i} Income statement by statutory fund and shareholders’ fund

No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders’ Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2013 $m $m $m sm $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder
Insurance premium and related revenue 1,262 - - - 1,262
Fae revenue 44 17 10 46 1,017
Clher revenue ' 3 - - . 3
hvestment gains and (losses) 1,383 9,339 101 34 10,857
hsurance claims and related expenses (1,297) - - - (1,297)
Operaling expenses {641) (759) (7) (2) (1,409)
Finance costs {18) - - - {18)
Changa in policyholder liabilities
- Lile insurance conlracts (201) - - - {201}
- lhvestment contracls (142) (8,830) (72) - {9,044}
Profit / (loss) before income tax 393 667 32 78 1,170
Income tax {expense) / credit (115) (504) (26) (15) (660)
Net protit for the year 278 163 6 63 510
No 1 No 2 Ne 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders' Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2012 - $m $m $m $m $m
Income and expensas of pelicyholders and the
shareholder
Insurance premium and refated revenue 1,204 - - - 1,204
Fee revenue 47 824 11 46 928
Other revenue 4 - - - 4
vestment gains and {losses) 2,069 6,399 86 28 8,582
hsurance claims and related expenses (1,263) - - - {1,263}
Operaling expenses (629) (716) {7 {1} {1,353}
Finance costs (32) {1) - - (33)
Change in paolicy holder liabilities _
- Lite insurance contracts . (557) - - - (557)
- hvestmen! contracts (193) (6,061} (64) - {6,318)
Protit before income tax 650 445 26 73 1,194
hcome tax (expense) / credil {320) {305) (22) {15) (662)
Net profit for the year 330 140 4 58 532
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19. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(1) Disaggregated information (continuad)

{ii} Statement of financial position by statutory fund and shareholders' fund
No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-

Bimine-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders® ":2:1&3 Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund

2013 $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assels
Investments in financial assets measured at fair 19,610 66,153 688 183 (44) 76,530
value through profit or loss
hvestment property 133 1,346 - - . 1,479
lnvestments in controlled entities 1,893 219 3 51 . 2,166
Other assets 3,951 693 4 618 a9 5,355
Total assets of policyholders and the
shareholder 25,587 58,411 695 852 45 85,590
Liabilities
Life insurance contract llabflies 17,875 - - - - 17,875
hvestment contract liabilties 3,321 56,487 620 - - 60,428
Other liahilities 2,574 1,731 66 i2 45 4,428
Total llabilities of policyholders and the
shareholder 23,770 58,218 686 12 45 82,731
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,817 193 9 840 - 2,859
Equity
Coeniributed equity 158 173 . 580 . a11
Reserves 50 - - {13) - 37
Retained eamnings 1,609 20 g 273 - 1,911
Total equlity of AMP Life Limited 1,817 193 g 840 - 2,859
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19, OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{9) Disaggregated information (continued)

(i) Statement of financial position by statutory fund and shareholders’ fund (continued)

No 1 No 2 CNo3 Share- Himin-
Stalutory  Statutory  Statutory holders' ations Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund

2012 $m $m $m sm $m sm
Assels
Investmenis in financial assets measured af fair 19,813 47,864 624 186 (38) 68,449
value through profit or loss
Investment property 132 1,288 - - 1,420
hvestnents in centrolied entities 1,435 220 3 44 1,699
Other assels 4,312 440 12 928 - 5,692
Total assets of pollcyholders and the
shareholder 25,692 49,812 639 1,155 {38} 77,260
Liabilities
Life insurance coniract Fabilities 17,944 - - - 17,944
hvestment contract labilities 3,962 48,495 607 - - 53,064
Other liabiliies 1,962 1,110 24 i2 {38) 3,070
Total labilities of policyholders and the
shareholder 23,868 49,605 631 12 {38) 74,078
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,824 207 8 1,143 - 3,182
Equity .
Contributed equity 303 208 - 580 1,001
Reserves (18) - (14) {32)
Retained earnings ' 1,539 (1) 8 577 - 2,123
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,824 207 8 1,143 - 3,182
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18. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(4) Disapgregated information (continued)

(i) Retained earnings by statutory fund and shareholders’ fund

No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Statutory  Statutory holders® Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2013 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,539 4] 8 577 S 2123
Nel profil 278 163 6 63 510
Transfers betw een stalufory and sharghalders' funds (208) (142) (5} 355
Dividends paid - - - {722} (722)
Closing retained earnings . 1,609 20 9 273 1,811
¢ No 1 No2 - No 3 Share-
Statutory  Staiutory  Statutory holders' Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2012 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1471 4 5 634 2,151
Net profit 330 140 4 58 532
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders’ funds (262) (182) (1) 445 -
Dividends paid - - - (560) (560)
ClosIng relained earnings 1,539 {1} 8 577 2123
{iv} Contributed aquity by statutory fund and shareholders” fund
No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Stalutory  Statutory  holders’ Tota!
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2013 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening contributed equity 303 208 - 580 1,081
Return of capital (145) (35) - - (180)
Closing contributed equily 158 1713 - 580 911
No 1 No 2 No 3 Share-
Statutory  Slatutory  Statutory  holders’ Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund
2012 $m $m $m $m $m
Openirg contributed equity 303 285 . 503 1,001
Transters betw een statutory and shareholders' funds . {77 . 77
Closing contributed equily 303 208 . 580 1,081
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19. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(g} Disaggregated infarmation {continued) '

(v} Income statement by non-investment linked and investment linked

Non- Investment Total Share-
Investment Linked Statutory holders’ Total
Linked Funds Fund
2013 $m $m $m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder
lnsurance premium and related revenue 1,262 - 1,262 - 1,262
Fee revenue 42 329 an 46 1,017
Other revenue 3 - 3 - 3
hvestment gains and (losses) 1,368 9,455 10,823 34 10,857
hsurance claims and related expenses (1,297) - {1,297} - (1,297)
Operaling expenses {640) (767) (1,407) ] {1,408)
Finance costs (18 - (18) (18}
Change in poficyholder Fabiities
- Life insurance contracts {201) - (201) {201)
- hvestment contracls (i27) (8,917) (9,044) (9,044)
Profit / (loss) before Income tax 392 700 1,092 78 1,170
ncome tax {expense) / credit (114} (531) (645) {15) {660)
Net profit for the year 278 169 447 63 510
Non- Investment Total Share-
Investment Linked Statutory holders® Total
Linked Funds Fund
2012 $m $m $m $m $m
Income and expenses of policyholders and the
shareholder
hsurance premium and related revenue 1,204 - 1,204 1,204
Fee revenue 46 836 882 46 328
Other revenue 4 - 4 - 4
hvestment gains and (losses) 2,058 6,498 8,554 28 8,582
hsurance claims and related expenses {1,263) - {1,263) - (1,263)
Cperating expenses (628) {724 {1,352) (1) (1,353)
Finance costs (32) (1) (33) - (33
Change in policyholder fiabikties
- Life insurance contracts (557} - {557) (657)
- Investment contrasts (182) (6,136) (6,318) {6,318
Profit before income tax 648 473 1,121 73 1,194
hcome tax (expense) 7 credit (318) {329} (647) (15) (662)
Net profit for the year 330 144 474 58 532
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19. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)

{g) Disaggregated information (¢ontinued)

(vi) Statement of financial position by non-investment finked and investment finked

Non- I Tatal Share-
nvestment .
Investment Linked Statutory holders’ Bim Total
Linked Funds Fund

2013 $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
lhvestments in financial assets measured at fair 19,493 56,958 76,451 183 (44) 76,590
value through profit or loss
lnvesiment property 133 1,346 1,479 - 1,479
nvestments in conirolled entities 1,796 319 2,i15 5% - 2,166
Olher assets 3,929 9 4,648 618 89 5,355
Total assets of polleyholders and the
shareholder 25,351 59,342 84,693 852 45 85,590
Liabilities
Life insurance conlract #abilties 17,875 - 17,875 - 17,875
lnvestment conlract fiabilties 3,216 57,212 60,428 - 60,428
Other fabilties 2,552 1,819 4,371 12 45 4,428
Total liabilities of policyholders and the
shareholder 23,643 59,031 82,674 12 45 82,7:
Net assets of AMP Life Limited : 1,708 I 2,019 840 - 2,859
Equily
Contributed equity i58 173 KK 580 ati
Reserves 55 (5) 50 (13) - 37
Retained earnings 1,495 143 1,638 273 - 1,911
Total equily of AMP Life Limited 1,708 15 2,019 840 - 2,859
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19. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disaggregated Iinformation (continued)

{vi} Statemeni of financial position by non-investment linked and Invesiment linked (continued)

Non- Investment Total Share-
Investment Linked Statutory  holders' Him Total
Linked Funds Fund

2012 $m $m " $m $m $m $m
Assets
Investments in financial assets measured at fair 19,713 48,588 68,301 186 (38) 68,449
value through profit or loss
hvesiment property 132 1,288 1,420 - 1,420
hvesiments in controfled enlities 1,365 293 1,658 41 - 1,699
Clher assets 4,233 4 4,764 928 - 5,692
Tolal assets of policyholders and the
shareholder 25,503 50,640 76,143 1,155 {38) 77,260
Liabilities
Life insurance contract liahiliies 17,944 . 17,944 - - 17,944
lnvestment contract liabities 3,874 49,190 53,064 - - 53,064
Other liabilities 1,861 1,235 3,096 12 {38) 3,070
Total liabllities of policyholders and the :
share holder 23,679 50,425 74,104 12 {38) 74,078
Net assets of AMP Life Limited 1,824 215 2,039 ' 1,143 - 3,182
Equity
Cenlributed equity 303 208 511 580 - 1,001
Reserves {14) {4) (18} {14 - {32)
Relained earnings 1,535 11 1,546 h77 E 2,123
Total equity of AMP Life Limited 1,824 215 2,039 1,143 3,182
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19. OTHER LIFE INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(g) Disagaregated information (continued)
(vii) Relained earnings by non-invastment linked and investment linked

Non- Total

Shareholders'
Investment Invesl,_tir:keen; Statutory ar c|l=u:1 d Total
Linked Funds
2013 ~§m $m $m $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,535 1 i,546 577 2,123
Net profit 278 169 447 83 510
Transfers betw een statulory and shareholders' funds {317 (38) {355) 355 -
Dividends paid - - - (722) (722)
Glosing retained earnings 1,496 142 1,638 273 1,911
Non- | vestment Tolal o rehotders’
Investment Linked Statutory Fund Tolal
] Linked Funds
2012 $m $m sm $m $m
Opening retained earnings 1,470 47 1,517 634 2,151
Net profit 330 144 474 58 532
Transfers betw een stalutory and shargholders’ funds {259) (188) (445} 445
Transfers betw een statutory funds {6} 6 - ' -
Dvidends paid - - - (560) (560)
Clesing retained earnings 1,535 11 1,546 577 2,123
{vil) Contributed equiity by non-investment linked and investment linked
Non- | vestment Totat o oreholders'
Investment Linked Statutory Fund Total
Linked Funds
2013 $m $m $m $m $m
Opening contributed equity 303 208 5N 580 1,091
Return of capital {145) (35) (180} - {180}
Closing contributed equity 158 173 331 580 a1
Non-  estment Total - o areholders’
Investment Linked Slatutory Fund Totat
Linked Funds
2012 $m $m $m gm $m
Opening contributed equity 303 285 588 503 1,001
Transfers betw een statutory and shareholders' funds . {(77) (1 77 R
303 208 511 580 1,001

Closing contributed equity
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

Financial risk management
Financial risk management (FRM}) in AMP Life is conducted as part of AMP group's enterprise risk management framework. The AMP
Limited Audit Gommitiee, supported by the Group Asset and Liability Commiltee (Group ALCO), is responsible for ensuring financial

risks are appropriately managed,

(a) Risks and mitigation

Financial risks arising in AMP Life include market risk {investment risk, Interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, currency risk, properly
risk, and equity price risk); liquidity and refinancing risk; and credit risk. These risks are managed according to the Enterprise Risk
Management Policy and individual policies for each risk category. This financial risk management includes the use of derivative financial
instruments such as cross-currency and inlerest rale swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and foreign currency contracts to
hedge risk exposures arising from changes in interest rates and forelgn exchange rates.

Financial risk management includes decisions made about the allocation of investment assets across asset classes and/or markels and
the management of risks within these asset classes. Financial risk for investments in the AMP group Is managed by reference to the
probability of oss relative to expected Income over a one-yaar time herizon at a 90 per cent confidence level (profit at risk). In respect of
invastments held in the shareholder fund and in the life statutory funds, the loss tolerance over the discretlonary investments is set at a
low level because AMP has equily market exposure in its businesses (for example through fees on assels under management).

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of assets and liabilities, or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate due to
movements In the financial markels. These movements include forelgn exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads, equity prices or
properly prices. Market risk in AMP Life arises from the management of Insurance contracts and investment of shareholder capital
including investments in equities, property, interest bearing investments and corporate debt.

(b} Market risk sensitivity analysls

The paragraphs below include sensitivity analysis tables showing how the profit after tax and equity would have been impacted by
changes in market risk variables including interest rate risk and currency risk as defined in AASB 7 Financial Instiruments: Disclosures.
They show the direct impact on the profit after tax or aquily of a reasonably possible change in factors which affecl the carrying value of
financial assets and financial liabilities held at the end of the reporting period. .

The sensitivily is required to show the impact of a reasonably possible change in market rate (it is not intended to illusirate a remote,
worst case, slress test scenario nor does It represent a forecast. In addition it does not include the impact of any mitigating management
actions) over the period to the subsequent reporling date. The categories of risks faced and methods usad for deriving sensitivity
information did not change from previous periods.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of an impact on AMP Life’s profit after tax and equity from movements in market interest rates, including
charges in the absolute levels of interest rates, the shape of the yield curve, the margin between different yield curves and the volatility

of interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in various activities of the AMP group. Management
of those risks is decentralised according to the activily. As discussed in note 1(b}, AMP Life conducls its wealth management and life
insurance business through separate life statutory funds. Investment assets of the life statutory funds, Including interest-bearing
financial assets, are held 1o back investment contract liabilities, life insurance contract liabilities, retained profits and capital.

The interest rate risk of AMP Life which impacts shareholders arises in respect of financial assets and liabilities held in the shareholder
fund and in the life statutory funds. A risk arises o the extent thal there is an economic mismatch between the timing of payments to life
policyholders and the duration of the assets held in the life statutory funds to back the policyholder liabilities, Whers a liability in respect
of invesiment contracis is divectly finked to the value of the assets (where applicable, net of related liabilities} held to back that liability
(investment-linked business), there is no residual interest rate exposure which would impact shareholders.

Management of various risks associated with investments undertaken by life statutory funds and the life shareholder fund, such as
interest rate risk, is subject to the relevant regulatory requirements governed by the Life Act. AMP Life is required to satisfy capital
adequacy requirements, including holding statutory reserves to cater for interest rate risk to the extent thal assets are not matched
against liabilities.

AMP Life marnages interest rate and other marke! risks pursuant to an assel and ltability management poficy thai has regard to
policyholder expectations and risks to the AMP Life Board's target surplus philosophy for capital as advised by the appointed actuary.

interest rale risk sensitivity analysis
This analysis demonstrates the Impact of a 100 basis point change in Auslralian and Infernational interest rates, with all other variables

held constant, on profit after tax and equity. [t is assumed that all underlying exposures and related hedges are included in the
sensitivity analysis, thal the 100 basis point change occurs as at the reporling date and that there are concurrent movernenlts in inierest
rates and parallel shifts in the yield curves, The impact on equily includes both the Impact on profit afier fax as well as the impact of
amounts that would be taken directly to equity in respect of the porlion of changes in the falr value of darivatives that qualify as cash
flow hedges for hedge accounting. A sensitivity level of 100 basis points is determined considering the range of interest rales applicable
to interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities in the AMP group.
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)

2013 2012
impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equity
increase Increase Increase Increase
{decrease} {decrease) {decrease) {decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
+ 100 basis points {34) (34} (49} (49)
- 100 basis points 50 50 53 53

(it Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of an impact on AMP Life's profit after tax and equity frorn movements in foreign exchange rates. Changes in
value would oceur in respect of translating AMP Life’s capital invested in overseas operalions into Ausiratian doflars at reporting date
(translation risk) or from foreign exchange rate movements on specific cash flow transactions (fransaction risk).

AMP group does not hedge the capital invested in overseas operations {other than foreign seed and sponsor cépital investments},
thereby accepting the foreign currency translation risk on invested capital.

Currency risk sensiiivity analysis

This analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movement of curréncy rates against the Australian doffar, with all other variables
held constant, on the profit after tax and equity due to changes in fair value of currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities at the
reporting date. it is assumed that the 10 per cent change occurs as at the reporting date. A sensitivily levet of 10 per cent is determined
consldering the range of currency exposures In the AMP group.

2013 ) 2012
Impact on Impact on Impact on [mpact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equity
Increase Increase Increase increase
(decrease) (decrease) {decrease) (decrease)
Change in variables $m $m $m $m
10% depreciation of AUD 13 13 1 -1
10% appreciation of AUD (6} (&) (1) (n

(i) Equily price risk
Equity price risk is the tisk of an Impact on AMP Life’s profit after tax and equity from mavements in equity prices. AMP Life measures
equily securities at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity price risk sensitivity analysis

The analysis demonstrates the impact of a 10 per cent movemnent in Ausiralian and Internationa! equities held at the reporting date. This
sensilivity analysis has been performed to assess the direct risk of holding equity instruments. Any potenlial indirect impact on fees from
AMP Life's investment linked business s not included. A sensitivity level of 10 per cent is determined considering the widely spread
portfolios held by AMP Life and the range of movements in equity markets for the periods.

2013 2012
Impact on Impact on fmpact on Im pact an
profil after tax equity profit after tax equity
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease) {decrease) (decrease)
Change in varlables $m $m $im $m
10% increase in Ausiralian equities 9 9 12 12
10% increase in International equities 13 i3 9 9
10% decrease in Austrafian equities 4) {4 {8) {8)
10% decrease in International equities {6} {6} (1} {1
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

{c) Liquidily and refinancing risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that AMP Life is not able to mest its debt obligations or other cash outflows as they fall due because of an
inability to liquidale assets or obtain adequate funding when required. Refinancing risk Is the risk that AMP Life is not able lo refinance
the full quantum of its ongoing debt requirements on appropriate terms and pricing.

The following table summarises the maturily profiles of AMP Life's undiscounted financial Habilities and off-balance sheet items al the
reporting date. The maturity profiles are based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments that are subject to
notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

Maturity proftles of undiscounted financial liahilities™

Up to 1 Year 1to5  More than
or no term Years 5 Years Other® Total
$m $m $m $m $m

2013
Mon-derivative financial liabilities®
Payables 1,112 - - - 1,112
Borrowings 558 - - - 558
Subordinated debt 13 45 271 - 327
hvestment contract habifties®? 1,190 960 1,717 57212 61,079
Total undiscounted financial liabilities® 2,871 1,005 1,088 57,212 63,076
2012
Non-derivative financial llabHities®
Payables 829 1 - - 830
Borrowings 567 - - - 567
hvestment contract liabiliias® 1,673 1,063 1,654 49,190 53,480
Total undiscounted financial liabitities® 2,468 1,064 1,654 49,190 54,877

Foolnotes:

{l) Thetable provides malurityanalysis of AMP Life financial liablities and non-finked nvestment contracts including term annuities.

{2) bwesiment conbract abitles of $57,212m (2012:$49,130m)are Habifitiss to policyhalders forinvesiment linked business linkedta the perfarmance and valua of
assels thal back those liabfitles. ¥ all tho se polieyholders claimed thelr funds, there may be some delays In seitiing the Fabifily as assets are quidated, but tha
shareholder has no diract exposure to any Fquidiy risk,

{3) Estimated net cash otflowprofile of ffeinsurance contract liabilities is disclosed in Note 13 and are excluded Irom the above table,

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk includes both setilement credit exposures and traded credit exposures. Gredit default risk is the risk of an adverse impact on
resuls and asset vatues relative to expecialions due lo a counterparly failing to meet their corftractual commitments in fulf and on fime
{obligator's non-payment of a debt). Traded credit risk is the risk of an adverse Impacl on resulls and asse! values relative to
expectations due to changes In the value of a traded financial instrument as a result of changes in credit risk on that instrumant.

The AMP concentration risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk. The policy has set
. exposure limits for each counterparty and credit rating. Compliance with this policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are
reported lo senior management and the AMP Limited Audit Gommittee through moenthly and quarterly FRM reports.

Credit risk management is decentralised in business urits within the AMP group. However, cradit risk directly and indirecily (i.e. in the
participating business) Impacting shareholder capital is measured and managed by AMP Group Treasury on a group basis, by
aggregaling risk from ¢redil exposures taken in business units. Credit risk on the invested fixed income portfolios in the AMP Life
statutory funds is managed by the AMP Capital Risk and Compliance Committee (AMP Capital R&C) and reported to the fund
managers, within specified credit criteria in the mandale approved by the AMP Life Board. The sharehalder portion of credit risk in AMP
Lite is reported to Group ALGO by Group Treasury.

(i} Management of credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counlerparty or
where a number of countarparties are engaged in similar business activities that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk is managed through both aggregate
credit rating limits and individual counterparty limits, which are determined predeminantly on the basis of the counterparty’s credit rating.
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

At reporting date, there fs no specific concentvation of credit risk with a single counterparty arising from the use of financial instruments,
other than the normal clearing-house exposures associaled with dealings through recognised exchanges.

The counterparties to non-exchange traded coniracts, at the time of entering those contracts, are limited to companies with investment
grade credit (BBB- or greater). The credit risks associaled with these counterparties are assessed under the same management policies
as applied to direct investments In AMP group’s portfolio.

Gompliance is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to senior management and the AMP Limited Audit Committee
through the monthly and quarterly FRM Report.

() Exposure to credif risk

The exposures on interest bearing securities and cash equivalents which impact the AMP Life’s capital posilion are managed by AMP
Treasury within limits set by the AMP Concentration Risk Policy. The following table provides information regarding the credit risk
exposures for items monitared by AMP Treasury according to hie credit rating of the counterparties.

2013 2012

$m $m
AAA 3,624 2,543
AA-to AA+ 4,826 8,881
A-fo A+ 2,052 2220
BBB- to BBR+ 1,732 877
BB+ and below 52 66
Total financlal assets with credit risk exposure managed by AMP Treasury 12,286 14,587

(1)) Adjustment for own credit risk in the determination of the fair value of life Investmant conlract policy labifities
The fair value of non-investment linked investment contract Habilities includas the following allowance for the credit risk that an external
party would ascribe to an amount due from AMP Life:

2013 2012

$m $m

Cumulative adjustment il 20
Change during the period - (9) 7

The adjustment has been determined as the difference between the fair value recegnised and an amount calculated on the same basis
using a risk-free interest rate in place of the falr value discount rate.

(iv) Collateral
AMP Life enters inte debt security repurchase agreements and part of the agreement includes the receipt of colfateral which Is required

fo be returned to the counterparty on setttement.

() Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value in the Stalement of financial position as assels and liabifities. Asset and
liability values on individual transactions are only netted if the transactions are with the same caunterparty and the cash flows will be
settled on a net basis. Changes in values of derivative financial instruments are recegnised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

(i) Derivalive transactions undertaken by AMP life insurance enlities as part of life Insurance operations

AMP Life uses derivative financiaf instruments including financiaf futures, forward foreign exchange contracts, exchange traded and
other options and forward rate agreements to hedge the impact of market movements on the value of assets in the investment
portfollos, and to effect a change in the asset mix of investment portfolios.

tn respect of the risks assoclated with the use of derivative financial instruments, price risk is controlled by exposure limits, which are
subject to monitoring and review. Foreign exchange hedges are monitored on a regular basis to ensure they are effeclive in the
reduction of price risk.

(i) Risk relating to derivative financial instruments

The market risk of derivatives is managed and controlled as an integral part of the financial risk of the AMP group, The credit risk of
derivatives fs also managed in the context of the AMP group’s overall credit risk policles.
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(fy Master netting or similar agreements

(i} Derivative financial assefs and liabilitles

Certain derivative assets and liabilities are subject to legally enforceable master netling atrangements, such as an International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (1ISDA) master neiting agreement. [n certain circumsiances, for example, when a credil event such as a
default ocours, all outstanding transactions under an ISDA agreement are terminated, the termination value is assessed and only a
single net amount Is payable in seitlement of all transactions.

An ISDA agreement does not mee! the criteria for offsetting in the Statement of financial position as AMP Life does not have any
currently fegally enforceable right to offset recognised amounts, as the right to offset is enforceable only on the occurrence of fulurg
events such as a default.

As at 31 December 2013, if these nelting arrangements were applied to the derivative portfolio, the derivative assets of $308m would be
reduced by $50m to the net amount of $268m and derivative llabllities of $354m would be reduced by $50m to the net amount of $304m
(31 December 2012: derivative assets of $366m reduced by $23m fo the net amount of $343m and derivative liabilities of $128m
reduced by $23m to the net amount of $103m).

{ii} Repurchase Agreements

Included within debt securilies are assets held to back the liability for collateral deposits hefd in respect of debt security repurchase
arrangements entered into by the life entities” statutory funds. Gollateral deposits held includes the obligation to repay collateral held in
respect of debt security repUrchase arrangements entered into. As at 31 December 2013, if repurchase arrangements were neited, debt
securities of $9,200m would be reduced by $595m to the net amount of $8,605m and collateral deposits held of $595m would be
reduced by $595m to the net amount of nil (31 December 2012: debt securities of $9,300m reduced by $548m to the net amount of
$8,752m and collateral deposils held of $548m reduced by $548m to the net amount of nil).

{g) Other collateral

AMP Life has collateral arrangements in place with some counterparties n addition to coltateral depaosits held with respect to repurchase
agreements, Collateral generally consists of 11am loans and deposits and is exchanged between the counterparties to reduce the
exposure fram the net fair value of derivalive assets and liabilities between the counterparties, As at 31 December 2013 there was
$38m of collateral deposits due to other financial Institutions (2012: $10m) and $23m of collateral loans due from other financial
institutions relating to derivative assets and abilities (2012: $46m).

21. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

AMP Lite's assets and liabilities measured al fair value are categorised under a three level hierarchy, reflacting the availability of
observable marke! inputs when estimating the fair valus. If different levels of Inputs are used to measure a financial instrument's falr
value, the classificatfon within the hierarchy is based on the lowesl teve) input that is significant to the fair value measurement, The three

levels are:

Level 1: Valued by reference to quoled prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities. These quoted prices represent actual
and regutarly occurring market! iransactions on an am’s [ength basis.

Leve! 2: Valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either direcily
(as pr|ces) or indirectly (derived from prices}, including: quoted prices in active markets for similar assels or liahilities, quoted prices in
markets in which there are few transactions for identical or similar assels or fiabilities, and other inpuis that are not quoted prices but are
observable for the asset or liability, for example interest rate yield curves observable at commonly quoled intervals, currency rates,
option volatllities, credit risks, and default rates.

Level 3: Valued in whole or In pant using valuation tachniques or models that are based on unobservable inputs that are neither
supporied by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor based on available market data,
Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best informalion available, which might include the company's own data, reflecting
the company's own eslimates about the assumptions that marke! participants would use in pricing the assel or lability. Valuation
techniques are used to the extent thal observable inputs are not available, and include estimates about the timing of cash flows,
discount rates, eamnings multiples and other inputs.
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21. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value by each level of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Totalfalr value
2093 $m $m $m $m
Assets
Measured al fair value on a recurring basis
Equity securiies and Ested managed investment schemeas 11,377 - 154 1,531
Debt securilies - 9,144 56 9,200
tvestments in unfisted managed invesimen| schemes 55,337 75 55412
Cerivative financial assets 214 9 - 308
Cther financial assets 139 - 139
lvestments in controfed entities - 2415 - 2,115
Investment property™ - - 1,479 1,479
Tolal financial assels measured at falr value on a recurring basts 11,591 66,829 1,764 80,184
Liabilitles
teasured at fair value on arecurring basis
Borrowings 558 - 558
Cotaleral deposits held 595 . - 595
Derivative financial fabities 139 215 354
Investment conlract Fabties - 2,872 57,558 60,428
Totak financlal liabililies measured at fair value on a recurring basis 734 3645 57,556 61,835
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Totaltair value
2012 $m $m $m $m
Assets®
Measured al fair value on arecurring basls
Equity securities and Fsted managed investment schemes 9,264 - 194 9,458
Debt securities - 9,180 119 9,299
lwestments in unfsted managed investment schemes - 47,339 189 47528
Derivalive financlal assets 152 214 368
lvestments in controlied entities - 1,658 1,658
Clher financial assels 139 139
Total financial assets measured at fair value on arecurring basis 9,416 58,530 502 69,449
Liabilities
Measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Borrowings - 567 - 567
Collateral deposits hekd 548 - 548
Derivative finangial fabTties 46 80 - 126
kvestment contract FabTties - 3443 49,621 53,064
Total financial liabilittes measured at falr value on arecurring basis 564 4,090 49,621 54,305

Faotnate:
{1 Referto Hote 9 kwesiment property for valualion techniques and keyunobserveblainputs,

(2) AASB ) introduced fair value information d'sclosura requsements for non-financial assets and fiabTtes. Retiospective appEcationwas nat required therelore comparatives

have notbeen presented.
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21. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table shows a reconcillation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categarised within Level 3 between

the beginning and the end of the reporling date:

Total gains and
losses on
Balance at Sales/ Net Bafance at assets and
the beginning FXgalns Tolal galns/ Purchasas/  (with- transfers the end of liabilitfes held at
of the yaar orlosses® (losses)®  deposils drawals) In/{out)™™  the year reporting date
2013 $m $m $m $m $m Sm $m $m
Assets classified as level 3!
Fquity securitiss and Ested 194 (37 2 {5} 154 {37)
managed investment
Debt Securities 119 (26) . {37) - 56 (26)
hvestments in unfisted
managed investment 189 - {14} b (1) (104) 5 (14)
Tolal financial assets 502 . {17 7 (43) (104) 285 (77
Llabilities
hvestment contract Fabiilies 49,621 12 8,010 9,128 (9,215 57,556 7,565
Tolal financlal labliittes 49,621 12 8,010 9128 (921 57,556 7,565
2012
Assets classified as level 3®
Equity securitizs and Ested
managed Investmen! 232 (36) 17 f19) 194 {36)
Debt Securfies 151 {4) 1 (75) 46 119 (4
hvestments in unfisted
managed investment 22 (33) ° @) i 189 (33)
Total financial assets 605 - (73) 27 (103) 46 502 (73)
Liabilities
hvesiment contract ablities 44,737 . 5357 8312  (8,785) - 49,621 5,105
Total financial liabilities 44,737 - 5,357 8312 (8,785) - 49,621 5,106

Footnote:

() AMP Life recognises transiers as al the end of the repoling period dusing w hich The lransler has o courred, Transfers are recognised when there are changesin the

obsarvabiity of the pricing of the relevant securilies.

{2) Gains and losses are classified in invastment gains and losses or changain pokcyholder Fabties in the Statement of comprehensivaincome.

(3) Transfers out pimarily refate to changes inthe obsenabifity of pricing of AM P

transfars from Level #1a Lavel 2 or vice versa.

(4) As at 31Decmber 2013, net unvealised losses refating to financial assels was $ 75m.

{5} Movements relating o kvestment properly are disclo sedinMote 8,

53

Life's investment in an unfisted managed investment s¢heme. Thero have been na sigaificant




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

21. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the sensitivity of the fair value of level 3 instruments to changes in key assumptions:

Effect of reasonably possible
alternalive assumptions®

Carrying
amountMi ) {4
2013 $m $m $m Valuation Technlque Key Unobservahle inputs
Assets®
Equly securlies and bsted managed inveslment schemes 154 (4} Discounted cash flow approach Discourt rate
utibsing cost of equity as the dscount  Terminatvalue growth rate
rate. Cash flow forecasts
Debit securities 56 - Discounted cash flow apgroach Discount rate
Cash flow forecasts
hvestments inunfisted managed ivestment schames 75 - Putlshed redenption prices Valuation of the unfsted
managed investment
schemes,
Suspension of redemplions of
the managed investment
schemes
Financizl assets 285 4 {4
Liabifities
hvestment conlract FabTriest 57,556 6 (6) Vauation modal based on published  Faf valua of financial
urd prices and the fair value of instruments
backing assets Cash flow lorecasts
Credirisk
Financlai lizhilifies 57,556 6 {6)
Hfect of reasonably possible
aliernative assumptions
Carrying amount {9 9]
2012 $m $m $m
Assels®
Equiy securities and Esled managed investment schemes 194 9 {9
Debt securities 119 - -
Ivestments in unésted managed nvesiment schemes 189
Financlal assets 502 ] {8
Liabllitles
lvestment ¢ontract fabTtes 44621 6 {6}
Financial liabilitie s 49,621 6 {6)
Fooinate:

{h Thefervalueof theassel orfatliywotdincrease'decreas e i ha discaurt rete decreasesfingreases, Tha fairvzhuo of the asset ar Fabity wo Ll increase'desrease i 1he othar inguls increase'dacrease.

{2) Eachindwvihez! sssel and industryprotia wl daterming the appropriate valuatian fo bouliisedin each specic valuzton and canvary from asset 1o assel. The discount rate ranges for equity securtics fall within [HB%- 529,

(3) Reasonabiypossitie aternative assumptions have been calctdated by changing ona o mare of signif ket unotsenvable frputs ferindividual ass els to reasonzhly posstle akernalive assumptions. On financial ass efs 1h's
inchided adustiog Gscount rateby 25bps- D0bps. Onimrestment contrest kabTies this fnchadad adtistments bo eradd Fs' by Sttps,

(4} Backing financial instruments includa lzvel 3 assels.

(5) Ivvestment propedyinformeationis disch sedin Hote 9,
{6) AASB Bintroduced fair velua nfo rmalian disclosure requiremests for non-financial assets and FabTes. Retraspastive epplcalion was rol requved tharefore comparatives have not besn presented.

Financial asset valuation process :

For firancial assets categorised within Leve! 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the valuation processes applied in valuing such assets is
governed by the AMP Capital Asset Valuation Palicy, This policy oullines the asset valuation methodologies and processes applied to
measure non-exchange traded assets which have no regular market price, Including investment praperty, infrastructure, private equity,
alternative assels, and llliquid Debt Securities. All significant Leve! 3 assels are referred to the appropriate valuation committee who
meet at least every 6 months, or more frequently if required.
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22. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AMP Life and ils subsidiaries hold capital 1o protect customers, creditors and shareholders against unexpecied losses to a leve! that is
consistent with AMP's risk appetite.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries assess the adequacy of ils capital requirements against regulatory capital requirements. AMP Life is an
operating entity within the AMP group and is an APRA regulated company. Controlled entilies of AMP Life also include an APRA
regulated approved superannuation trustee (RSE) and companies that hold Austrafian Financial Services Licences (AFSL).

The AMP group's capital management sirategy forms part of the AMP group's broader strategic planning process. In addition to
managing the level of capital resources, the AMP group also aims to oplimise the mix of capital resources to minimise the cost of capital
and maximise sharehoider value.

The Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirement {MRR) Is the amount of shareho!der capital required by each of AMP’s regulated
businesses to meet thelr capital requirements as set by the appropriate regulator. These requirements are as follows:

+ AMP Lifs —~ Capital adequacy requirements as specified under the Life Act and APRA Life Insurance Prudential Standards. This
applies to the company as a whole, and each statutory fund of the company.

» Controlled entities of AMP Life that hold an AFSL and RSE license — capital and liquidity requirements under the appropriate AFSL
and APRA Superannuation Prudential Standards.

AMP Life and its subsidiaries have at all times during the current and prior financial year complied with the externafly imposed capital
requirements to which it is subject.

AMP Life has a Board approved minimum capital target above APRA requirements, with additional capital targets held above this
amount. The capital target above the Board minimum has been set to a less than 10% probabillity of capital resources falling below the
Board minimum over a 12 month period. In addition, the participating business of the life insurance companies is managed 1o target a
very high level of confidence that the business is self-supporting and that there are sufficient assets to support policyholder liabilities.
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23. NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2013 2012
$m 3m
(a) Reconciliation of the net profit after income tax to cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year 510 532
Depreciation of operafing assets 7 9
lnvestment gains and losses {7,677) (5,247)
Dividend and distribution income reinvested {1,767) (1,645}
Cacrease / {increase) in receivables and ather assets (137) 36
lerease / (decrease) in net policy fiabilities 7,295 5,864
herease / {decrease) in incoma tax balances 528 397
erease in other payables aal 5]
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities {910} 37
2013 2012
sm $m
(b) Raconcillation of cash
Cash and cash equivalenis 3,060 3,702
Shaort term bils and notes (included in debt securities) 2,979 95
Balance at the end of the period 5,339 4,597
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24, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Details of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:

% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPQRATION  Share type Footnote 2013 2012
255 George Street lvestment A Ry Lid Australia Ord 100 100
255 George Street lnvestment B Ry Lid Australia Ord 100 100
35 Ocean Keys Py Limited Australia Ord (N - 100
Abbey Capital Real Estate Pty Limited ' Australia Ord 100 100
ACIT Finance Pty Limited Australia Ord 4} . 100
ACN 155 075 040 Py Lid Australia Ord,Class A Pref 100 100
Aged Care hvestment Services No, 1 Pty Limited {formerly PHF No. 1 Australia Ord
Management Piy Limited) 100 100
Aged Care hvesiment Services No. 2 Pty Limited {formerly PHF No. 1 Australia Ord 100 100
Pty Limited)
Allarg Cerporation Linited NZ Ord, Prel 100 100
ANMPASAL Py Lid Australia Ord 100
ANP Capital vestments No. 2 Limited NZ Ord A & B, Pref 100 100
ANP Capilal hwestments No. 8 Liniled NZ Ord A & B, Pref 100 100
AMP Capilal hvestments No 11 Limited NZ OrdA &B {1) - 100
ANP Capilal lhvestments No. 14 Limited NZ OrdA &B 100 100
ANP CMBS No. 1 Py Limited Australia Ord 100° 100
ANP CMBS No. 2 Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP Finance Limited Australia Ord (1} . 100
AMP Financial Fianning Pty Limited Australia Ord tog0 100
AMP GBS Limited Australia Fixed g - 100
AMP hsurance hvestment Holdings Ply Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP Life {(NZ) Investments Holdings Limited NZ Ord 100 100
AMP Life {NZ) Investments Limited . NZ Ord {00 100
AP Personal lwestment Services Lintted Austratia Ord (1) - 100
AMP Hanner Register Company Ply Limited Australia Ord (1} - 100
AMP Direct Ply Limited ( formerly AMP Private Weallh Management Ply Australia Ord
Liited ) 100 100
ANP Property bhwestments (Qid) Ply. Ltd. Australia Ord 100 100
AP Real Estate Advisory Holdings Py Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ANP Remuneration Rew ard Flans Nominees Ply. Limited Australia Ord 100 100
AMP Services (NZ) Limited NZ Ord 100 100
ANP SMSF Holding Co Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ANP SMSF lhvestments Fiy Limited Australia Ord 100 100
ANP Superannuation (NZ) Limited NZ Crd (1) - 100
AMP Superannuation Limited Australia Crd 100 100
ANP/IERGO Mortgage and Savings Limited NZ Ord 100 100
Arrive Wealth Management Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Australian Securities Administration Limited Australia Ord 100 100
CBD Financial Flanning Pty Lirited Auyslralia Ord n ] 100
Collins Place No. 2 Py Ltd Australia Ord M . 00
Coffins Place Py Linited " Australia Ord (1) - {00
Focus Property Services Pty Limited Australia Crd m - g2
Glendenning Py Limited Austealia Ord (" - i00
Hilross Alliances Limited Australia Ord g} - {00
HillFoss Fnancial Services Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Hillross knisfail Py Limited Australia Ord () - 100
Hilross Wealth Management Cenlre Melbourne Pty Limited Australia Crd 100 100
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24. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of significant investments in controlled entities are as follows:

% Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATION Share type Footnote 2013 2012
Honeysuckle 231 Pty Limited Australia Ord (1} - 60
ENSSA Piy Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Jeminex Ry Uimited Austrafia Ord ) - 51
Kent Sirest Pty Limited Australia Crd 100 100
Kiw i Kat Limited NZ Ord (N - 70
Knox Gity Shopping Centre lnvestments (No. 2) Py Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Mow la Ply, Limited Australia Oed 67 78
National Fire Holdings Pty Limited Australia Od {1) - 51
One Graup Ratail Hokdings Pty Limited Austrafia Crd {1) - 52
PHFT Finance Ay Limited Australia Crd (1 - 100
PremierOne Morigage Advice Py Limited Australia Ord {1 - 100
Principal Healthcare Finance No. 2 Pty Limited Ausiralia Ord {1) - 100
Principal Haalthcare Finance Py Limited Australia Ord 100 100 -
Principal Healthcare Holdings Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Priority One Financial Services Limited Austrafia Ord 100 100
Quay Mning {No, 2} Limited Bermuda Crd, Red Pref 100 100
Quay Mining Pty Limited Australia Ord 100 100
Roost 2007 Lirited NZ Ord {1 - 100
Scrabster Bay Ply Lirited Australia Ord (1) - 100
SPPNo. 1 {Alexandra Canal) Pty Lirrled Australia Ord (1) - 86
SPPNa. 1 {Cow es) Py Limited Austratia Ord (1) - 86
SPP MNo. 1 (H) Py Lintted Australia Ord (1) - 86
SPPNo. 1 (Mona Vale) Pty Limited Ausiralia Ord 4] 85
SPP No. 1 (Mornington) Pty Linited Australia Ord {1 i 8
SPPNo. 1 (New castle) Pty Limited Australia Od {1) - 86
SPPNo. 1 (North Mebourne} Pty Limited Australia Ocd (1) - 86
SPPNo. 1 {Pakenham) Pty Limited Ausfralia Ord {t) - 86
SPP No. 1 {Point Ceak} Pty Limited Australia Ord () . 86
SPPNo. 1 (Q Stores) pty Limited Australia Od (N - 85
" SPP No. 1 (Rosebery) Py Limited Ausiralia Ord e . 86
SPP No. 1 Holdings Pty Limited Australia Ord {1} - 85
SPP No. 1 (Hawthorn) Ply Limited Auslralia Ord 1) - 86
SPPNo. 1 (M. Waverley Financing} Ply Linted Australia Ord (1) - 86
SPPNo, 1 {M. Waverlay) Pty Limited Australia Ord {1) - 86
SPP No, 1 {Port Melbourng) Ply Uniited Ausiralia Crd (1) - 85
Sunshine West Davelopment Ry Limited Australia Crd (1) - 75
The hdia nfrastructure Fund LLC Maurilius Red Pref {1} 100
TOA Ry Ltd Australia O 100 100
United Equipment Heldings Rty Limited Australia Ord (2) - 56
Waterfront Hace (No. 2) Ply. Ltd. Australia Ord (1) - 100
Walerfront Flace {No. 3) Pty. Ltd. Australia Ord {1} - 100

Footnote:
{1 Cenlroling interest disposed in 2013,
{7) Netaudited by Ernst & Young,

58




AMP Life Limited Financial Report

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 3t December 2013

24, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of significant investments in controlled irusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER BENTITIES COUNTRY OF % Holdings

NAME OF BNTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2013 2012
140 St Georges Terrace Trust Austra¥ia 100 100
ACPP Holding Trust Austrafia 100 100
ACPP hdustrial Trust Austrafia (2 -0
ACPR Office Trust Austrafa @ - 10
ACPP Retall Trust Auslrafa (2) - 100
Active Quant Share Fund Auslrafa 75 75
AFS Alternative Fund 1 Austraka {?) - 100
AFS Australian Share Fund 8 Austrafa 00 100
AFS Extended Alpha Fund (formerly AMP Capital Sustainable Extended Alpha Fund) Ausirafa 100 100
AFS International Rxed Interest Enhanced hdex Fund Ausirala (H 100 -
Aged Care hvestment Trust No.1 Australa (1) a1 -
Aged Cara hvestment Trust No.2 Austraka (1) a1

AFS International Share Fund 1 Austrafa 2} - 100
Agaressive Enhanced hdex Fund Austra¥a 100 100
AHGI Martineau Fund Austrafa (2) - 100
AHGI Martineau Galleries Fund Austraba 100 00
AMP Capital 1950s Fund Auslraba (1) 100 -

AMP Capital 1960s Fund Auslrafa (1) 100 -

AMP Capftal 1970s Fund Auslrafa {1) 100 -

AMP Capital 1980s Fund Austrata (1) 100 -

AMP Capital 1990s Fund Australa {1 100 -

AMP Capital Absalute Return - Passive Fund Austrafa (i) 100 -

AMP Capital Aternative Defensive Fund - Delayed Rademption Australia {2) 100
AMP Capﬂ'al Asia ex-Japan Fund Australia 100 100
AMP Capital Asia Local Currency Bond Fund Austrafa 100 100
ANP Capital Asian Equity Growth Fund Austraka 76 7
AMP Capital Australian Fquity Concentrated Fund Austrafa n 76

AMP Capital Australian Equity ncome Fund Austrakia 100 100
ANP Capital Australian Equity Opportunities Fund Austrafia 2 - 81
AMP Capital Corparate Bond Fund Austrafa ] - 76
AMP Capita) Credit Strategles Fund Australia @ - A
AMP Capital Direct Property Fund Australia (1) 100 -

ANP Capital Diversified Balanced Fund Australia (1 100 -
AMP Capital Extended Multi-Asset Fund Auslralia 69 7t
ANP Capital Global Equities Sector Raotation Fund Auslrala 100 100
AMP Capital Global hirastructure Securities Fund (Hedged) Austrafa (2) - a0
AMP Capital Global Wnfrastructure Securities Fund (Unhedged) Australia {2) - 80
AMP Capital Global Resource Fund Australa 100 100
AMP Capital Australian Equily Long Short Fund Australia 100 100
ANMP Capital nfrastructure Fund 1 Australia 100 100
ANP Capital Macro Strategies Fund Australia 84 84
AMP Capital Multi-Asset Fund Australia 2) - 7
AMP Capital Shefl Fund 1 Austraka 2) - 65
AMP Capital Shell Fund 2 Austrafa {2} <100
AMP Capital Shell Fund 3 Austrafia (1) 100

ANP Capital Stable Fund Australia 5] 100 -

ANP Capital Susiainable Share Fund Austrafia 69 68
AMP Life Cash Management Trust Australia o 100
AMP Private Capital Trust No.9 Austrafia 100 100
AMP Capital Austrakian Small Companies Fund Australia 55 54
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24, INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Detaits of significant investments in controlled trusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES COUNTRY OF % Haoldings

NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Foolnote 2013 2012
AMP Shareholder Fixed Inferest Fund Austrafa 5 100
AMP UK Shopping Centre Fund Austraka 106 100
AMP Capital Wholesale Oifice Fund Austraba (2) 34
AMPCI FD Infrastruclure Trust Austrafa {2) - a7
Australian Pacific Airports Fund Austraba 77 66
AWOF New Zealand Office Trust New Zealand (2} - 34
Balanced Enhanced ndex Fund Austrafa 100 100
Boaragoon Trust Austrafa 100 100
Bourke Face Unit Trust Auslraa (2) 25
China Strategic Growth Fund Austraba 100 100
Cautious Enhanced lndex Fund Austraka 160 100
Canservative Enhanced Index Fund Austrata 99 99
Crossroads Trust Australa (2) - 100
Davidson Road Trust Australia (2) - 100
EFM Australian Share Fund Auslrafa 96 g7
EFM Ausiralian Share Fund 2 Austrafa 99 99
EFM Australian Share Fund 3 Austrafa a8 g8
EFtM Australian Share Fund 4 Australiia 94 94
EFM Auslralian Share Fund 6 Austrafa 98 99
EFM Australian Share Fund 7 Austrafia 98 98
EFM Fixed Interest Fund 2 Australia a7 95
EFM Fixed Interest Fund 3 Austraka 95 95
EFM Fixed Interest Fund 4 Ausirata 94 94
EFM nfrastructure Fund 1 Australia 94 95
EFM International Share Fund 3 Australa 97 97
EFM International Share Fund 5 Austraka 96 a7
EFM International Share Fund 7 Australa g2 gt

EFM Listed Froperty Fund 1 Austraka 96 96
Enhanced hhdex International Share Fund Austraiia 57 81

Enhanced hdex Share Fund Avstralia 60 89
FD Austrafian Share Fund 1 Australia 96 a7
FD Austrakan Share Fund 3 Australia 95 93
FI} International Share Fund 1 Austrafia 96 95
FD International Share Fund 3 Austratia 98 99
FD International Share Fund 4 Australia 96 96
Foating Rate lncome Fund Australia 9N 96
Future Directions Ausiralian Bond Fund Australia (2) - 96
Future Directions Asia ex Japan Fund Australa {2) - 74
Future Directions Austra¥ian Share Fund Austrafa (2) 93
Fulure Directions Austrafian Small Companies Fund Ausiraka @ - 96
Fulure Directions Balanced Fund Australia 98 98
Future Directions Conservative Fund Austraka 95 95
Fulure Oirections Core International Share Fund 2 Australia (2) - 53
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24. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of significant investments in controlled trusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES COUNTRY OF % Holdings
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2013 2012
Future Directions Credit Oppartunities Fund Ausirafia (2) - a5
Future Directions Diversified Alternatives Fund Ausiralia (2 - 97
Future Directions Enhanced lhdex Austrafian Share Fund Auslrafia (@) - 97
Fiture Directions Enhanced hdex Glabal Froperty Securities Fund Australia (2 97
Future Directlons Geared Australian Share Fund Australia 93 93
Future Directions Global Credit Fund (formerly FD International Bond Fund 3) Australia {2} 95
Future Directions Globat Gavernment Bond Fund Australia 2 92
Future Directions Growih Fund Australia a7 97
Future Directions Hedged Core hternationat Share Fund Australia 61 61
Future Directions Hgh Growth Fund Australia a6 95
Future Directions hflation Linked Bond Fund Australia () - 95
Future Directions Infrastructure Fund Australia (2) - 97
Future Directions hiernational Bond Fund Ausiralia (2) - a5
Future Directions International Share Fund Australia 60 58
Fulure Directions Moderately Conservative Fund Ausiralia 96 95
Future Directions Oppottunistic Fund Australa (2) - 97
Future Directions Frivate Equity Fund 1A Ausirafia 2) - 97
Fuiure Directions Private Equity Fund 1B Australia 100 100
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 2A Austrafia (2) - a7
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 2B Austrafia 100 100
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 3A Austrafia {2) a7
Future Directions Private Equity Fund 3B Australia 100 100
Future Directions Property (Feeder} Fund ) Australia (2) 97
ANP Capital Alternative Defensive Fund (formerly Future Directions Total Raturn Fund) Australia (2} 98
Future Directors Emerging Markets Share Fund Australia (2) - 52
Global Credit Strategies Fund Australia 87 87
Global Grow th Opportunities Fund Australia 96 96
Global Listed infrastructure Fund Australia 100 100
hternational Bond Fund Australia a3 93
ipac Diversified Investment Strategy Mo 2 Australia (2) - 83
ipac Diversified lvestment Sirategy No 4 Australia 52 69
Kent Street nvestment Trust Ausiralia 100 100
Kent Street Unit Trust Ausiralia (2) - 100
Loftus Street Trust Ausiralia (&) - 36
Macquarie Balanced Growth Fund Australa 84 83
Managed Treasury Fund Austrafa 73 a2
Moderately Aggressive Enhanced Index Fund Austrafia 100 100
Moderately Conservative Enhanced hdex Fund Australia 100 100
Monash House Trust Australia 100 100
Principal Healthcare Holdings Trust Australia 0o 100
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24. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Details of significant investments in controlled frusts are as follows:

TRUSTS AND OTHER ENTITIES % Holdings
COUNTRY OF
NAME OF ENTITY REGISTRATION Footnote 2013 2012
Frivate Equity Furd HIA Australia 94 94
Rrivate Equity Fund IiB Ausiralia 94 94
Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund Austratia 92 95
Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund Austrafia 97 97
Responsibla bhvestmant Leaders Hgh Grow th Fund Australia 100 100
Riverside Haza Trust Austrafia 100 100
Select Property Porifolic No. 1 Australia 86 86
Sydney Cove Trust Australia 100 100
The Glendenning Trust Australia 100 100
The Fnnacle Fund Auslralia 100 99
Warringah Mall Trust Ausiralia (2) 50
Whalesala Australian Bond Fund Australia 89 90

Foolnotes:
(1) Gontrolling interest acquired in 2013

(2) Gentrolling inferest disposed of in 2013
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25. ASSOCIATES

Investments in associates held by the lite statutory funds measured at falr value through profit or Joss™

Ownership interest

Carrylng amount

COMPANIES PRINCIPAL 2013 2012 2013 2042
NAME QF COMPANY ACTIVITY® % % $m $m
Gove Aluminium Finance westmant into aluminium smelter 30% 30% 84 108
Tomago,NSW
Asian Giant nfrastruciure hfrastructure investment 37% 37% 18 20
Total investments held by the life statutory funds in associated companies 102 128
UNIT TRUSTS®
NAME OF TRUST ]
Aged Care nvestment Trust No.1 vestment trusts {4 - 48% 73
Aged Care nvestment Trust No.2 Investment frusts {4 - 48% - 73
AMP Capital China Grow th Fund lnvestment trusts 37% 34% 110 79
AMP Capttal Corporate Bond Fund investment trusts (5) 2i% - 415 -
ANP Capital Credit Strafegies Fund Investment trusts (5) 44%, - 108 -
ANMP Gapital Global Property Securities Fund Investment trusts 37% 36% 513 466
AMP Capital Infrastructure Equity Fund (formally Fwestment trusis (4) - 31% - 13t
Infrastruciure Equity Fund)
AMP Capital Muli-Asset Fund lnvesiment trusts {5) 49% 94 -
AMP Capital hfrastructure Equity Fund (formally lnvesiment frusis 26% 26% 297 304
Infrastructure Equity Fund)
AWP Capital Property Fortfolio Investment trusts {5) 40% 291
AMP Capital Shares NZ Index Fund Investment frusts {5 35% 87
AMP Capital Shopping Centre Fund Investment frusts 31% 34% 644 832
AMP Capilal Equity Fund hvestment frusts {4) - 42% - 189
ANP Capital Sirategic Infrastruciure Trust of Birops  Ivestment trusts {5) 30% - a0 -
" No.i
AMP Capital Strategic Infrastructure Trust of Europe  Investment frusts (5} 30% - 91 -
No.2
AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fung Investment trusts {5) 38% - 123 -
AMP Capltal Wholesale Otfice Fund lnvestment trusts (5) % - i -
AMP Shareholder Cash Fund Investment trusts (4) - 24% - 154
AMP Equity Trust hvestmant trusts (5) 42% - 206 -
Diversified lnvesiment Strategy No. 2 lvestment trusts {5) 38% 126 .
Fulure Directions Australian Share Fund lnvestmen trusts {8 22% 597 -
Future Directions ternational Small Companies lnvesiment trusts 46% 39%, 148 159
Fund
Future Directions Core hternational Share Fung 2 Ihvestment trusts (5 41% 2,087
Future Cirections hternational Bond Fund kvestment frusts (5) 28% 547 -
Future Directions Property (Feeder) Fund hvestment rusts {5) 49% - 478 -
Future Directions Total Return Fund Wvestment irusts (5) 23% - 179 .
Hyperion Australian Grow th Companies Fund Investment trusts {5) 23% - 57 -
K2 Australian Absolute Return Fund4 hvestment trusts (5) 22, - 94 -
Listed Praperty Fund nvestment trusts 30% 31% 57 57
Pimco Diversified Fixed Interest Fund lvestment trusts {5} 25% - 73 -
Property ncome Fund lvestment trusts 29% 30% 69 126
Responsible kivestments Leader Balanced Fund hvestment trusts 32% 44% 272 229
Schroder Fixed hcome Fund Invesiment trusts {4 24% . 178
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25. ASSOCIATES CONTINUED)

UNIT TRUSTS®)

NAME OF TRUST

Templeton Global Trust Fund Investment trusts (5) 29% - 65 -

Value Flus Austratian Share Fund kwesiment trusts {5 24% - 57 -

Glhers {eash less than $50m) tnvesiment trusts Various 344 163
9,096 3,013

Total Investments held by the life statutory funds in associated trusts

Faoinote:
(T kwvestmentin associated entities 1hat back investment cantract and fife insurance conbract fiabiltles are treated as financial assets and are measured at falr

value. Referto Nate ¥},

{2) Thebalance date for all signiflcant assoclated enlitfes Is 3t December,

(3) lthe course of normal operating investment aclivities, the ife statutory funds hold invesiments in various operating businesses. lvestments in associated
entities reflect investments where the Ife statutory funds hold belween a 20%and 50% equityintarest.

(4) Trustceased beingan associate during 2013.
(5) Trustbecame anassaciale during 2013.

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

AMP Life from time to time may incur obligations arising from litigation or various types of contracts entered Info In the normat
course of business, including guarantees issued for performance obligatlons to controlled entities of AMP Life.

Where it is determined that the disclosure of information in relation to a contingent {iabliity can be expecled to prejudice
serfously the position of AMP Life (or its insurers) in a dispule, accounting standards allow AMP Life not to disclose such
information and it is AMP Life's policy that such information is not to be disclosed in this note.

At reporiing date there were no other matarial contingent liabilities where the probabllity of any outfiow in seltlement was greater
than remote.
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

{a) Key management personnel detalls

The following individuals were the key management personnel {being those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, Including any director (whether executive or othenwise)) of AMP
Life for the whole or part of the reporting pericd as indicated:

Calherine Brenner Chairman, Non-Execulive Director

Craig Dunn Executive Director Resigned: 31 December 2013
Craig Meller Executive Director

Pauline Blight Johnston Executive Director Appointed: 1 March 2014
Anthony Coleman Non-Executive Director

Diana Eilert Non-Executive Direclor

John Palmer Non-Executive Director

Andrew Harmos Non-Executive Director Appointed: 10 August 2013
Peter Shergold Non-Executive Director

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel
The following table provides aggregate details of the compensation of key management personnel of AMP Life Limited.

Post
Short Term Employment Share Based
Benefits Benefits Payments Total
$ ] $ §
2013 5,697,351 111,637 3,814,800 9,623,788
2042 5,613,295 103,037 3,376,000 9,092,332

Foolnole:
The fees paidto non-executive directors aof AMP Life are the fees far AMP Group.

(c} Transactions with key management personnel
During the year, key management personnel and their persenally related entities have entered into transactions with the disclosing
entity or its subsidiaries. Al such transactions have occurred within a-normal employee, customer or supplier relationship en terms and
conditions no more favourable than those that it Is reasonable to expect AMP Lite would have adopted if dealing at anm’s length with an
unrelated individual. These transactions include:

*  Purchase of Insurance products available to other employees and policy owners;

*  Purchase of superannuation products available to other employees and policy owners;

»  Placement of funds on deposit; and

»  Acquisition and disposal of units in controlled managed investment scheme and recelpts of trust distributions.

Information abaut such transactions does not have the potential to affect adversely decisions about the alfacation of scarce resources
made by users of this Financial Report, or the discharge of accountability by the specified executives or specified directors.

No Director or Director-related entities had loans with AMP Life In 2013 (2012: nil),

A number of Directors of the company are also Directors of public companies andfor are a Partner of a professional service partnership
which have transactions with AMP Life. The Directors do not believe that they have the capacily to control or significantly influence the
financial or cperating policies of either company in their dealings with each other. Those companies are therefore not considered tc be
Director-refated entities.

{(d} Transactions with key related parties
Transactions with related parlies are made at arms length and on normal commercial terms. Ouistanding balances at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012 are unsecured, non interest bearing and settlement occurs in cash or through intercompany accounts as

necessary.

AMP Life purchases administrative services from AMP Services Limited and AMP Services (NZ) Limited on a fee service basis. (2013:
$700m, 2012: $661m). Services purchased include product distribution, marketing, payroll, personnel, computing and accounting
services.

AMP Life receives investment services from AMP Capltal Investors Limited and AMP Capital Investors {New Zealand) Limited {AMP
Capital) on a normal commercial basis (2013: $213m, 2012: $196m). AMP Capital is a related entity of AMP Life and manages the
invesiment assets of the policyhelder fund and the shareho!ders fund. AMP Capital is alsa the responsible entity of a number of the
controlled and assoctaled unit trusts detalled in Note 24 and Note 25, Investment management services provided by AMP Capital to
AMP Life are charged at normal commercial rates.

The company receives financial planning services from AMP Finangcial Planning Piy Limited, Hillross Financial Services Limited and
AMP Superannuation Limited, and is charged on commercial terms and conditions.
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The company has amounts in deposits with AMP Bank Limited (2013: $3,095m, 2012: $3,680m).

The following table provides the total amount of significant transactions which AMP Life has entered inlo with related parties for the

relevant financial year:

Service, Service,
management  management
and other fees  and other fees Amounts Amounts
received from paid to owed by owedto
relaled parties related parties  related parties related parties
Fellow subsldiaries of AMP Limited $m $m $m $m
ACPP Holding Trust 2013 7 - - -
2012 3 -
AMPASAL Ry Ltd 2013 - -
2012 - - h -
AMP Bank Limited 2013 - 3,095 -
2012 - 3,680 -
AMP Bermuda Ltd 2013 - - - |
2012 - - - 7
AMP Capital Finance Limited 2013 - - 1
2012 - -
AMP Capital Funds Management Limited 2013 3 - -
2012 - -
AMP Capital hwvestors Limited 2013 7 213 - 29
2012 12 196 - 28
AMP Capital Shopping Gentre 2013 - 6 - -
2012 - 6 - -
AMP Direct Py Limited 2013 - 2 -
2012 - - -
AMP Financial Panning Pty Limited 2013 296 {2
2012 287 8 -
AMP hsurance Investment Holdings Py Limiled 2013 - 7 -
2012 - 12 -
AMP Life {NZ) hvestments Holdings Limited 2013 - 924 -
2012 - - 798 -
AMP Life {NZ) hvestments Holdings Limited - I 2013 - - 62
Fung - 2012 - - 54
AMP Life {N2) hvestments Limited 2013 - - - 227
2012 - - 36
AMPLife {(NZ) hvestrents Limited - L Fund 2013 52
2012 36
ANMP Fanner Register Company Ry Limited 2013 53 1
2012 45 1
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)

Service, Service,
management  management
and other fees  and other fees Amounts Amounts
received from paid to owed by owedto
related parties related parties  related parties  refated partles
Fellow subsidiaries of AMP Limited Sm $m $m $m
ANP Froperty Investmants (Qkd) Ply. Limited. 2013 - 54
2012 - 54
AMP Services Linited 2013 - 664 . 10
2012 46 625 4
AMP Superannuaticn Limted 2013 - 7 -
2012 - 7 - -
AMP Services {N2) Limited 2013 - 36 - i
2012 - 36 - 2
Charter Financial Panning Ltd 2013 - 4
2012 - 2
Ergo Mortgage and Savings 2013 - - 2 -
2012 - i -
Hllross Aliances Limited 2013 - 4 1
2012 - - 4
Hllross Financial Service 2013 - 21 12
2012 - 19 [
INSSA Py Limited 2013 - - 2
: 2013 - 2
Jigsaw Support Services Ltd 2013 . - - -
2012 : - i -
Kent Street lhvestment Trust 2013 1 - 44
2012 i - 44 -
NVFM Limited 2013 - -
2012 - 1
NMLA Shareholders Fund 2013 - 1 -
2012 - - 3
NVLA Noi Stat Fund 2013 - - 2
2012 - - 2
Private Bquity Fund i 2013 - 12 -
2012 37 -
Sydney Cove Trust 2013 2 - -
2012 i - -
TOA Py Limited 2013 - - - 319
2012 - - AL
140 St Georges Terrace Trust 2013 i - . -
2012 i - - -
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28. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

All auditors’ remuneration payable to the auditers of AMP Life Limited for the audit of the controlled companies within the AMP Life
Group is settled by a related entity. Certain confrolled property and private equity funds within the AMP Lite Group incur auditors’
remuneration directly.

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Amounts pald or payable 1o the auditors of AMP Lite Limited for:
Auditing the financial statements of AMP Life Limited and ils controlled 1,040 1,040
entilies
Total amounts received or due and receivable by the audltors
of AMP Life Limited 1,040 1,040

Fooinoles:
() Periadically, the AMP Life Group gains cantral, through the investing aclivity of the AM P Life statutoryfunds, of entities whose incumbent auditor Is an audit
firm ather than Emst & Young, These immalterial addittonal audit fees paid to non-Emst & Young audil firms are notincludedin this nale.

28, PARENT ENTITIES

The parent! enlity is AMP Financial Services Holdings Limited and the company's ultimate parent entity is AMP Limited.

30. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

At the date of this repon, the directors are not aware of any malter or circumstance that has arisen since the reporting date that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the company's operations in future years, the results of those operations in fulure years
or the company’s state of affalrs In future years, which is not already reflected in this report. .
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In accordance with a resolution of the directors of AMP Life Limited, the purposes of Section 285(4) of the Corporations Act
2001, the Directors declare that: .

{a) in the opinton of directors there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay iis debis as and
when they become due and payable;

(b} in the opinion of directors the financial stalements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including
Section 296 (compliance with accounting standards} and Section 297 {true and falr view); and

{c) the notes to the financial statements include an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with the International
Financtal Reporting Standards as discussed in Note 1(a).

O Mells.s O oo

(s@nature) (signa!ureM

[ ,‘/’w{:‘i Melle, Cateiia breanty

{name) N/ {name)
Director Director
Sydney, 1 April 2014 Sydney, 1 April 2014

69




Appointed Actuary’s Report for AMP Life Limited (“AMP Life”)
To the Directors of AMP Life

This report has been prepared for AMP Life in accordance with Section 78 of the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“the Act”).

In terms of Section 77(1) of the Act, | have reviewed the actuarial information contained in, or
used in the preparation of the Directors’ Report and Financial Report for AMP Life for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (“the Financial Statements”).

For the purposes of this report, “actuarial information” is as defined in Section 77(4) of the Act,
together with paragraph 4.1.1 of the Attachment to the “Section 59 Exemption from Compliance
with Solvency Standard” granted to AMP Life by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under the
Act.

| certify that in my opinion:

a) The value of the policy liabilities of AMP Life and the regulatory capital requirements of AMP
Life have been determined using methods and assumptions consistent with the actuarial
prudential standards issued by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (“APRA”).

b) The allocation and distribution of the profits of the Statutory Funds of AMP Life have been
made in accordance with Divisions 5 and 6 of Part 4 of the Australian Life Insurance Act
1995 (Life Act).

c) Proper records have been kept by AMP Life from which its policy liabilities and regulatory
capital requirements have been able to be properly determined.

d) The apportionment of income and outgo used in preparing the AMP Life accounts at
31 December 2013, as required under Sections 78 and 79 of the Life Act, is appropriate.

e) | have obtained all of the information and explanations that | require from AMP Life.

In addition, | certify that in my opinion, and from an actuarial perspective:

f) The actuarial information contained in the Financial Statements has been appropriately
included in those statements.

g) The actuarial information used in the preparation of the Financial Statements has been used
appropriately.

h) AMP Life has fully complied with the APRA regulatory capital requirements throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013. Note that the APRA regulatory capital requirement is the
applicable standard that applies under the Section 59 exemption granted by the Reserve
Bank of New Zealand.

Other than my relationship as Appointed Actuary of AMP Life, | am an employee of the AMP
Group, of which AMP Life forms part, and a member of the AMP Employees’ Superannuation
Plan. | hold shares and options in AMP Limited, the ultimate holding company of AMP Life. |
am a customer of AMP Bank Limited, which is also part of the AMP Group.

This report is provided solely in my capacity as the AMP Life Limited Appointed Actuary. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, | do not accept responsibility to anyone for the contents of this
report other than the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, AMP Life Limited and its directors and
shareholders.

O oo

Rocco Mangano FIAA
Appointed Actuary, AMP Life Limited
24 April 2014



Ernst & Young Tel; +61 39288 B0OCO
8 Exhibition Street Fax: +61 386507777
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia ey.com
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Independent auditor's report to the members of AMP Life Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial report of AMP Life Limited, which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’
declaration.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1,
the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audil in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and ptan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence

fn conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors’ report.

A meraber firm of Ernst & Young Globatitmited
Liabitity imited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legisiation
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Opinion
In our opinion:

a. the financial report of AMP Life Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December 2013
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

it complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

b, the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 1.

pTY Ay N

Ernst & Young

e (\m T
\\T'ori‘jzﬁ nson

Partner
Melbourne
1 Aprit 2014

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liabiity imited by @ scheme appraved under Professional Standards Legislation



	2013 Financial report AMP Life Limited (Parent) With Auditor's report.pdf
	2013 Financial report AMP Life Limited (Parent)
	Auditor's letter
	2013 Financial report AMP Life Limited (Parent)
	Auditor's letter


